City of Isleton

City Council
Staff Report

DATE: May 10, 2022

ITEM#: 4.A
CATEGORY: Communications

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS
SUMMARY
City has received the following communications:

A. Water Sampling, California American Water.
B. Signage, Highways 160 and 12.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

RECOMMENDATION

Information only.

ATTACHMENT
e Water Sampling, California American Water.
e Signage, Highways 160 and 12.

Prepared and Submitted by: Yvonne Zepeda
Reviewed by: Charles Bergson, City Mapdger

uty City Clerk







Charles Berason

From: Audie Foster <Audie.Foster@amwater.com>

Sent: Tuesday, May 03, 2022 16:33

To: Charles Bergson

Cc: Todd Brown; Shilpa Singh; Evan J Jacobs

Subject: RE: Water Tests, Isleton

Attachments: Water Quality Sampling Results.xlsx; isleton_2021,pdf; Example of Certified Labratory for
Water Certifications.pdf

Charles,

Attached you will find the twelve months of data as reported to DDW for arsenic. We are currently in the process of
completing the reporting for the month of April and can provide you that data next week. | have also attached a copy of
our 2021 Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) for the year 2021. Page 12 of this documents shows the average detected
amount of 7.4 ppb for the 2021 reporting year. As | discussed with you and Council member Steel we are available to
discuss the water quality concerns of the business owner that contacted you. They can reach me directly by using the
contact information below. Thank you for providing us with copies of the |laboratory results from the customer along
with the information of the |laboratory. The laboratory that completed the testing, California AG Labs, is a certified
cannabis testing laboratory and not certified for potable water testing. The methods and units used to express the
results are not compatible to drinking water standards. The method used, ICP-MS Sop-423 is not a method used for
water testing. EPA method 200.8 is used for the samples tested by our certified laboratories. A copy of California AG
Labs license is copied below. | also attached an example of a Certificate held by a laboratory certified for potable water
testing. California American Water has, and continues to meet the state and federal standards for drinking water. Will
the customer be reaching out to me directly with concerns?

Department of Department of Cannabis Control

Cannabls Contro! foensing@cannabis Ca Qov, weav Cannabis €a gov
CALIFORNIA

Cannabis Testing Laboratory License

Business Name: Premises Address:

CERTIFIEDAG LABS 430 C ST MARYSVILLE, CA
S52015705

Calfoma AG Labs

License Number; C8-0000004-LIC Valid: 1/7/2020

License Type: Provisiona! Testing |aboratory Expires: 1672023

The boense authorizes CERTIFIED AG LABS to engage in commercial canmabes Testng ot the premises address
listed] abave untl the expiration date of this kcense. This Ecense Issued {3 pursuant to Dhviaion 10 of the Calfomia
Eusiness and Professional Code and is not bansferatio 10 any other person of premises jocation, Thes Hcense shall
dways be displayed in a prominent place at the licersed pranises. This Ecense shall be subject B suspension of
revecabon f the kcensee is determéned to be kn vickabon of Division 10 of the Business and Professions Code or
feguiations adopted thereunder




- -



Audie

S. Audie Foster

Pronouns: he, him, his

Director of Northern Operations
California American Water

4701 Beloit Drive

Sacramento, CA 95838

P: 916-568-4259

C: 916-358-0559

From: Charles Bergson <cbergson@cityofisleton.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 3, 2022 3:.05 PM

To: Audie Foster <Audie.Foster@amwater.com>
Subject: Water Tests, Isleton

EXTERNAL EMAIL: The Actual Sender of this email is cbergson@cityofisleton.com "Think before you click!".

Audie F,

Here are the tests from the firm that has complained about the arsenic levels- per our discussion this morning.

Thank you,
Chuck B

CHARLES BERGSON, P.E.

City of Isleton
City Manager

101 Second Street
Isleton, California 95641

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or
entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender. Please note
that any views or opinions presented in this email are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent
those of American Water Works Company Inc. or its affiliates. The recipient should check this email and any
attachments for the presence of viruses. American Water accepts no liability for any damage caused by any
virus transmitted by this email. American Water Works Company Inc., | Water St. Camden, NJ. 08102
www.amwater.com







Charles Bergson

From; isletonchamber@frontier.com

Sent: Wednesday, May 04, 2022 14:04

To: Sue Tipp; Ruby Fowler; Cindy Burnett; Mandy Elder; Jean Yokotobi
Cc: Chuck Bergson

Subject: Signage

I just spoke with Kristen Pringle Environmental Planner for the Delta Protection Commission. They would like to work with
us on some wayfinding signs and interpretative signs. They just received a grant from Caltrans for signage. Our plan
would be to work with her on the 160 and 12 signs so we are both on the same page. She also would like to put up some
interpretative signs in historic Isleton and has information on the message board in Clay and Lil's property as a spot. That
would be a perfect spot which is the entrance to historic Main Street. | also told her about Manny's sign and also the
sample of the sign Sue brought to the chamber yesterday. Chuck she did say she called you and maybe do a
presentation at the City Council meeting. She will also do a presentation at the chamber board meeling. Jean






City of Isleton e

City Council ITEM#: 5.A
Staff Report CATEGORY: Consent Calendar

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF APRIL 26, 2022
SUMMARY

A. Review of the Regular City Council Meetings of April 26, 2022,

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact associated with this action.

RECOMMENDATION

A. City Council review and approve the draft minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on
April 26, 2022,

ATTACHMENTS

® Minutes of April 26, 2022.

Reviewed by: Charles Bergson, City Man.
Submitted and prepared by: Yvonne Zepeda,




ad



CITY OF ISLETON
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, April 26, 2022 at 6:30pm
208 Jackson Boulevard
Isleton, California 95641
You can call in to join our public meeting
TELECONFERENCE OR IN PERSON MEETING

This meeting will be held via teleconference or in person, pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20
issued by the State of California Executive Order by Governor Gavin Newsom on March 17, 2020.
All members of the public interested in participating in this Zoom meeting can dial in by phone at
408-638-0968 (do not put a 1 before the number), Personal Meeting ID 337-903-7904# (for
Personal ID just hit #) and then Passcode 123456#. For computer log-in, follow the link below.
Join Zoom Meeting

https://us02web.zoom.us/{/33790379047pwd=cWdVNkNS5aH Uxci VWRGR | M1BpajcwZz09
Meeting ID: 337 903 7904

Passcode: 123456

1. OPENING CEREMONIES

Welcome & Call to Order — Mayor Eric Pene called to order at 6:30 pm

Pledge of Allegiance

Swearing in of Oath — Vice-Mayor Bulahan swore in councilmember Kelly Hutson
Roll Call

Present: Councilmembers Kelly Hutson, Paul Steele, Iva Walton, Vice-Mayor
Bulahan and via zoom Mayor Eric Pene

Sowy

2. AGENDA CHANGES OR DELETIONS
Items 8A and 8B moved before Consent Calendar

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
Dean Dockery spoke about Sunday 4/24/22 alleged shooting incident and showed City
Manager, Councilmembers and Vice-Mayor a video regarding the shooting incident. Mr.
Dockery requested to put cameras, meet with City Manager to discuss how to improve
the situation. Shawna Pelligrini (resident behind Hotel Del Rio) Alarming and frustrated
regarding the shootings. Chaz if CC is interested it will cost 1 gtr million dollars for
security, that is what he pays.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,
persons needing a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate
in this meeting, may contact Deputy City Clerk Yvonne Zepeda, at (216} 777-7770, by fax at (916) 777-7775 or by
email to Yvonne.zepeda@cityofisleton.com at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

GOV. CODE § 54957.5 NOTICE: Public records related to an agenda item that are distributed less than 72 hours

before this meeting are available for public inspection during normal business hours at Isleton City Hall located at 101
Second Street, Isleton, California 95641.



This is an opportunity for the public to speak to the Council on any item other than those
listed for public hearing on this Agenda. Speakers are requested to use the podium in
front of the Council and to begin by stating their name, whether they reside in Isleton and
the name of the organization they represent if any. The Mayor may impose a time limit
on any speaker depending on the number of people wanting to speak and the time
available for the rest of the Agenda. In the event comments are related to an item
scheduled on the Agenda, speakers will be asked to wait to make their comments until
that item is being considered.

4. COMMUNICATION

A. Contractor and Grantee Compliance with Economic Sanctions Imposed in Response
to Russia’s Actions in Ukraine.

B. 2 Planning Commissioner’s letter of Resignation.
ACTION: Information only.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of April 12,
2022,

RECOMMENDATION: City Council review and approve draft minutes of the
Regular City Council meeting of April 12, 2022,

ACTION: Councilmember Iva Walton motioned to approve. Mayor Eric Pene 2™
motion. AYES: Councilmember Paul Steele, Iva Walton, Vice-Mayor Pam Bulahan
and Eric Pene. NOES: None ABSTAIN: Kelly Hutson (not at previous meetings)
ABSENT: None

6. PUBLIC HEARING
A. SUBJECT: None.
7. OLD BUSINESS

A. SUBJECT: TJIKM Presentation, Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP); Report Presentation
Adoption.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,
persons needing a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate
in this meeting, may contact Deputy City Clerk Yvonne Zepeda, at (916) 777-7770, by fax at (916) 777-7775 or by
email to Yvonne.zepeda@cityofisleton.com at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

GOV, CODE § 549575 NOTICE: Public records related to an agenda item that are distributed less than 72 hours
before this meeting are available for public inspection during normal business hours at Isleton City Hall located at 101
Second Street, Isleton, California 95641,



RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends City Council adopt the City of Isleton
Local Road Safety Plan Report February 2022.

No public comment.

ACTION: Paul madel® motion to approve with “inlay lighting at crosswalks on Main
Street”. Iva Walton 2™ motion. AYES: Councilmember Kelly Hutson, Paul Steele,
Iva Walton, Vice-Mayor Pam Bulahan and Eric Pene. NOES: None ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

B. SUBJECT: Resolution No. 15-22, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Isleton approves Grant Agreement #C4133066 Project #1186 with California
Parks and Recreation Division of Boating and Waterways for Isleton Boat
Launch Facility.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that Council approve Department of
Boating and Waterways contract agreement for the Isleton Boat Launching Facility.

Public Comment: Michelle Burke: Asked old boat launch owner. CM spoke with
owner and was told no. Shawna Pelligrini: Mr. Olson passed away. Requested
security included. Dean Dockery: Supports grant as the area is a resource for City and
business. Would like to find support to maintain dock too. Charles Smith: Supports
the grant also, there are a lot of boaters.

ACTION: Paul 1¥ motion to approve. Iva Walton 2™ to approve. AYES:
Councilmember Kelly Hutson, Paul Steele, Iva Walton, Vice-Mayor Pam Bulahan and
Eric Pene. NOES: None ABSTAIN: None ABSENT: None

C. SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2022-001, an Ordinance of the City Council of the
City of Isleton compliance with mandatory SB1383 non-exempt components
edible food program requirements, calgreen recycling requirements and reporting
requirements, 1* reading.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff is recommending that the City Council adopt
Ordinance No. 2022-001 compliance with mandatory SB1383 non-exempt components
and to receive funding for the Edible Food Recovery Program and any future funds.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,
persons needing a disability-related modification or accommeodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate
in this meeting, may contact Deputy City Clerk Yvonne Zepeda, at (916) 777-7770, by fax at (916) 777-7775 or by
email to Yvonne.zepeda@ecityofisleton.com at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

GOV. CODE § 54957.5 NOTICE: Public records related to an agenda item that are distributed less than 72 hours
before this meeting are available for public inspection during normal business hours at Isleton City Hall located at 101
Second Street, Isleton, California 95641.



Public comments: Shawna Pellegrini: Calwaste does not comply with SB1383 organic
waste. Ruby Fowler: Get compliant and move forward. Dean Dockery: Tax payers
will pay/be compliant.

ACTION: Paul Steele 1% motion to accept. Pam Bulahan 2™ motion to approve.
AYES: Councilmember Kelly Hutson, Paul Steele Vice-Mayor Pam Bulahan and Eric
Pene. NOES: Iva Walton ABSTAIN: None ABSENT: None

D. SUBJECT: California Department of Parks and Recreation’s Office of Grants and
Location Services (OGALS) Prop 68 Per Capita Program Contract.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff is recommending that City Council approve 2018
Parks Bond Act Per Capita Contract Number C9802229 and Contract Number
C9801522.

Public Comment: Charles Smith; Supports grant as it provides outlet for the children
is great,

ACTION: Iva Walton 1 motion to approve contracts. Pam Bulahan 2™ motion to
approve contracts. Councilmember Kelly Hutson, Paul Steele, Iva Walton, Vice-
Mayor Pam Bulahan and Eric Pene. NOES: None ABSTAIN: None ABSENT: None

E. SUBJECT: City Council Resolution No. 13-22, adopting a list of Projects for Fiscal
Year 2022-2023 Funded by SB1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017

RECOMMENDATION: City Council approve Resolution No. 13-22, adopting a List
of Projects for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, Funded by SB1 the Road Repair and
Accountability Act of 2017.

Public Comment: None

ACTION: Iva Walton 1% motion to approve Resolution No 13-22 with adding speed
bump at F & Main Streets. Pam Bulahan 2™ motion. Councilmember Kelly Hutson,
Paul Steele, Iva Walton, Vice-Mayor Pam Bulahan and Eric Pene. NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None ABSENT: None

F. SUBJECT: City of Isleton Retirement 401K Plan for City of Isleton Employees

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,
persons needing a disability-related modification or accommeodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate
in this meeting, may contact Deputy City Clerk Yvonne Zepeda, at (916) 777-7770, by fax at (916) 777-7775 or by
email to Yvonne.zepeda(@cityofisieton.com at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

GOV, CODE § 54957.5 NOTICE: Public records related to an agenda item that are distributed less than 72 hours
before this meeting are available for public inspection during normal business hours at Isleton City Hall located at 101
Second Street, Isleton, California 95641,



RECOMMENDATION: Staff is providing information on a 401K retirement plan for
City staff.

Public Comment: Charles Smith: Agrees to award 401k

Notes: Information only.

8. NEW BUSINESS
A. SUBJECT: Annual Progress Reports 2018-21. General Plan Housing Element.

RECOMMENDATION: Open this item up for public review and comment and then
approve submittal of reports to the State.

No Public Comment.

ACTION: Councilmember Paul motioned to approve progress reports. Vice-Mayor
Pam Bulahan 2™ the motion. AYES: Councilmember Kelly Hutson, Paul Steele, Iva
Walton, Vice-Mayor Pam Bulahan and Eric Pene. NOES: None ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

B. SUBJECT: Conditional Use Permit Application CUP 01-22 and Development
Agreement DA 2022-01, 402 Jackson Blvd, WTO Essentials, Inc.

RECOMMENDATION:

1. Adopt City Council Resolution 14-22 approving Conditional Use Permit
Application CUP 01-22 (Attachment A); and

2. Conduct First Reading in title only of Ordinance 2022-004 approving
Development Agreement DA 2022-01 (Attachment B).

3. Direct Staff to agendize second reading of ordinance for the next regular meeting
of the City Council for May 10, 2022,

Public Comment: Shawna Pelligrini suggested timebound contracts. Michelle Burke
questioned why lower taxes. Charles Smith: Isleton is higher than Santa Rosa which
is zero. Mendota is $8/sq. ft with zero taxes. Isleton is fair from Sacramento taxes.
Owners are limited on tax write-offs.

ACTION: Gary is still working on terms and requests to continue on next meeting.
Councilmember Iva Walton motioned to table for next meeting. Councilmember Paul
Steele 2" motion. AYES: Councilmember Kelly Hutson, Paul Steele, Iva Walton,

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,
persons needing a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate
in this meeting, may contact Deputy City Clerk Yvonne Zepeda, at (916) 777-7770, by fax at (916) 777-7775 or by
email to Yvonne.zepeda@cityofisleton.com at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

GOV. CODE § 54957.5 NOTICE: Public records related to an agenda item that are distributed less than 72 hours
before this meeting are available for public inspection during normal business hours at Isleton City Hall located at 101
Second Street, Isleton, California 95641.



Vice-Mayor Pam Bulahan and Eric Pene. NOES: None ABSTAIN: None ABSENT:;
None

C. SUBJECT: 40 Andrus Circle, Isleton, California 95641.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Council direct this property to
comply with City zoning and building code within 45 days.

Public Comment: Dean Dockery: wrote letter mid March and waited until May 1°.
This issue has been ongoing with extension. Structure w/o permits. She can apply
for hardships.

Notes: Eric Pene suggested not to be so hard on her. Unfortunate losing husband.
Lot is clean.

ACTION: Kelly Hutson 1 motion to pull power and owner needs to submit building
permits by June 1¥. AYES: Councilmember Kelly Hutson, Paul Steele, Iva Walton,
Vice-Mayor Pam Bulahan and Eric Pene. NOES: None ABSTAIN: None ABSENT:

None

9. COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

A. Councilmember Kelly Hutson: None

B. Councilmember Paul Steele: None for Delta Protection: SPAM festival made
enough to donate $500 to purchase athletic equipment for school.

C. Councilmember Iva Walton: None

D. Vice Mayor Pamela Bulahan: Attended SACOG Board meeting,

E. Mayor Eric Pene: Requesting close session to discuss law enforcement problem at
Hotel Del Rio.

10. STAFF GENERAL REPORTS AND DISCUSSION

A. City Manager Report —
B. Fire Chief Report — None

Public Comment: Shawna Pelligrini: made comment that it seems that it is
communication is more transparent regarding Andrus Circle instead of Hotel Del Rio.

11. CLOSED SESSION

A. None.
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,
persons needing a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate
in this meeting, may contact Deputy City Clerk Yvonne Zepeda, at (916) 777-7770, by fax at (916) 777-7775 or by
email to Yvonne zepedaf@cityofisleton.com at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

GOV. CODE § 54957.5 NOTICE: Public records related to an agenda item that are distributed less than 72 hours
before this meeting are available for public inspection during normal business hours at Isleton City Hall located at 101
Second Street, Isleton, California 95641.



12. ADJOURNMENT 8:31pm

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

MAYOR, Eric Pene

ATTEST:

DEPUTY CITY CLERK, Yvonne Zepeda

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,
persons needing a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate
in this meeting, may contact Deputy City Clerk Yvonne Zepeda, at (916) 777-7770, by fax at (916) 777-7775 or by
email to Yvonne.zepeda@cityofisleton.com at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

GOV. CODE § 54957.5 NOTICE: Public records related to an agenda item that are distributed less than 72 hours
before this meeting are available for public inspection during normal business hours at Isleton City Hall located at 101
Second Street, Isleton, California 95641.






City Of ISleton DATE: May 10, 2022

City Council ITEM#: 5.B
Staff Report CATEGORY: Consent Calendar

ORDINANCE 2022-001 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF ISLETON COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY SB1383 NON-EXEMPT
COMPONENTS EDIBLE FOOD PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS, CALGREEN
RECYCLING REQUIREMENTS AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS; 2N
READING

SUMMARY

Resolution 2022-001 was adopted on October 12, 2021 to affirm an exemption from the
requirements of mandatory organics collection services associated with SB 1383. The California
Climate Pollutant Reduction law, Senate Bill 1383 is to reduce disposal of organic wastes in
landfills, including edible foods. This Bill also is to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

The City is exempt from the food collection requirements; however other components of SB
1383 are still applicable to the City beyond the solid waste arena. The State is requiring all
agencies comply with implementing a food recovery program. To that end various City and
County departments are moving forward with steps to be in compliance with the non-exempt
components of the law that fall in their area of responsibility, including:

o Edible Food Recovery Program (exempted: Stores & restaurants are below
minimum population size for requirements in the City of Isleton).

e CalGreen Building Standards and Model Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance
(Community Development)

e Recycled Paper Product Procurement (Administration)

e Records maintenance and submittal of reports to CalRecycle (Public
Works/Compliance)

DISCUSSION

The Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) requires the Cities to adopt
an Ordinance to be in compliance with the non-exempt components of the law that fall in their
area of responsibility.

CalRecycle administers a program to provide opportunities for the support of new and expanded
edible food recovery and food waste prevention projects (food recovered for people or source
reduction} in California. Projects must reduce the amount of food being disposed in landfills,
thereby helping to achieve the state’s short-lived climate pollutant goals.




CalRecycle estimates Isleton is eligible for an estimated $20,000 funds to implement and
maintain the program. Note the City has received an exemption from the residential
requirements. Also, the stores and restaurants in Isleton are exempt from the Edible Food
Recovery Program as they are below minimum size for requirements.  Staff is requesting City
Council adopt Ordinance 2022-001 to comply with the other listed SB 1383 non-exempt
components and to maintain eligibility for future grant funds.

FISCAL IMPACT

The City will receive $20,000 to implement, regulate, inspect and maintain an Edible Food
Recovery Program.

State of California Department of Resources Recycling and
Recovery

SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Program FY 2021-22 - Funding Estimates
Jurisdiction Name Estimated Funding Amount

Sacramento

Citrus Heights $ 116,192
Elk Grove $ 234,644
Folsom $ 108,968
Galt $ 35,275
Isleton $ 20,000
Rancho Cordova $ 105,504
Sacramento $ 677,363
Sacramento County $ 775,495

RECOMMENDATION

Staff is recommending that the City Council adopt Ordinance 2022-001 compliance with
mandatory Senate Bill 1383 and to receive funding for the Edible Food Recovery Program and
any future grant funds.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 2022-001 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Isleton Compliance
with Mandatory SB 1383 Non-Exempt Components Edible Food Program Requirements,
CalGreen Recycling and Reporting Requirements
2. Calrecycle Jurisdiction Food Recovery Programs

Prepared by: Diana O’Brien, Administrative Assigfant

Reviewed by: Charles Bergson, City Managa\k\
Submitted by: Yvonne Zepeda, Deputy City Clerk™.




ORDINANCE 2022-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ISLETON
COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY SB1383 NON-EXEMPT COMPONENTS
EDIBLE FOOD PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS, CALGREEN RECYCLING
REQUIREMENTS AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

WHEREAS, the City o f ISLETON, California ("City") is a municipal corporation, duly
organized under the constitution and laws of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 939 of 1989, the California Integrated Waste Management Act
of 1989 (California Public Resources Code Section 40000, et seq., as amended,
supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time), requires cities and counties to
reduce, reuse, and recycle (including composting) solid waste generated in their jurisdictions
to the maximum extent feasible before any incineration or landfill disposal of waste, to
conserve water, energy, and other natural resources, and to protect the environment; and

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 341 of 2011 places requirements on businesses and multi-family
property owners that generate a specified threshold amount of solid waste to arrange for
recycling services and requires the City to implement a mandatory commercial recycling
program; and

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 1826 of 2014 requires businesses and multi-family property
owners that generate a specified threshold amount of solid waste, recycling, and organic
waste per week to arrange for recycling services for that waste, requires the City to
implement a recycling program to divert organic waste from businesses subject to the law,
and requires the City to implement a mandatory commercial organics recycling program; and

WHEREAS, SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, requires
the Califormia Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) to develop
regulations to reduce organics in landfills as a source of methane. As adopted by
CalRecycle, these SB 1383 regulations (SB 1383 Regulations) place requirements on multiple
entities including the City, residential households, commercial businesses and business owners,
commercial edible food generators, haulers, self-haulers, food recovery organizations, and
food recovery services to support achievement of statewide organic waste disposal reduction
targets, and

WHEREAS, the SB 1383 Regulations require the City to adopt and enforce an ordinance

or other enforceable mechanism to implement relevant provisions of the SB 1383
Regulations, and

WHEREAS, this Ordinance implements the requirements of AB 341, AB 1826, and the SB
1383 Regulations.

-1- DRAFT Ordinance



THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ISLETON, CALIFORNIA, DOES
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Chapter 5.04 of the of the ISLETON Municipal Code:
Definitions

For the purposes of this Chapter, the following words, terms, phrases, and their derivations
have the meanings given herein. Terms defined elsewhere in Title 7 shall have the same
meanings herein unless expressly defined in this Chapter. When consistent with the context,
words used in the present tense include the future tense, and words in the singular number
include the plural number.

A. "CalRecycle" means California's Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery,
which is the Department designated with responsibility for developing, implementing,
and enforcing SB 1383 Regulations on Cities (and others).

B. "California Code of Regulations” or "CCR" means the State of California Code of
Regulations. CCR references in this Article are preceded with a number that refers to the
relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., "14 CCR" refers to Title 14 of CCR).

C. "City Enforcement Official” means the city manager, or other executive in charge or
their authorized Designec(s) who is/arc partially or wholly responsible for enforcing the
ordinance.

D. "Commercial Business" or "Commercial" means a firm, partnership, proprictorship, joint-
stock company, corporation, or association, whether for-profit or nonprofit, strip mall,
industrial facility, or a multifamily residential dwelling, or as otherwise defined in 14
CCR Section 18982(a)(6). A Multi-Family Residential Dwelling that consists of fewer
than five (5) units is not a Commercial Business for purposes of implementing this
Chapter.

E. "Commercial  Edible Food Generator” includes a Tier One or a Tier Two
Commercial Edible Food Generator as defined in Sections 7-1B-1(00Q) and 7-1B-
I(PPP) of this Chapter or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73)
and (a)(74). For the purposes of this definition, Food Recovery Organizations and Food
Recovery Services are not Commercial Edible Food Generators pursuant to 14 CCR
Section 18982(a)(7).

F. "Compliance Review" means a review of records by the City to determine compliance
with this Chapter.

G. "Community Composting”" means any activity that composts green material, agricultural
material, food matenal, and vegetative food material, alone or in combination, and the
total amount of feedstock and Compost on-site at any one time does not exceed 100
cubic yards and 750 square feet, as specified in 14 CCR Section 17855(a)(4); or, as
otherwise defined by 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(8).

-2 DRAFT Ordinance



. "Compost" has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 17896.2(a)(4), which stated,
as of the effective date of this Article, that "Compost” means the product resulting from
the controlled biological decomposition of organic Solid Wastes that are Source
Separated from the municipal Solid Waste stream, or which are separated at a
centralized facility.

"Compostable Plastics” or "Compostable Plastic" means plastic materials that meet
the ASTM D6400 standard for compostability, or as otherwise described in
14 CCR Scction 18984.1(a)(1)(A) or 18984.2(a)(1)(C).

"Container Contamination” or "Contaminated Container" means a container, regardless
of color, that contains Prohibited Container Contaminants, or as otherwise defined
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(55).

"C&D" means construction and demolition debris.

. "Designee” means an entity that the City contracts with or otherwise arranges to carry
out any of the City's responsibilities of this Article as authorized in 14 CCR Section
18981.2. A Designee may be a government entity, a hauler, a private entity, or a
combination of those entities.

. "Direct Service Provider” means a person, company, agency, district, or other entity
that provides a service or services to City pursuant to a contract or other written
agreement or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(17).

. "Edible Food" means food intended for human consumption, or as otherwise

defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18). For the purposes of this Chapter or as
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18), "Edible Food" is not Solid Waste
if it is recovered and not discarded. Nothing in this Chapter or in 14 CCR, Division
7, Chapter 12 requires or authorizes the Recovery of Edible Food that does not meet the
food safety requirements of the California Retail Food Code,

"Enforcement Action" means an action of the City to address non-compliance with this
Chapter including, but not limited to, issuing administrative citations, fines, penalties,
or using other remedies.

"Excluded Waste" means hazardous substance, hazardous waste, infectious waste,
designated waste, volatile, corrosive, medical waste, infectious, regulated radioactive
waste, and toxic substances or material that facility operator(s), which receive materials
from the City

and its generators, reasonably believe(s) would, as a result of or upon acceptance,
transfer, processing, or disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal law,
regulation, or ordinance, including: land use restrictions or conditions, waste that
cannot be disposed of in Class Il landfills or accepted at the facility by permit
conditions, waste that in City's, or its Designee's reasonable opinion would present a
significant risk to human health or the environment, cause a nuisance or otherwise
create or expose City, or its Designee, to potential liability; but not including de
minimis volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount normally found in

-3 DRAFT Ordinance



Single-Family or Multi-Family Solid Waste after implementation of programs for the
safe collection, processing, recycling, treatment, and disposal of battcrics and paint
in compliance with Sections 41500 and 41802 of the California Public Resources
Code. Excluded Waste does not include used motor oil and filters, household batteries,
universal wastes, electronic waste, and/or latex paint when such materials are defined
as allowable materials for collection through the City's collection programs and the
generator or customer has properly placed the materials for collection pursuant to
instructions provided by City or its Designee for collection services.

Q. "Food Distributor” means a company that distributes food to entities including, but not
limited to, Supermarkets and Grocery Stores, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR
Section 18982(a)(22).

R. "Food Facility" has the same meaning as in Section 113789 of the
Health and Safety Code.

S. "Food Recovery" means actions to collect and distribute food for human consumption
that otherwise would be disposed, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section
18982(a)(24).

T. "Food Recovery Organization” means an entity that engages in the collection or receipt
of Edible Food from Commercial Edible Food Generators and distributcs that Edible
Food to the public for Food Recovery either directly or through other entities or as
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25), including, but not limited to:

a) A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code;

b) A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the
Health and Safety code; and

¢) A nonprofit charitable temporary food facility as defined in Section
113842 of the Health and Safety Code.

A Food Recovery Organization is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the
purposes of this Chapter and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) for Food Recovery Organization
differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) shall
apply to this Chapter.

U. "Food Recovery Service" means a person or entity that collects and transports Edible
Food from a Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery Organization or
other entities for Food Recovery, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section
18982(a)(26). A Food Recovery Service is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator
for the purposes of this Chapter and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter
12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).

-4 DRAFT Ordinance



V.

"Food Scraps" means all food such as, but not limited to, fruits, vegetables, meat,
poultry, seafood, shellfish, bones, rice, beans, pasta, bread, cheese, fats, oils, grease,
and eggshells.

. "Food Service Provider" means an entity primarily engaged in providing food services

to institutional, governmental, Commercial, or industrial locations of others based on
contractual arrangements with these types of organizations, or as otherwise defined in 14
CCR Section 18982(a)(27).

. "Food-Soiled Paper" is compostable paper material that has come in contact with food

or liquid, such as, but not limited to, compostable paper plates, paper coffee cups,
napkins, pizza boxes, and milk cartons.

"Food Waste" means Food Scraps.

"Gray Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(28) and shall
be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Gray Container Waste. The body
and lid of the 'Gray Container’ is black in color for 35, 64, or 95-gallon residential and
commercial Solid Waste carts. The body of the 'Gray Container’ is blue in color and

the lid of the container is black in color for commercial 2, 3, 4, and 6 cubic yard Solid
Waste bins.

(AA) "Grocery Store" means a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned food,

dry goods; fresh fruits and vegetables; fresh meats, fish, and poultry; and any area that
is not separately owned within the store where the food is prepared and served,
including a bakery, deli, and meat and seafood departments, or as otherwise defined
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(30).

(BB)"Inspection" means a site visit where the City reviews records, containers, and an

entity's collection, handling, recycling, or landfill disposal of Organic Waste or
Edible Food handling to determine if the entity is complying with requirements set
forth in this Chapter, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(35).

(CC) "Large Event" means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a

flea market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and
serves an average of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at
a location that includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned
park, parking lot, golf course, street system, or other open space when being used
for an event. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) differs from this
definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a){38) shall apply to this Chapter.

(DD) "Large Venue" means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an

average of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of
operation of the venue facility. For purposes of this Chapter and implementation of
14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a venue facility includes, but is not limited to,
a public, nonprofit, or privately owned or operated stadium, ampbhitheater, arena, hall,
amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo, aquarium, airport, racetrack, horse

-5 DRAFT Ordinance



track, performing arts center, fairground, museum, theater, or other public attraction
facility. For purposes of this Article and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7,
Chapter 12, a site under common ownership or control that includes more than one
Large Venue that is contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a single Large
Venue. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a){39) differs from this definition, the
definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) shall apply to this Chapter.

(EE) "Local Education Agency" means a school district, charter school, or county office of
education that is not subject to the control of city or county regulations related to
Solid Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(40).

(FF) "Multi-Family Residential Dwelling" or "Multi-Family" means of, from, or pertaining
to residential premises with five (5) or more dwelling units. Multi-Family premises
do not include hotels, motels, or other transient occupancy facilities, which are
considered Commercial Businesses.

(GG) "MWELQ" refers to the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance MWELO), 23
CCR, Division 2, Chapter 2.7.

(HH) "Non-Compostable Paper” includes but is not limited to paper that is coated in a plastic
material that will not breakdown in the composting process, or as otherwise defined in
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(41).

(II) "Non-Local Entity" means the following entities that arc not subject to the City's
enforcement authority, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(42):

I. Federal facilities located within the boundaries of the City, including the
ISLETON Post Office building.

2. State agencies located within the boundaries of the City, including all
Public schoo! locations.

(17} "Non-Organic Recyclables" means non-putrescible and non-hazardous recyclable
wastes including but not limited to bottles, cans, metals, plastics and glass, or as
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(43).

(KK) "Notice of Violation (NOV)" means a notice that a violation has occurred that includes
a compliance date to avoid an action to seek penalties, or as otherwise defined in
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(45) or further explained in 14 CCR Section 18995.4.

(LL) "Organic Waste" means Solid Wastes containing material originated from living
organisms and their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to food,
green material, landscape and pruning waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber,
wood, paper products, printing and writing paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and
sludges or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(46). Biosolids and
digestate are as defined by 14 CCR Section 18982(a).

(MM) "Organic Waste” means Solid Wastes containing material originated from living

-6 DRAFT Ordinance



organisms and their metabolic waste products, including but not limited.

(NN) "Organic Waste Generator" means a person or entity that is responsible for the initial
Creation of Organic Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(48).

{O0) "Paper Products" include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, cartons,
wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, tissue, and
toweling, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51).

(PP) "Printing and Writing Papers" include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic, watermark,
cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove envelopes, manila
envelopes, book paper, note pads, writing tablets, newsprint, and other uncoated
writing papers, posters, index cards, calendars, brochures, reports, magazines, and
publications, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section18982(a)(54).

(QQ) "Prohibited Container Contaminants” means the following: (a) discarded materials
placed in the Blue Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated
Recyclable Materials for the City's Blue Container; (b) discarded materials placed in
the Green Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Green
Container Organic Waste for the City's Green Container; (¢) discarded materials placed
in the Gray Container that are acceptable Source Separated Recyclable Materials and/or
Source Separated Green Container Organic Wastes to be placed in City's Green
Container and/or Blue Container; and, (d) Excluded Waste placed in any container.

(RR) "Recovered Organic Waste Products” means products made from California, landfill-
diverted recovered Organic Waste processed in a permitted or otherwise authorized
facility, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(60).

(5S) "Recovery" means any activity or process described in 14 CCR Section 18983.1(b),
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(49).

(TT) "Recycled-Content Paper" mecans Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper that
consists of at least 30 percent, by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber, or as otherwise
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(61).

(WW) "Regional Agency" means regional agency as defined in Public Resources Code
Section 40181.

(XX) "Regional or County Agency Enforcement Official" means a regional or county agency
enforcement official, designated by the City with responsibility for enforcing the
ordinance in conjunction or consultation with City Enforcement Official.

(YY) "Restaurant” means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of food and
drinks for on-premises or immediate consumption, or as otherwise defined in
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(64).

ZZ) "Route Review" means a visual Inspection of containers along a Hauler Route for the
P g
purpose of determining Container Contamination, and may include mechanical

-7 DRAFT Ordinance



Inspection methods such as the use of cameras, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR
Section 18982(a){(65).

(AAA)"SB 1383" means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Govemor on
September 19, 2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7 and
39730.8 to the Health and Safety Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing with
Section 42652) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, establishing
methane emissions reduction targets in a Statewide effort to reduce emissions of short-
lived climate pollutants as amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time
to time.

(BBB) "SB 1383 Eligible Mulch” means mulch eligible to meet the Annual Recovered Organic
Waste Product Procurement Target, pursuant to 14 CCR Chapter 12 of Division 7.
This SB 1383 Eligible Mulch shall meet the following conditions for the duration of
the applicable procurement compliance year, as specified by 14 CCR Section
18993.1(f)(4):

. Produced at one of the following facilities:

(a) A compostable material handling operation or facility as defined in 14 CCR
Section 17852(a)(12), that is permitted or authorized under 14 CCR Division
7, other than a chipping and grinding operation or facility as defined in 14
CCR Section 17852(a)(10);

(b) A transfer/processing facility or transfer/processing operation as defined in 14
CCR Sections 17402(a)(30) and (31), respectively, that is permitted or
authorized under 14 CCR Division 7; or,

(c) A solid waste landfill as defined in Public Resources Code Section 40195.1
that is permitted under 27 CCR Division 2.

2. Meet or exceed the physical contamination, maximum metal concentration, and
pathogen density standards for land application specified in 14 CCR Sections
17852(a)(24.5)(A)1 through 3, as enforced by Section 6-3-708(a).

(CCC) "SB 1383 Regulations” or "SB 1383 Regulatory” means or refers to, for the
purposes of this Chapter, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants: Organic Waste
Reduction regulations developed by CalRecycle and adopted in 2020 that created 14
CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 and amended portions of regulations of 14 CCR and
27 CCR.

(DDD) "State" means the State of California.
(EEE) "Supermarket” means a full-line, self-service retail store with gross annual sales of two
million dollars ($2,000,000), or more, and which sells a line of dry grocery, canned

goods, or nonfood items and some perishable items, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR
Section 18982(a)(71).

-8 DRAFT Ordinance



(FFF) "Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator" means a Commercial Edible Food
Generator that is one of the following:

b T

Supermarket.

Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet.
Food Service Provider.

Food Distributor.

Wholesale Food Vendor.

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a){(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible
Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section
18982(a)(73) shall apply to this Chapter.

(GGQ) "Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator" means a Commercial Edible Food
Generator that is one of the following:

1.

e

7.

Restaurant with 250 or more secats, or a total facility size equal to or greater than
5,000 square feet.

Hotel with an on-site Food Facility and 200 or more rooms.

Health facility with an on-site Food Facility and 100 or more beds.

Large Venue,

Large Event.

A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria facility size
equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet.

A Local Education Agency facility with an on-site Food Facility.

[f the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible
Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section
18982(a)(74) shall apply to this Chapter.

(HHH) "Wholesale Food Vendor" means a business or establishment engaged in the merchant
wholesale distribution of food, where food (including fruits and vegetables) is
received, shipped, stored, prepared for distribution to a retailer, warchouse, distributor,
or other destination, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 189852(a)(76).

Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators

A. Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply with the requirements of this
Section 7-1 B -5 commencing January 1, 2022, and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food
Generators must comply commencing January 1, 2024, pursuant to 14 CCR Section

18991.3.

B. Large Venue or Large Event operators not providing food services, but allowing for food
to be provided by others, shall require Food Facilities operating at the Large Venue or
Large Event to comply with the requirements of this Section, commencing January 1,

2024.

C. Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the following requirements:

-9 DRAFT Ordinance



. Arrange to recover the maximum amount of Edible Food that would otherwise
be disposed.

. Contract with, or enter into a written agreement with, Food Recovery Organizations
or Food Recovery Services for: (a) the collection of Edible Food for Food Recovery;
or, (b) acceptance of the Edible Food that the Commercial Edible Food Generator self-
hauls to the Food Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.

. Shall not intentionally spoil Edible Food that is capable of being recovered by a Food
Recovery Organization or a Food Recovery Service.

. Allow City's designated enforcement entity or designated third party enforcement
entity to access the premises and review records pursuant tol4 CCR Section 18991.4.

. Keep records that include the following information, or as otherwise specified in 14 CCR
Section 18991.4:

(a) A list of each Food Recovery Service or organization that collecis or receives
its Edible Food pursuant to a contract or written agreement established under 14
CCR Section 18991.3(b).

(b) A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under 14 CCR Section
18991.3(b).

(c) A record of the following information for each of those Food Recovery
Services or Food Recovery Organizations:

(1) The name, address and contact information of the Food Recovery Service
or Food Recovery Organization.

(2) The types of food that will be collected by or self-hauled to the Food
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization.

(3) The established frequency that food will be collected or self-hauled.

(4) The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per month,
collected or self-hauled to a Food Recovery Service or Food
Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.

. No later than March 31st of each year, commencing no later than February 1, 2023
for Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators and February 1, 2025 for Tier
Two Commercial Edible Food Generators, provide an annual Food Recovery report
to the City that includes the following information;

(a) A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under 14 CCR Section
18991.3(b).

-10 DRAFT Ordinance



(b) The quantity of food, measured in annual pounds recovered, collected or self-
hauled to a Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization for Food
Recovery.

(c) The name, address and contact information of the Food Recovery Service or Food
Recovery Organization.

(d) Nothing in this Article shall be construed to limit or conflict with the
protections provided by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of
2017, the Federal Good Samaritan Act, or share table and school food donation
guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 557 of 2017 (approved by the Governor of the
State of California on September 25, 2017, which added Article 13 [commencing
with Section 49580] to Chapter 9 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the
Education Code, and to amend Section 114079 of the Health and Safety Code,
relating to food safety, asamended, supplemented, superseded and replaced from
time to time).

Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services

A. Food Recovery Services collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from Commercial
Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR
Section 18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records, or as otherwise specified by 14
CCR Section 18991.5(a)(1):

The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial Edibie Food
Generator from which the service collects Edible Food.

The quantity in pounds of Edible Food collected from each Commercial Edible Food
Generator per month.

. The quantity in pounds of Edible Food transported to each Food Recovery Organization

per month.

The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery Organization that
the Food Recovery Service transports Edible Food to for Food Recovery.

B. Food Recovery Organizations collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from
Commercial Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement established
under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records, or as otherwise
specified by 14 CCR Section 18991.5(a)(2):

1.

The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial Edible Food
Generator from which the organization receives Edible Food.
The quantity in pounds of Edible Food received from each Commercial Edible Food
Generator per month.

-11 DRAFT Ordinance



3. The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery Service that

the organization receives Edible Food from for Food Recovery.

C. No later than March 3ist of each year, commencing March 31, 2023 Food Recovery
Organizations and Food Recovery Services that have their primary address physically
located in the City and contract with or have written agreements with one or more Commercial
Edible Food Generators pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) shall report to the City the
total pounds of Edible Food recovered in the previous calendar year from the Tier One
and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators they have established a contract or
written agreement with pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b).

1.

Food Recovery Capacity Planning

(a) Food Recovery Services and Food Recovery Organizations: In order to support

Edible Food Recovery capacity planning assessments or other studies conducted by
the City or its designated entity, Food Recovery Services and Food Recovery
Organizations operating in the City shall provide information and consultation to
the City, upon request, regarding existing, or proposed new or expanded, Food
Recovery capacity that could be accessed by the City and its Commercial Edible
Food Generators. A Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization
contacted by the City shall respond to such request for information within 60 days,
unless a shorter timeframe is otherwise specified by the City.

Requirements for Haulers and Facility Operators

A. Requirements for Haulers

L.

Exclusive franchised hauler providing residential, Commercial, or industrial Organic
Waste collection services to generators within the City's boundaries shall meet the
following requirements and standards as a condition of approval of a contract,
agreement, or other authorization with the City to collect Organic Waste:

(a) Through written notice to the City annually on or before March 15" identify

the facilities to which they will transport Organic Waste including facilities for
Source Separated Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Green Container
Organic Waste.

(b) Transport Source Separated Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Green

Container Organic Waste to a facility, operation, activity, or property that
recovers Organic Waste as defined in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article
2.

(c) Obtain approval from the City to haul Organic Waste, unless it is transporting

Source Separated Organic Waste to a Community Composting site or lawfully
transporting C&D in a manner that complies with 14 CCR Section 18989.1, this
Article, and City's C&D ordinance.

-12 DRAFT Ordinance



B. Requirements for Facility Operators and Community Composting Operations

1.

Owners of facilities, operations, and activities that recover Organic Waste, including,
but not limited to, Compost facilities, in-vessel digestion facilities, and publicly-owned
treatment works shall, upon City request, provide information regarding available and
potential new or expanded capacity at their facilities, operations, and activities,
including information about throughput and permitted capacity necessary for planning
purposes. Entities contacted by the City shall respond within 60 days.

Community Composting operators, upon City request, shall provide information to the
City to support Organic Waste capacity planning, including, but not limited to, an
estimate of the amount of Organic Waste anticipated to be handled at the Community
Composting operation. Entities contacted by the City shall respond within 60 days.

If the material is transported to an entity that does not have scales on-site, or employs
scales incapable of weighing the Self-Hauler's vehicle in a manner that allows it to
determine the weight of materials received, the Self- Hauler is not required to record
the weight of material but shall keep a record of the entities that received the Organic
Waste.

Procurement Requirements for City Departments, Direct Service Providers, and
Vendors

A. Direct Service Providers of landscaping maintenance, renovation, and construction shall:

1.

Use Compost and SB 1383 Eligible Mulch, as practicable, produced from recovered
Organic Waste, for all landscaping renovations, construction, or maintenance performed
for the City, whenever available, and capable of meeting quality standards and criteria
specified. SB 1383 Eligible Mulch used for land application shall comply with 14
CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 12 and must meet or exceed the physical
contamination, maximum metal concentration and pathogen density standards
specified in 14 CCR Section 17852(a)(24.5)(A)(1) through (3).

Keep and provide records of Procurement of Recovered Organic Waste Products (either
through purchase or acquisition) to City, upon completion of projects. Information to be
provided shall include:

(a) Through written notice to the City annually on or before March 15™ identify
the facilities to which they will transport Organic Waste including

(b) General description of how and where the product was used and if applicable,
applied,;

(c) Source of product, including name, physical location, and contact information
for each entity, operation, or facility from whom the Recovered Organic Waste

Products were procured;

-13 DRAFT Ordinance



(d) Type of product;
(e) (d) Quantity of each product, and

(f) Invoice or other record demonstrating purchase or procurement.

A. All vendors providing Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper shall:

1.

If fitness and quality are equal, provide Recycled-Content Paper Products and Recycled-
Content Printing and Writing Paper that consists of at least 30 percent, by fiber weight,
postconsumer fiber instead of non- recycled products whenever recycled Paper Products
and Printing and Writing Paper are available at the same or lesser total cost than non-
recycled items or at a total cost of no more than 10% of the total cost for non-recycled
items.

Provide Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper that mcet Federal Trade
Commission recyclability standard as defined in 16 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Section 260.12.

Certify in writing, under penalty of perjury, the minimum percentage of postconsumer
material in the Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper offered or sold to the
City. This certification requirement may be waived if the percentage of postconsumer
material in the Paper Products, Printing and Writing Paper, or both can be verified by a
product label, catalog, invoice, or a manufacturer or vendor internet website,

Certify in writing, on invoices or receipts provided, that the Paper Products and Printing
and Writing Paper offered or sold to the City is eligible to be labeled with an unqualified
recyclable label as defined in 16 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 260.12 (2013).

Provide records to the City's Recovered Organic Waste Product procurement recordkeeping
staff, in accordance with the City's Recycled- Content Paper procurement policy(ies) of all
Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper purchases within thirty (30) days of the
purchase (both recycled-content and non-recycled content, if any is purchased) made by
any division or department or employee of the City. Records shall include a copy
(clectronic or paper) of the invoice or other documentation of purchase, written
certifications as required in Sections 6-3-708(b)(3) and 6-3-708(b)(4) of this Article for
recycled-content purchases, purchaser name, quantity purchased, date purchased, and
recycled content (including products that contain none), and if non- recycled content
Paper Products or Printing and Writing Papers are provided, include a description of why
Recycled-Content Paper Products or Printing and Writing Papers were not provided.

Compliance with CALGreen Recycling Requirements

A, Persons applying for a permit from the City for new construction and building additions and
alternations shall comply with the requirements of this Section and all required components
of the California Green Building Standards Code, 24 CCR, Part 11, known as CALGreen, as
amended, if its project is covered by the scope of CALGreen. if the requirements of

-14 DRAFT Ordinance



CALGreen are more stringent than the requirements of this Section, the CALGreen
requirements shall apply.

B. Project applicants shall refer to City's building and/or planning code for complete
CALGreen requirements.

C. For projects covered by CALGreen, the applicants must, as a condition of the City's permit
approval, comply with the following:

I. Where five (5) or more Multi-Family dwelling units are constructed on a building site,
provide readily accessible areas that serve occupants of all buildings on the site and are
identified for the storage and collection of Blue Container and Green Container materials,
consistent with the three* container collection program offered by the City, or comply with
provision of adequate space for recycling for Multi-Family and Commercial premises
pursuant to Sections 4.408.1, 4.410.2, 5.408.1, and 5.410.1 of the California Green Building
Standards Code, 24 CCR, Part 11 as amended provided amended requirements are more
stringent than the CALGreen requirements for adequate recycling space effective January
1, 2020.

2. New Commercial construction or additions resulting in more than 30% of the floor
arca shall provide readily accessible areas identified for the storage and collection of
Blue Container and Green Container materials, consistent with the three-container
collection program offered by the City’s franchise waste hauler, or shall comply with
provision of adequate space for recycling for Multi-Family and Commercial premises
pursuant to Sections 4.408.1, 4.410.2, 5.408.1, and 5.410.1 of the California Green
Building Standards Code, 24 CCR, Part 11 as amended provided amended requirements
are more stringent than the CALGreen requirements for adequate recycling space
effective January 1, 2020.

3. Comply with CALGreen requirements and applicable law related to management of
C&D, including diversion of Organic Waste in C&D from disposal. Comply with City's
C&D regulations, and all written and published City policies and/or administrative

guidelines regarding the collection, recycling, diversion, tracking, and/or reporting of
C&D.

Model Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance Requirements

A. Property owners or their building or landscape designers, including anyone requiring a
building or planning permit, plan check, or landscape design review from the City, who
are constructing a new Single-Family, Multi-Family, public, institutional, or Commercial
project with a landscape area greater than 500 square feet, or rehabilitating an existing
landscape with a total landscape area greater than 2,500 square feet, shall comply with
Sections 492.6(a)(3)}{B) (C), (D), and (G) of the MWELQ, including sections related to
use of Compost and mulch as delineated in this Section.

The following Compost and mulch use requirements that are part of the MWELO are now also
included as requirements of this Chapter.

Property owners or their building or landscape designers that meet the threshold for MWELO
-15 DRAFT Ordinance



compliance outlined in 6-3-710(a) above shall:

1. Comply with Sections 492.6 (a)(3}(BXC),(D) and (G) of the MWELOQ, which requires
the submittal of a landscape design plan with a soil preparation, mulch, and amendments
section to include the following:

(a) For landscape installations, Compost at a rate of a minimum of four cubic yards
per 1,000 square feet of permeable area shall be. Incorporated to a depth of six
(6) inches into the soil. Soils with greater than six percent (6%) organic matter
in the top six (6) inches of soil are exempt from adding Compost and tilling.

(b) For landscape installations, a minimum three- (3-) inch layer of mulch shall be
applied on all exposed soil surfaces of planting areas except in turf areas, creeping
or rooting groundcovers, or direct seeding applications where mulch is
contraindicated. To provide habitat for beneficial insects and other wildlife up
to five percent (5%) of the landscape area may be left without mulch. Designated
insect habitat must be included in the landscape design plan as such.

(¢) Organic mulch materials made from recycled or post-consumer materials shall take
precedence over inorganic materials or virgin forest products unless the recycled
post-consumer organic products are not locally available. Organic mulches are not
required where prohibited by local fuel modification plan guidelines or other
applicable local ordinances.

2. The MWELO compliance items listed in this Section are not an inclusive list of MWELQ
requirements; therefore, property owners or their building or landscape designers that
meet the threshold for MWELO compliance outlined in this Section shall consult the
full MWELO for all requirements.

If, after the adoption of this Article, the California Department of Water Resources, or its
successor agency, amends 23 CCR, Division 2, Chapter 2.7, Sections 492.6(a)(3)(B) (C),
(D}, and (G) of the MWELO September 15, 2015 requirecments in a manner that requires the
City to incorporate the requirements of an updated MWELO in a local ordinance, and the
amended requirements include provisions more stringent than those required in this
Section, the revised requirements of 23CCR, Division 2, Chapter 2.7 shall be enforced.

Inspections and Investigations by City

A,

City representatives and/or its designated entity, including Designees, are authorized to
conduct Inspections and investigations, at random or otherwise, of any collection container,
collection vehicle loads, or transfer, processing, or disposal facility for materials collected
from generators, or Source Separated materials to confirm compliance with this Article by
Organic Waste Generators, Commercial Businesses (including Multi-Family Residential
Dwellings), property owners, Commercial Edible Food Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers,
Food Recovery Services, and Food Recovery Organizations, subject to applicable laws. This
Section does not allow City to enter the interior of a private residential property for Inspection.

Regulated entity shall provide or arrange for access during all Inspections (with the exception
of residential property interiors) and shall cooperate with the City's employee or its
designated entity/Designee during such Inspections and investigations. Such Inspections and

-16 DRAFT Ordinance



investigations may include confirmation of proper placement of materials in containers,
Edible Food Recovery activities, records, or any other requirement of this Article described
herein. Failure to provide or arrange for: (a) access to an entity's premises; or (b) access to
records for any Inspection or investigation is a violation of this Article and may result in
penalties described.

C. Any records obtained by a City during its Inspections and other reviews shall be subject
to the requirements and applicable disclosure exemptions of the Public Records Act as set
forth in Government Code Section 6250 et seq.

D. City representatives, its designated entity, and/or Designee are authorized to conduct any
Inspections or other investigations as reasonably necessary to further the goals of this Article,
subject to applicable laws.

E. City shall receive written complaints from persons regarding an entity that may be
potentially  non-compliant with SB 1383 Regulations, including  receipt of anonymous
complaints.

Enforcement

A. Violation of any provision of this Article shall constitute grounds for issuance of a Notice
of Violation and assessment of a fine by a City Enforcement Official or representative.
Enforcement Actions under this Chapter are issuance of an administrative citation and
assessment of a fine. The City's procedures on imposttion of administrative fines sct
forth in Title 1, Chapter 4 through Chapter 4 B are hereby incorporated in their
entirety, as modified from time to time, and shall govern the imposition, enforcement,
collection, and review of administrative citations issued to enforce this Chapter and any
rule or regulation adopted pursuant to this Chapter, except as otherwise indicated in this
Chapter.

B. Other remedies allowed by law may be used, including civil action or prosecution as
misdemeanor or infraction. City may pursue civil actions in the California courts to seek
recovery of unpaid administrative citations. City may choose to delay court action until such
time as a sufficiently large number of violations, or cumulative size of violations exist
such that court action is a reasonable use of City staff and resources.

C. Responsible Entity for Enforcement

1. Enforcement pursuant to this Chapter may be undertaken by the City Enforcement Official,
which may be the city manager, the development services director, or their designated
entity, legal counsel, or combination thereof.

2. Enforcement may also be undertaken by a Regional or County Agency Enforcement
Official, designated by the City, in consultation with City Enforcement Official.

(a) City Enforcement Official(s) and Regional or County Agency Enforcement
Official will interpret ordinance; determine the applicability of waivers, if
violation(s) have occurred; implement Enforcement Actions; and, determine if
compliance standards are met.

-17 DRAFT Ordinance



(b) City Enforcement Official(s) and Regional or County Agency Enforcement
Official may issue Notices of Violation(s).

D. Process for Enforcement

L

City Enforcement Officials or Regional or County Enforcement Officials and/or their
Designee will monitor compliance with the ordinance randomly and through Compliance
Reviews, Route Reviews, investigation of complaints, and an Inspection program.
Section 7-1B-12 establishes City's right to conduct Inspections and investigations.

City may issue an official notification to notify regulated entities of its obligations under
the ordinance.

City shall issue a Notice of Violation requiring compliance within 60 days of issuance
of the notice.

Absent compliance by the respondent within the deadline set forth in the Notice of
Violation, City shall commence an action to impose penalties, via an administrative
citation and fine, pursuant to the City's Administrative Citation ordinance in Title I,
Chapter 4 through Chapter 4B.

Notices shall be sent to "owner" at the official address of the owner maintained by the
tax collector for the City or if no such address is available, to the owner at the address of
the dwelling or Commercial property or to the party responsible for paying for the
collection services, depending upon available information.

Penalty Amounts for Types of Violations Consistent with Section 1-4-5, the penalty
levels are as follows:

(a) For a first violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $100 per violation.

(b) For a second violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $200 per
violation,

() For a third or subsequent violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $500
per violation.

Compliance Deadline Extension Considerations

The City may extend the compliance deadlines set forth in a Notice of Violation
issued in accordance with Section 7-1B-13 if it finds that there are extenuating
circumstances beyond the control of the respondent that make compliance within the
deadlines impracticable, including the following;

. Acts of God such as earthquakes, wildfires, flooding, and other emergencies or
natural disasters;

. Delays in obtaining discretionary permits or other government agency
-18 DRAFT Ordinance



approvals; or,

. Deficiencies in Organic Waste recycling infrastructure or Edible Food Recovery
capacity and the City is under a corrective action plan with CalRecycle
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18996.2 due to those deficiencies.

E. Appeals Process

Consistent with Section 1-4A-30 through 1-4A-48, persons receiving an administrative
citation containing a penalty for an uncorrected violation may request a hearing to appeal the
citation. A hearing will be held only ifit is requested within the time prescribed and consistent
with City's procedures in the City's codes for appeals of administrative citations. Evidence
may be presented at the hearing. The City will appoint a hearing officer who shall conduct
the hearing and issue a final written order.

F. Education Period for Non-Compliance

Beginning January 1, 2022 and through December 31, 2023, City or its Designee will
conduct Inspections, Route Reviews or waste evaluations, and Compliance Reviews,
depending upon the type of regulated entity, to determine compliance, and if City determines
that Organic Waste Generator, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One Commercial Edible Food
Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service, or other entity is not in
compliance, it shall provide educational materials to the entity describing its obligations
under this Article and a notice that compliance is required by January 1, 2022, and that
violations may be subject to administrative civil penalties starting on January 1, 2024,

G. Civil Penalties for Non-Compliance

Beginning January 1, 2024, if the City determines that an Organic Waste Generator, Self-
Hauler, hauler, Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery
Organization, Food Recovery Service, or other entity is not in compliance with this
Article, it shall document the noncompliance or violation, issue a Notice of Violation,
and take Enforcement Action pursuant to Section 7-1B-13, as needed.

Effective Date
This Chapter shall be effective 30 days from the date of passage.

SECTION 2. Chapter 5.04 adding Compliance with CalGreen Recycling Requirements Persons
applying for a permit from the City for new construction and building additions and
alternations shall also comply with the requirements of Section 7-1B-10 (Compliance with
CALGreen Recycling Requirements) found in Chapter 1B (Organic Waste Disposal
Reduction) of Title 7 (Health and Sanitation)."

SECTION 3. Chapter 5.04 the Isleton Municipal Code is hereby amended to add Section
Compost and Mulch Use Requirements.

Property owners or their building or landscape designers, including anyone requiring a building

-19 DRAFT Ordinance



or planning permit, plan check, or landscape design review from the City, who are constructing
a new Single-Family, Multi-Family, public, institutional, or Commercial project with a
landscape area greater than 500 square feet, or rehabilitating an existing landscape with a total
landscape area greater than 2,500 square feet shall comply with the requirements of Section
7-1B-11 (Model Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance Requirements) found in Chapter 1B
(Organic Waste Disposal Reduction) of Title 7 (Health and Sanitation)."

SECTION 4. CEQA. The City Council finds that this Ordinance is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Sections
15061(b)(3) and 15308 on the grounds that it can be seen with certainty that the enhanced
solid waste regulations, as provided for in this Ordinance will not have a significant effect on
the environment and that the new requirements, which strengthen requirements for the
handling of solid waste, represent actions by a regulatory agency (the City) for the protection
of the environment.

SECTION 3. Severability. If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or
portion of this Ordinance for any reason is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision
of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have
adopted this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections,
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or
unconstitutional.

SECTION 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty (30) days
after its passage.

SECTION 7. Publication. The Deputy City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance
and shall post or publish this Ordinance as required by law.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the
City of ISLETON this day of , 2021, by the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Absent:
Obstain:

Eric Pene, Mayor

ATTEST:

Yvonne Zepeda, Deputy City Clerk

=20 DRAFT Ordinance



City Of ISleton DATE: May 10, 2022

City Council ITEM#: 7.A
Staff Report CATEGORY: Old Business

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION CUP 01-22 AND DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT DA 2022-01, 402 JACKSON BLVD,
WTO ESSENTIALS, INC., APPLICANT

SUMMARY

The public hearing and this item was continued for further consideration to this meeting, with an
amended development agreement. Details of the revised terms of the agreement will be
presented in more details at the meeting. Attached is the amended agreement. Everything else
regarding this project, including the subject conditional use permit, remain the same as
recommended by staff at the April 26, meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

. Adopt City Council Resolution 14-22 approving Conditional Use Permit Application
CUP 01-22 (Attachment B); and
. Conduct First Reading in title only of Ordinance 2022-004 approving Development

Agreement DA 2022-01 (Attachment C),
. Direct Staff to place this item for second reading of ordinance for the next regular
meeting of the City Council for May 24, 2022,

ATTACHMENTS

. April 26, 2022, City Council Staff Report

. City Council Resolution 2022-14-22 Approving Use Permit CUP 01-22

. Ordinance 2022-004 Adopting Development Agreement DA 2022-01 (as amended to
May 10, 2022)

. Planning Commission Staff Report

. Planning Commission Resolution PC 01-22

. Applicants Response to Planning Commissioner Comments

Submitted by: Charles Bergson, City Manage




GO A T RDSY YL R 2L AT 'ﬁ
{

1‘
hl
.
=

3
3 .
) ':.




Attachment A

City of Isleton e

City Council ITEM#: 7.A

Staff RCpOI't CATEGORY: New Business

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION CUP 01-22 AND DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT DA 2022-01, 402 JACKSON BLVD,
WTO ESSENTIALS, INC., APPLICANT

SUMMARY

WTO Essentials, Inc. dba Friendly Farms (Charles Smith and Darrin Gatto, Owners), have
submitted an application for a conditional use permit ("CUP") to occupy a 4,200 square foot
section of an existing 6,800 square foot commercial building located at 402 Jackson Boulevard
to operate a cannabis manufacturing and distribution business. The property is owned by Delta
Boyz Enterprises, LLC, who has a lease agreement with applicant. The remaining 2,600 square
foot portion of the building (Building Unit 1) is being used by Delta Agricultural Holdings, LLC,
as another cannabis manufacturing and distribution business (previously approved by the City in
2019 under Conditional Use Permit CUP 10-18 and Development Agreement DA 2018-08).

The City’s regulations and state law require that the City Council consider both the conditional
use permit and the ordinance only after conducting a public hearing. Therefore, if the Council
wishes to consider this project, a public hearing to review the conditional use permit and conduct
a first reading of the ordinance is required to approve the application for the conditional use
permit and adopt the ordinance approving the development agreement.

DISCUSSION

Conditional Use Permit: City regulations require a conditional use permit for any commercial
cannabis facilities operating within the City, such as the operations proposed by the Applicant.
The City has the authority to require the operations to meet various performance standards
through the conditional use permit. The City’s regulations further require Planning Commission
and City Council approval of applications for conditional use permits. The applicant has
submitted Cannabis Conditional Use Permit CUP 2022-01 for consideration by the City.

Development Agreement: City regulations require a development agreement for commercial
cannabis operations such as those proposed by the Applicant. Furthermore, an approved
development agreement is one of the conditions contained in the conditional use permit. The
applicant submitted Development Agreement DA 2022-01 for consideration by the City. The
City’s regulations further require Planning Commission and City Council approval of
development agreement.

Planning Commission Review: The Planning Commission reviewed the planning applications on
April 6, 2022, and continued due to lack of some information in the staff report. The

3



Commission, then, at the continued public hearing on April 13, 2022, adopted Resolution PC 01-
22, recommending that the City Council approve the planning applications. Attachment C
consists to the entire Planning Commission staff report for both the Conditional Use Permit and
Development Agreement which provides a more complete project description and analysis of the
project. Attachment D consist of the Resolution of the Planning Commission. Specific
comments made by various commissioners included the impact the project could have on nearby
residents, such as lighting glare from new exterior lighting, parking and traffic impacts.
Attachment E includes a statement from the applicant addressing some of these concemns.

Environmental Determination: The project qualifies as categorically exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines under Section 15301 for Existing Facilities.
Similar to other commercial cannabis projects in the City, this project is not expected to result in
any significant adverse environmental impacts, such as traffic, air quality, or biology, since the
project is a re-occupancy of an existing building and the proposed use is not expected to increase
impacts as compared to current and previous industrial and commercial of the building and
grounds. The Planning Commission has concurred with this determination. Prior to approving
the project, the Council will need to concur with this determination of environmental exemption.

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact associated with this review and action.
RECOMMENDATION

l. Adopt City Council Resolution 14-22 approving Conditional Use Permit Application
CUP 01-22 (Attachment A); and

2. Conduct First Reading in title only of Ordinance 2022-004 approving Development
Agreement DA 2022-01 (Attachment B).

3. Direct Staff to agendize second reading of ordinance for the next regular meeting of
the City Council for May 10, 2022.



Attachment B
RESOLUTION 14-22

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ISLETON
APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT CUP 01-22

The City Council of the City of Isleton hereby finds as follows:

WHEREAS, on June of 2018, the City Council adopted Ordinances 2018-02, 03, and 08
which provide standards to regulate the use of land for commercial cannabis activities within the
City of Isleton; and

WHEREAS, on January 3, 2022, WTC Essentials, INC., submitted an application for
Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 (“WTO Essentials, INC., Application™) and proposed
Development Agreement DA 2022-01 for cannabis manufacturing and distribution at 402
Jackson Blvd., Unit 2, Isleton, California ("Project”); and

WHEREAS, the WTO Essentials, INC., Application was submitted, in accordance with
the municipal code, for 1) manufacturing (Type 7) and 2} distribution (Type 11) at 402 Jackson
Boulevard, Unit 2, Isleton, CA, owned by Delta Boyz Enterprises, LLC, APN# 157-0073-031
(“Project™); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2307 of Ordinance 2018-08, the Project
location, size, and other development standards of the Project are consistent with state law and
Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the conditions set forth in Ordinance 2018-08, Section 2306(B)-(D) have
been satisfied; and

WHEREAS, the WTO Essentials, INC., Application includes the required information to
demonstrate that the Project is consistent with state law and City ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the City's General Plan designates the Project site as Industrial and
residential, and as conditioned, the proposed use would be consistent with the General Plan;
and

WHEREAS, as conditioned below, the Project complies with the City's Zoning Code; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 1407 of the Zoning Code, the Project’s
proposed land use as conditioned below is consistent with the following:

A. That there are circumstances or conditions applicable to the land, structure or use
which makes the granting of a use permit necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of a substantial property right;

B. That the proposed location is in accordance with the objectives of the zoning ordinance
and the purposes of the district in which the site is located; and

C. That the proposed use will comply with each of the applicable provisions of the zoning
ordinance.



WHEREAS, adequate public noticing was made for the Project in accordance with the
Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the WTO Essentials, INC., Application satisfies all public safety information
requirements in accordance with Ordinances 2306 and 2307, subject to specific conditions of
approval; and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
review pursuant to section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines, as the Project would be located on
an existing developed property with minor tenant improvements proposed; and

WHEREAS, a development agreement has been prepared and will be executed upon final
approval by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has found and the City Council concurs that the
proposed Development Agreement furthers the public health, safety, and general welfare of the
City; and

WHEREAS, Conditional Use Permit 10-18 and Development Agreement DA 2018-08 for
cannabis manufacturing by Delta Agricuitural Holdings, LLC was granted by the City Council
within a portion of the same premises at 402 Jackson Bivd, Unit 1, so the project proposes
cannabis manufacturing and distribution operation by the applicant in Unit 2; and

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2022 , the Planning Commission conducted a continued public
hearing regarding Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 and Development Agreement DA 2022-
01, and has recommended, among other actions, that the City Council approve Use Permit CUP
01-22 and Development Agreement DA 2022-01.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Isleton City Council that:

Section 1.  The City Council adopts the above Recitals as its findings with respect to the
Project; and

Section 2.  The City Council finds that the Project is exempt from CEQA review pursuant to
Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines, as the Project would be located in an existing developed
property with minor tenant improvements proposed.

Section3.  The City Council hereby approves Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 for 1)
cannabis manufacturing, and 2) cannabis distribution at 402 Jackson Blvd, Unit 2, Isleton,
California subject to the following conditions of approval:

Conditions of Approval for Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22

1. This application for Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 was submitted, in accordance with
the Municipal Code, for a cannabis manufacturing and distribution facility, shared with Delta
Agricultural Holdings, LLC (under the same conditions of approval granted under Conditional Use
Permit CUP 10-18} at 402 Jackson Boulevard, in the PDI-Planned Industrial District and the R-
M-3 Multi-Family Residential Zoning District, APN 157-0073-031.

2. The applicant/developer/operator shall agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the
City or its agents, officers and employees from and against any and all claims, actions, demands

6



or proceeding (including damage, attorney fees, and court cost awards) against the City or its
agents, officers, or employees to attach, set aside, void, or annul an approval of the City, advisory
agency, appeal board, or legislative body arising from the applicant/developer/operator's
operations. In providing any defense under this Paragraph, the applicant, business operator,
property owner, developer shall use counsel reasonably acceptable to the City. The City shall
promptly notify the applicant, business operator, property owner, developer of any claim, action,
demands or proceeding and the City shall cooperate fully in the defense. The City may require
that the developer/operator to post a bond, in an amount determined to be sufficient, to satisfy
the above indemnification and defense obligation. Developer/operator understands and
acknowledges that City is under no obligation to defend any claim, action, demand or proceeding
challenging the City's actions with respect to the permit or entitlement.

3. The applicant/developer/operator shall be responsible to pay all sales, use, business and
other applicable taxes, and all license, registration, and other fees and permits required under
federal, state and local law and pursuant to the Development Agreement for the project.

4, The applicant/developer/operator shall cooperate with the City with respect to any
reasonable request to audit the business’ books and records for the purpose of verifying
compliance with the Municipal Code and this Use Permit and related Development Agreement,

including but not limited to a verification of the amount of taxes required to be paid during any
pericd.

5. This Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 shall not be operational unless or untii a
Development Agreement is fully executed by the City and the Development Agreement remains
valid.

6. Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 shall expire and be of no further force and effect if the
developer/operator does not obtain a valid cannabis business regulatory permit for this location
within 12 months from issuance of this use (refer to City Ordinance 2018-07, Section 2307).

7. Secure any required permits from the City Building Department, Fire Department, Police
Department, Sacramento County Air Quality Management District, and/or Sacramento County
Health Department (as applicable) prior to building occupancy or operation.

8. All improvements to the building and project site, per Exhibit A {attached hereto) shall be
completed to the satisfaction of the City within six months or by November 6, 2022 and prior to
issuance of a permanent occcupancy permit.

9. Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 shall be reviewed by the City after 5-years at which
point a determination of extension will be made (refer to City Ordinance 2018-08, Section 2307).

10. Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 shall be subjected to an annual planning review to
ensure that the business practices have stayed within the bounds of the Conditional Use Permit
or other Permitted Uses use (refer to City Ordinance 2018-07, Section 2307).

11.  Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 shall be subject to termination, notwithstanding any
other provision in the City's Municipal Code, if (refer to City Ordinance 2018-07, Section 2307):

a. The owner of the commercial cannabis facility transfers the commercial cannabis
facility to another individual not named in the conditional use permit application as



an owner or person in charge unless prior approval is authorized by the City
Manager or his/her designee;

b. The commercial cannabis facility ceases to operate at the premises described in
the conditional use permit application; or

C. The commercial cannabis facility ceases to operate for sixty (60) consecutive
calendar days.

12. Any amendments to this use permit application, or changes in to the business plan, will
require the applicant to submit an amended use permit application for approval by the City.

13. All conditions of Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 are necessary to protect the general
health, safety and welfare of the public. If any condition of this entitlement is held to be invalid by
a court, then the whole entitlement shall be invalid. The City Council specifically declares that it
would not have approved this entitlement unless all of the conditions herein are held as valid.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Isleton this 10th day of May, 2022,
by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
Eric Pena, Mayor
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Yvonne Zepeda, City Clerk Andreas Booher, City Attorney



Attachment C
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-004

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ISLETON APPROVING
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT DA 2022-01 WITH
WTO ESSENTIALS, INC,, FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT
402 JACKSON BLVD., ISLETON, CA 95641

WHEREAS, the State of California enacted California Government Code section 65864, et seq. to
authorize municipalities to enter into development agreements with those having an interest in real
property to strengthen the public planning process, encourage private participation in comprehensive
planning, and reduce the econamic risk of development in connection with the development of real
property within its jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, WTO Essentials, Inc. ("Developer”’) leases the real property located at 402 Jackson
Blvd., City of Isleton, County of Sacramento ("Subject Property"); and

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop commercial cannabis operations on the Subject
Property in a manner consistent with the California cannabis laws, the City's municipal code, and Project
Approvals [“Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Isleton recommends approval of Conditional
Use Permit CUP 01-22 and Development Agreement DA 2022-01 {attached hereto as Exhibit A} by
Resolution PC 01-22 on April 13, 2022 to allow Developer to engage in commercial cannabis operations
at the Subject Property; and

WHEREAS, this Ordinance shall be effective upon the City Council’s approval of the Conditional
Use Permit CUP 01-22, which was scheduled for public hearing at the City Council’s regular meeting on
April 26, 2022, and then continued to the City Council’s regular meeting of May 10, 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Isleton does hereby ordain as follows:

Section 1. Purpose. The purpose of this ordinance is to approve execution of the Development Agreement
between the City and Developer following the City Council's independent review and consideration.

Section 2. Authority. This ordinance is authorized pursuant to Government Code section 65864, et seq.

Section 3. Findings. In adopting this ordinance, the City Council makes the following findings:

{(a) The proposed Development Agreement will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and general
welfare of persons residing in the immediate area or detrimental to the general welfare of the
residents of the City as a whole; and

(b} The proposed Development Agreement will not adversely affect the orderly development of
property or preservation of property values; and

{c) The proposed Development Agreement is consistent with the provisions of Government Code
section 65864, et seq.; and

(d) The Planning Commission has recommended approval of the Development Agreement.



section 4. Enactment. The City Council hereby approves the Development Agreement between the City
and the Developer which is attached hereto as Attachment 1, and authorizes the Mayor to execute the
Development Agreement on behalf of the City.

section 5. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance and the application of such provision to other
persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby.

Section 6. Execution. The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this ordinance.

Section 7. Effective Date and Publication. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption.
The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this ordinance within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a
newspaper of general circulation published in the City of Isleton or to post it in at least three (3) public
locations in the City of Isleton.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Isleton this 10" day of Mayl 2022, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
Eric Pene, Mayor
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Yvonne Zepeda, City Clerk Andreas Booher, City Attorney

Attachment 1 — Proposed Development Agreement

10



Attachment |

OFFICIAL BUSINESS
Document entitled to free recording
Government Code Section 6103

RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECOGRDED MAILTO:

City of Isleton
101 2% st
Isleton, CA 95641 |
Attn: City Clerk |

{SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE)

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF ISLETON

AND WTO ESSENTIALS, INC.
402 JACKSON BLVD



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Development Agreement (“Agreement®) is made and entered into between the CITY OF
ISLETON, a municipal corporation (“City"}, and WTO Essentlals, Inc. (“Developer”). City and Developer
are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties” and singularly as "Party.”

RECITALS

A. Authorization. To strengthen the public planning process, encourage private participation in
comprehensive planning and reduce the economic risk of development, the Legislature of the
State of California adopted Government Code section 65864 et seq. {the “Development
Agreement Law”}, which authorizes the City and any person having a legal or equitable interest in
the real property to enter into a development agreement, establishing certain development rights
in the Property, which is the subject of the development project application.

8. Public Hearing. On April 13, 2022, the City's Planning Commission, serving as the City's planning
agency for purposes of development agreement review pursuant te Government Code section
65867, considered this Agreement and recommended approval of this Agreement to the City
Council.

C. Environmental Review. On April 26, 2022, the City Council determined that the Project (as
defined herein) Is exempt from environmental review in accordance with Section 15301 for
Existing Facilities of the California Environmental Quality Act, Guidelines.

D. Need for Services and Facilities. Development and operation of the Project will result in a need
for municipal services and facilities, including police and fire protection services.

€. Contribution to Costs of Facilities and Services. Developer agrees to make the quarterly
payments set forth herein, which payment may be used by the City for any legal purpose. City and
Developer recognize and agree that but for Developer's quarterly payments City would not and
could not approve use of the Property for the Project as provided by this Agreement. City's
approval of this Agreement is in reliance upon and in consideration of Developer’s agreement to
make the payments required hereunder.

F. Public Benefits. Development of the Project will result in significant public benefits, as more fully
described hereinafter, including, without limitation:

1. The provision of opportunities for employment;

2. Implementation of Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design ("CPTED")
development principles during the operation and maintenance of the Property: and

3. The furtherance of the economic development goals and objectives of the City.

G. Developer Assurances. In exchange for the benefits to the City in the preceding Recitals, together
with the other pubtic benefits that will result from the development of the Property, Developer
will receive by this Agreement assurance that it may proceed with the Project in accordance with
the items set forth herein.



H. Consistency with General Plan. Having duly examined and considered this Agreement and having
held properly noticed public hearings hereon, in City Ordinance No. 2018-02, the City found that
this Agreement satisfies the Government Code Section 65867.5 requirement of general plan
consistency.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above Recitals and mutual promises, conditions and
covenants of the Parties contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Definitions. In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, terms have the following
meaning. Capitalized terms within the Exhibits not defined below have the meaning set out in the
Exhibits.

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4,

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

“Adopting Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 19-05, adopted by the City Council March
12, 2019, which approves this Development Agreement as required by the Development
Agreement Law.

“Agreement” means this Development Agreement, inclusive of all Exhibits attached
hereto.

“Authorized Operator” means a fully-licensed operator engaged by the Developer and
approved by the City to operate portions of the Project on behalf of the Devefoper.

“CEQA” means the California Environmental Quality Act, as set forth at Califernia Public
Resources Code, Division 13, commencing at Section 23000 and the CEQA Guidelines as
set forth in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations commencing at Section 15000.

"City" means the City of Isleton, including its agents, officers, employees, representatives
and elected and appainted officials.

"“City Manager" means the City Manager of the City of Isleton, or his or her designee.

"Conditional Use Permit" means the Conditional Use Permit for the Project approved by
the Planning Commission on _, 2019, as that Conditional Use Permit may be modified or
amended from time-to-time.

“Control” means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the pawer to direct or cause the
direction of an entity’s management or policies, whether through the ownership of voting
securities, by contract, or otherwise.

“Development Agreement Law” means Government Code section 65864 et seq. and the
procedures and requirements for the consideration of development agreements
contained in Ordinance No. 2018-02. In the event of a conflict, the requirements of
Government Code Section 65864 et seq. shall control.



L.10.

1L11.

1.12.

1.13.

1.14.

"Developer” means WTO Essentials, Inc. , together with any Successor duly approved by
the City in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

"Effective Date” means that day on which the Adopting Ordinance shall be effective. The
Adopting Ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its adoption by the City
Council, unless the Adopting Ordinance becomes subject to a qualified referendum, in
which case, the Effective Date shall be the day after the referendum election, if the
Adopting Ordinance is approved by a majority of the voters. Litigation filed to challenge
the Adopting Ordinance or this Agreement shall not affect the Effective Date, absent a
court order or judgment overturning or setting aside the Adopting Ordinance, or staying
the Effective Date, or remanding the Adopting Ordinance to the City. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, this Agreement shall not become effective until fully executed.

"Facility” has the meaning of the term “commercial cannabis facility” set forth in Section
2301, Subsection G of the Municipal Code and includes the physical improvements to the
Property used by Developer to conduct its operations.

“Fees” means all charges, expenses, tosts, mongtary exactions and any other monetary
obligations imposed on Developer by the City, other than assessments or regular or
special taxes and shall not be limited to fees paid pursuant to this Agreement.

“General Plan" means the Genegral Plan of the City including the text and maps, as
approved and updated by the City in 2014, plus any other General Plan amendments
approved by the City on or before the Effective Date.

"Gross Receipts from Operations" means total revenue derived, directly or indirectly, or
actually received or receivable from eperation of the Facility, including: all sales; the total
amount of compensation actually received or receivable for the perfarmance of any act
or service, of whatever nature it may be, or the fair market value thereof, for which a
charge is made or credit allowed, whether ar not such act or service is done as part of or
in connection with the sale of materials, goods, wares or merchandise; and gains realized
from trading in stocks or bonds, interest discounts, rents, royalties, fees, commissions,
dividends, or other remunerations, however designated. included in “gross receipts” shall
be all receipts, cash, credits and property of any kind or nature, without any deduction
therefrom on account of the cost of the property sold, the cost of materials used, labor
or service casts, interest paid or payable, ar lasses or other expenses whatsoaver, except
that the following shall be excluded therefrom:

1.15.1. Cash discounts allowed and taken on sales;
1.15.2. Credit allowed on property accepted as part of the purchase price and which
property may later be sold, at which time the sales price shall be included as

“gross receipts”;

1.15.3, Any tax required by law to be included in or added to the purchase price and
collected from the consumer or purchaser;



1.16.

1.17.

1.18.

1.19.

1.20.

1.15.4. Such part of the sale price of property returned by purchasers upon rescission of
a contract of sale as is refunded either in cash or by credit; and

1.15.5. Receipts of refundable deposits, except that such deposits when forfeited and
taken into income of the business shall not be excluded. Interorganizational sales
or transfers between or among the units of a parent-subsidiary controlled group
of corporations or other related legal entities as defined by 26 U.5.C. 1563{a){1)
or otherwise, or between or among the units of a brother-sister controlled group
of corporations ar other related legal entities as defined by 26 U.5.C. 1563(a)(2}
or otherwise, whereby no Gross Receipts are generated or exchanged, directly or
indirectly, pursuant to the interorganizational sales or transfers, discounted or
otherwise.

The intent of this definition is to ensure that in calculating the payment required under
Section 10.1, all sales of cannabis products shipped through or from the Facility are
captured, regardless of whether the product is sold and/or shipped directly from the
Facility to a consumer, retailer, or wholesaler within or outside the City limits of Isleton,
or to another cannabis facility that then distributes the product to the consumer, retailer,
or wholesaler within or outside the City of |sleton. This definition shall therefore be given
the broadest possible interpretation consistent with this intent, as it does not pertain to
a definition of "gross receipts” for purposes of a tax, subject to rules of apportionment
under the Constitution of United States, Art. |, § B, cl. 3, or the California Constitution, It
is hereby recognized that the fee herein required to be paid by the Developer to the City
of Isleton is in exchange for and pursuant to this Development Agreement, and not for
the privilege of doing business within the City of Isleton or legally incident on those
engaged in such business within the City of Isleton.

“Commercial Property” means that certain real property located at 402 Jackson Blvd, in
the City of Isleton, County of Sacramento. A legal description of the Commercial Property
is contained in Exhibit 6.

“Law” means the case law, ardinances, statutes, rules, regulations, or any order, decree
or directive of any court or any local, regional, state or federal government agency, unless
the context suggests a different meaning.

“Municipal Code” means the Municipal Code of the City of Isleton. As of May 1, 2018, the
Isleton Municipal Code is in the process of being codified. Until such time as the City
Council adopts the codified version of the Municipal Code, the draft Municipal Code,
which Is a compilation of the City's adopted ordinances shall be used as reference to the
City's laws.

“Planning Commission” means the City of Isleton Planning Commission.

“Project” means the physical improvement and use of the Property as a cannabis
manufacturing facility. The "Project” is further defined in Exhibit A to this Agreement, and
supplemented by the provisions of this Agreement and the Public Safety and Security
Plan.



1.21. “Project Approvals” means the entitlements that are the subject of this Agreement,
consisting of the following land use approvals:

1.21.1. A Conditional Use Permit; and

1.21.2. This Development Agreement, as adopted on April 26, 2022, by City Ordinance
No. 2022-004 (the “Adopting Ordinance”).

1.22. “Property” means 402 Jackson Blvd. of the Commercial Property consisting of 3,500
square feet. A site plan showing the Property occupied by the Facility is contained in
Exhibit C.

1.23. "Property Lease” means that certain Commercial Real Property Lease dated
, between Delta Boyz Enterprises, LLC, as owner and WTO Essentials,
Inc., lessor of the Property, and Developer, as lessee of the Property.

1.24. "Public Safety and Security Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 10.2.1.

1.25. "Successor’ or “Successor in Interest” means any subsequent entity or individual that
acquires all or any portion of Developer's interest in the Property; provided, however,
that na Successor shall acquire any rights pursuant to this Agreement unless and until
that Successor is approved by the City and complies with all applicable requiremants of
Section 15 of this Agreement.

Incorporation of Recitals, The Recitals and all defined terms set forth ahove are hereby
incorporated into this Agreement as if set forth herein in full.

Description of the Project. The Project consists of occupying an existing industrial buitding to
operate a cannabis manufacturing business, praducing cannahis cartridges and concentrates.
Developer's operations are more fully described in Exhibit A. Developer shall ensure that the
Project is operated in accordance with Exhibit A at all times. In the course of operating the Project,
Developer may enter into an agreement with an Authorized Operator to operate the Project. The
engagement of any Authorized Cperator shall be reviewed by the City and require the prior
written consent of the City. Any such agreement between the Developer and any Authorized
Operator shall provide that:

3.1.  The Authorized Operator shall make payments in accordance with Section 10.1.1 of this
Agreement; and

3.2.  The Authorized Operator shall be subject to the record keeping, reporting, and audit
requirements described in Section 10.1.2 of this Agreement; and

3.3.  The Authorized Operator shall maintain all licensing necessary to operate those portions
of the Project that the Authorized Operator has been engaged to operate.

Description of Property. The Property, which is the subject of this Agreement, is defined in
Section 1.21.



6.

Relationship of City and Developer. This Agreement is a contract that has been negotiated and
voluntarily entered into by City and Developer. It is agreed among the parties that the Project is
a private development and that the relationship of the Developer and City is and at all times shall
remain solely that of the City as a regulatory body and the Developer as the property owner. The
City and Beveloper hereby renounce the existence of any form of joint venture or partnership
between them and agree that nothing contained herein or in any document executed in
connection herewith shall be construed as making the City and Developer undertaking a joint
venture or partnership.

Representations, Warranties and Acknowledgments.

6.1.  Interestin Property. Developer represents and warrants that as of the Effective Date,
Developer is the lessee of the Property under the Property Lease, and as such holds
a leasehold interest in and to the Property. Developer further represents that all
persons holding legal or equitable interest in the Property have consented to the
Agreement. Application says lease agreement is in file; didn't see.

6.2.  Authority. The Parties represent and warrant that the persons signing this Agreement are
duly authorized to enter into and execute this Agreement on behalf of their respective
principals.

6.3.  Brokers. The Parties agree that the City has had no dealings with any real estate broker
or agent in connection with the negotiation of this Agreement, and that they know of no
other real estate broker or agent who Is entitled to a commission in connection with this
Agreement. In the event any real estate broker or agent shalt come forward and claim the
right to a commission or other form of compensation in connection with this Agreement,
Developer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City in accordance with Section
14.1.

6.4. Procedures and Requirements. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject
to the procedures for approval, amendment and administration set forth in the
Development Agreement Law.

Effective Date and Tarm.

7.1.  Effective Date. The Effective Date of this Agreement means the date defined at Section
1.10 of this Agreement.

7.2.  Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall
continue in force until the first to oceur of the following events: 1) this Agreement is
terminated in accordance with terms set forth herein; or 2} Developer no longer has a
legal interest in the Property ar has ceased all operations on the Property.

7.3.  Termination by Mutual Consent, This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part
by the mutual written consent of all the Parties.



7.4,  Termination for Failure to Obtain or Maintain Required State or Local Licenses. If

Developer fails to obtain or maintain in effect all state and local licenses required for the
Project in accordance with Section 9.3.1, City may terminate this Agreement,

7.5, Termination Resulting from Governmental Actlon. In the event legal action is initiated or
threatened by any governmental jurisdiction other than the City on the grounds that
approval or implementation of this Agreement {or any part) constitutes a violation of
state or federal law, and the parties are unable to reach agreement between themselves
and the governmental jurisdiction on amendments to this Agreement that will resolve the
dispute and still preserve the material terms of this Agreement, then either party may
terminate this Agreement without compliance with the Default Procedures set forth in
Section 13. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this section, Developer shall
immediately cease operations at the Facility, the Conditional Use Permit shall be
automatically terminated, and the Parties shall have no further rights or obligations under
this Agreement {other than the rights under Section 14, which survive termination).

7.6.  Jermination Upon Surrender or Revocation of Conditional Use Permit. If the Developer
voluntarily surrenders the Conditional Use Permit, or if the Conditional Use Permit is
revoked by the City, then Developer shall immediately cease operations at the Property
and this Development Agreement shall terminate automatically, without further action
required by either party. In such an event, Developer waives the default procaedures set
forth in Section 13 of this Agreement, including the notice and cure rights contained
therein, and the Parties shall have no further rights or obligations under this Agreement
{other than the rights under Section 14, which survive termination).

7.7.  Effect of Termination. This Agreement was entered into by the Parties for the limited
purpose of setting forth certain terms and conditions concerning the proposed
development and operation of the Project in a manner that is consistent with the Project
Approvals, Accordingly, nothing contained herein is intended or shall be construed to
grant to Developer any rights in connection with the future development or operations
of the Property, except for those rights set farth in this Agreement.

Development of the Project.

8.1.  Development Rights. This Agreement was entered into by the Parties for the limited
purpose of setting forth certain terms concerning the development and use of the
Property by Developer. Accordingly:

8.1.1. Developer acknowledges that it has no existing “vested rights” {as that term is
used in California land use law) concerning the Property or the Project.

8.1.2. Nothing contained herein is intended or shall be construed to grant to Developer
any rights in connection with the future development or use of the Property, and
the Parties agree that development and use of the Property shall be governed by
the land use and other regulations in effect at the time of development and
operation.



8.2.

B.1.3. Except as expressly provided herein, nothing contained in this Agreement is
intended or shall be construed to affect in any way the permitted uses of the
Property, the density and intensity of use, the maximum height and size of
buildings, or the reservation or dedication of land for public purposes which shall
continue to be governed by the City's General Plan, the City's zoning code, and all
other entitlements and ordinances now existing or which may be amended or
enacted in the future.

B.1.4. The City expressly reserves the right to adopt and apply regulations to protect the
City and its citizens from immaediate risks to health and safety. The Developer
hereby agrees that any regulation imposed by the City with respect to flood
protection adopted in response to federal, state, or local guidelines, regulations,
or directives, including without limitation the implementation of a moratorium
on development activities, shall be deemed necessary to protect the public health
and safety.

Referendum. Developer acknowledges that the Adopting Ordinance, which is a legislative
tand use approval, is potentially subject to referendum. Notwithstanding anything in this
Agreement to the contrary, Developer shall not acquire a vested right to any legislative
land use approval (or to any amendment thereto}: (1) while such approval or amendment
is still potentially subject to referendum or (2} in the event that such approval or
amendment is reversed by referendum.

Applicable Rules, Regulations, Fees and Official Policies.

9.1.

8.2.

9.3,

Rules Regarding Design and Construction. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this
Agreement, all other ordinances, resolutions, rules, regulations and official policies
governing design, improvement and construction standards and specifications, applicable
to the Project and to public improvements to be constructed by the Developer shall be
those in force and effect at the time the applicable permit approval is granted.

Uniform Codes Applicable. Unless otherwise exprassly provided in this Agreement, any
improvements to the Property undertaken by Developer shall comply with the California
Building Standards Codes, Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, as adopted and
amended by the City, as the same shall be in effect as of the time of approval of the permit
In question. Such improvements shall also comply with the provisiens of the California
Mechanical, Plumbing, Electrical and Fire Codes, and City construction specifications, in
effect at the time of approval of the appropriate permits for the improvements. If no
permit is required for a given improvement, such improvement will be constructed in
accordance with said Codes in effect in the City as of the commencement of construction
of such improvement.

Laws and Regulations Applicable to Cannabis Activities; Obtaining and Maintzining
Required Licenses.

9.3.1. General. Developer shall at all times comply fully with all existing and future state
and local rules applicable to Developer's activities on the Property and shall




ensure such compliance by all of Develaper's employees, contractors, vendors,
customers, and members of the public invited or allowed access to the Property.

9.3.2. Licensura of Operations. Developer shall promptly apply for and obtain all State
licenses required for the operations described in Exhibit A, as well as any local
licenses required in the future by the City. Failure to obtain required state licenses
within twelve {12) months following the date when the relevant state agencies
begin accepting applications for such licenses, and failure to maintain required
state or city licenses during the term of this Agreement, shall constitute a default
under this Agreement and shall be grounds for termination.

9.4, Fees, Dedications, Assessments and Taxes,

9.4.1. Payment of Development Impact and Other City Fees, Taxes, and Assessments.

Developer shall pay all impact and other City fees, taxes and assessments when
due.

9.4.2. QOther Public Agencies. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to govern the
authority of other public agencies to impose fees.

9.4.3. Public Works and Community Development. Any public improvements and wark
performed by Developer in connection with the Project shall be to the satisfaction

of the City Engineer and acceptance by the City Council (ar by the City Engineer,
if the City Council delegates authority to accept public improvements to the City
Engineer).

10. Additional Developer Obligations.

10.12. Payments to City. i%)

ong
10.1.1. Required Payment. Developer and any Authorized Operator shall make quarterly

payments to the City equal to )\nﬂ’percent M of Developer's and any
Authorized Operator's Gross Receipts from Operations. Payments shall be made
by the last day of the month following the end of each quarter (i.e., April 30™ for
the quarter running from January 1 through March 31). Payments shail be
accompanied by such documentation as may be reasonably required by the City.
The 2% fee on Developer’'s and any Authorized Operator’s Gross Receipts is not a
tax and is particularly not an indirect tax on any consumer such as a sales and use
tax, but is rather a direct fee levied on the Gross Recelpts of the Developer and
any Authorized Operator as a condition of this Development Agreement that is
not to be passed along to the ultimate consumer. If the Developer or any
Authorized Operator chooses to pass the 2% fee along to any consumer, it shatl
be required to include such amounts collected from any consumer as Gross
Receipts. This documentation will include {but may not be Hmited to) the
transportation manifests for cannabis products received at or transported from
the Facility, and an accounting of Gross Receipts from Operations during the
previous quarter, Late payments shall include interest at a rate of ten percent
(10%) per annum. Failure to make any payment required by this Agreement when

9



due shall be a material breach of the Agreement subject to Cure under the
provisions of Section 13.3. Payments to the City shall be made by check, direct
deposit, wire transfer or other electronic form of payment that originates from a
legal financial channel that has been agreed to in advance by both parties. Upon
request and with a minimum of ten {10} business days’ notice prior to payment
due date, alternative forms of payment, including cash, may be authorized at the
City's discretion.

10.1.2. Reporting of Gross Receipts from Operations.

{a)

(b)

Quarterly Receipts. No later than the last day of the month following the
end of each quarier, Developer shall deliver to City a report (the
“Quarterly Report"} showing (i) Grass Receipts from Operations for the
immediate prior quarter received by Developer, and a cumulative total of
all amounts of Gross Receipts from Operations received by Developer for
the calendar year, (ii} a calculation of the quarterly payment due to City
for the prior quarter, and {iii) a calculation of the cumulative total of all
quarterly payments for the calendar year.

Statements of Receipts. Developer shall keep complete, accurate and
appropriate books and records of all receipts from operations in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. For purposes
herein "books and records" shall mean all bookkeeping or accounting
documents Developer utilizes in managing its business operations
relating to the Project. Such books and records, as well as all other
relevant documents as City shall reasonably require, shall, upon
reasonable written notice, be open for inspection by City, its auditors or
other authorized representatives. If, at any time during the Term, such
books and records prove inadequate in the reasonable judgment of City
to record the Gross Receipts from Operations as herein required,
Developer shall, upon the written request of City, procure and maintain
such books and recards as shall be of a character and form adequate for
such purpose. City shall have the right to audit and examine such books,
records and documents and other relevant items in the possession of
Developer, but only to the extent necessary for a proper determination
of Gross Receipts from Operations, and all such books, records,
documents and other items shall be held available for such audit and
examination. Upon request by the City, Developer shall make all such
books, records and documents available to the City, and provide
removable copies thereof, within thirty {30} of the date of the City's
request. The cost for any audit shall be shared equally by the Parties.
Developer shall preserve such books, records, documents, and other
items in Isleton for a period of not less than seven (7} years for the
purpose of auditing or re-auditing these accounts upon reasonable
notice; except that, if an audit is made within the seven-year period and
Developer clatms that errors or emissions have occurred, the books and
records shall be retained and made available until those matters are

10



resolved. City shall keep strictly confidential all statements of revenue
furnished by Developer and all other information concerning Developer's
operation of the Premises obtained by City as a result of the inspection,
audit and examination privileges of City hereunder, except as otherwise
required by law. If City receives a request for such information pursuant
to the Public Records Act (California Government Code Section 6250 et
seq.), City shall provide Developer notice of any such request prior to
disclosing any such information. Within seven {7) years after the receipt
of any statement of receipts under this Agreement, City at any time shall
be entitled to carry out an audit of such revenue either by City or agent
to be designated by City. If it shall be determined as a result of such audit
that there has been a deficiency in any payment due under this
Agreement made on the basis of such statement, then such deficiency
shall become immediately due and payable. If such statement of revenue
for the relevant year shall be found to have understated receipts by more
than two percent and City is entitled to any additional payment as a result
of said understatement, then Developer shall, in addition, pay all of City's
reasonable costs and expenses connected with such audit, including the
expense incurred in retaining such agent; otherwise City shalt bear the
cost and expense of such audit.

{c) Copies of Tax Filings. Developer shall provide City with copies of any
reports Developer is required to provide to the County of Sacramento or
the State of California for sales, use or other tax purposes.

10.1.3. Applicability of Future Revenue Mechanisms. During the term of this

Agreement, if the City imposes an alternative revenue mechanism specifically
related to cannabis aperations {e.g. a cannabis tax), developer agrees to pay to
City the greater of the payment required under such alternative revenue
mechanism or the payment required by this Section. As used in this Section,
"alternative revenue mechanisms” do not include taxes, fees, or assessments
levied on or collected from both cannabis and non-tannabis operations.
Payments required by revenue mechanisms that are not limited to cannabis
operations shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, payments undar this Section.

10.2.  Public Safety and Security.

10.2.1. Public Safety and Security Plan. Prior to acceptance of any cannabis product at
the Facility, and prior to any manufacturing activities at the Facility, Developer
shall have prepared and submitted to City a Public Safety and Security Plan
{"Plan"} acceptable to the City in the reasonable exercise of City's discretion. The
Plan shall include and address all aspects of public safety and security, including
but not limited to the follewing interior and exterior security and fire/life safety
issues:

{a) Physical security measures, including perimeter fencing, security cameras
and other monitoring equipment, and internal security controls.

I



11.

12,

10.3.

(b) Implementation of CPTED (Crime Prevention Through Environmental
Design) measures.

{c) Protocols for loading and unloading, storage, and transportation of
cannabis products.

At least annually, and at other times upon request by either party, Developer and
City staff shall meet to review the Plan and operations of the Facility. Developer
shall promptly revise the Plan to address deficiencies identified by Developer or
the City (e.g. major incidents, high volume of calls for service, etc.) so that the
Facility is operated at all times in a manner that ensures the safety and security
of the public and Developer's employees, and the physical security of the Facility
and products stored therein.

10.2.2. Signage. Signage for the Project and Facility shall conform to the requirements of
the City's Sign Ordinance (Article 12, Section 1204 of the Municipal Code).

10.2.3. Reporting of Incidents. Developer shall promptly report to the police department
breaches of security and criminal activities occurring at the Facility.

Naotification to City of Intent to Relocate. Developer shall provide City with ninety {90}
days written notice prior to relocating operations within or outside of the City. For
relocations within the City, delays in notice may result in delays in issuing a new
conditional use permit for the proposed new location.

Amendment. This Agreement may be amended in writing from time to time by mutual consent
of the Parties hereto and in accordance with the procedures required by the Development
Agreement Law.

Annual Review of Agreement.

12.1

12.2.

Review Date. The annual review date of this Agreement (the "Review Date”) as required
by Development Agreement Law shall be approximately twelve {12) months from the
Effective Date and every twelve (12) months thereafter.

Procedures. The procedures for annual review shall be as set forth in the Development
Agreement Law.

Fee_for Annual Review. The reasonable cost for the City's annual review of this
Agreement shall be paid by Developer, not to exceed the actual costs incurred by the City
in connection with the review.

Default. The failure of either party to perform any obligation or duty under this
Agreement within the time required by this Agreement shall constitute an event of
default. For purposes of this Agreement, a Party asserting that the other Party isin default



13.2.

13.3.

shall be referred to as the "Complaining Party" and the other Party shall be referred to as
the "Defaulting Party."

Notice, The Complaining Party may not place the Defaulting Party in default unless it has
first given written notice to the Defaulting Party, specifying the nature of the default and
the manner in which the default may be cured, if known to the Complaining Party. Any
failure or delay by the Complaining Party in giving such notice shall not waive such default
or walve any of the Complaining Party's remedies.

Cura. The Defaulting Party shall have thirty {30) days from the receipt of notice to cure
the default. In the case of monetary defaults {e.g. failure to make the payments required
by Section 9.1.1), any default must be cured completely within this thirty (30} day period.
In the case of non-monetary defaults, if the default cannot be reasonably cured within
such time, the default shall be deemed cured if: (1) the cure is commenced at the earliest
practicable date following receipt of notice; (2) the cure is diligently prosecuted to
completion at all times thereafter; (3) at the earliest practicable date [but in no event
later than thirty (30) days after receiving the notice of default), the Defaulting Party
provides written notice to the Complaining Party that the cure cannot be reasonably
completed within such thirty (30) day period; and (4) the default is cured at the earliest
practicable date, but in no event later than one hundred twenty (120) days after receipt
of the first notice of default.

Remedies. If the Defaulting Party fails to cure a default in accordance with the foregoing,
the Complaining Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon notice to
the Defaulting Party and the Complaining Party may pursue all remedies available by law
or in equity, including specific performance and injunctive refief.

Additional Procedures and Remedies. The Parties acknowledge that the foregoing
default procedures and remedies are in addition to, and not in lieu of, the procedures and
remedies set forth in Article 14, Section 1414 of the Municipal Code, and Developer
waives the argument that any default taken against Developer is not valid for failing to
comply with the procedures and remedies set forth in Article 14, Section 1414,

Walver of Damages. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the
Parties acknowledge that the City would not have entered into this Agreement had it been
exposed to liability for damages from Developer, and that therefore, Developer hereby
waives all claims for damages against the City for breach of this Agreement. Developer
further acknowledges that under the Development Agreement Law, land use approvals
{including development agreements) must be approved by the City Council and that
under law, the City Council's discretion to vote in any particular way may not be
constrained by contract. Developer therefore waives all claims for damages against the
City in the event that this Agreement or any Project Approval is: (1) not approved by the
City Council or (2) is approved by the City Council, but with new changes, amendments,
conditions or deletions to which Developer is opposed. Developer further acknowledges
that as an instrument which must be approved by ordinance, a development agreement
is subject to referendum; and that under law, the City Council's discretion to avoid a
referendum by rescinding its approval of the underlying ordinance may not be

13



13.7.

constrained by contract, and Developer waives all claims for damages against the City in
this regard.

Effect of Termination of Agreement on Conditional Use Permit. Developer agrees that
termination of this Agreement in accordance with this Section 12 shall also result in the
automatic termination of the Conditional Use Permit.

14, Insurance and Indemnity.

14.1.

14.2.

Indemnification, Defense and Hold Harmless. Developer shall indemnify, defend, and
hold harmless to the fullest extent permitted by law, the City and its officer, officials,
consultants and employees {"Indemnitees”) from and against any and all claims, liability,
loss, damage, expense, costs (including without limitation costs and fees of litigation} of
every nature arising out of or in connection with the Project, the Project Approvals or the
Property (including any challenge ta the validity of any provision of this Agreement or the
Project Approvals, or Developer's failure to comply with any of its cbligations in this
Agreement, or Developer's failure to comply with any current aor prospective Law);
provided, however, that Developer shall have no obligations under this section for such
loss or damage which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the City.
This indemnification obligation shall survive this Agreement and shall not be limited by
any insurance policy, whether required by this Agreement or otherwise.

Insurance.

14.2.1. Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance. At all times that Developer is
constructing any improvements to the Property, Developer shall maintain in
effect a policy of comprehensive general liability insurance with a per-occurrence
combined single limit of one mitlion dallars ($1,000,000) and a deductible of not
more than fifty thousand doltars {$50,000) per claim. The policy so maintained by
Developer shall name the City as an additional insured and shall include either a
severability of interest clause or cross-liability endorsement.

14.2.2. Workers’ Compensation Insurance. At all times that Developer is constructing
any improvements, Developer shall maintain workers' compensation insurance
for all persons employed by Developer for work at the Project site. Developer
shall require each contractar and subcontractor similarly to provide workers’
compensation insurance for its respective employees. Developer agrees to
indemnify the City for any damage resulting from Developer’s failure to maintain
any such insurance.

14.2.3, Evidence of Insurance, Prior to commencement of construction of any
improvements, Develaper shall furnish City satisfactory evidence of the insurance
required by this Sections 14 and evidence that the carrier is required to give the
City at feast fifteen {15) days prior written notice of the canceliation or reduction
in coverage of a policy. The insurance shall extend to the City, its elective and
appointive boards, commissions, officers, agents, employees and representatives
and to Developer performing work on the Project. Developer shall additionally
furnish City satisfactory evidence of the insurance coverage required under this

14



Section whenever a policy is renewed, changed without impact to coverage, or at
City’'s request.

15. Assignment and Transfers of Rights and Interast; Binding Effect on Successors.

15.1.

15.3.

15.4,

Assignment.
15.1.1. Assignment of Rights Under Agreement. Developer may not transfer or assign its

interests under this Agreement, in whole or in part, withaut the prior written
consent of the City, which may be withheld for any reason. No such assignment
shall be effective until execution and delivery by Developer and the assignee of
an assignment substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D.

15.1.2. Subsequent Assignments. Any Successor may assign its rights under this
Agreement by complying with the procedures set farth in this Agreement.

Transfer of Control. No change in Developer's leasehold interest or in the composition of
Developer's leasehold interest shall be made, and no transfer of the Property Lease or
any sublease of the Property shall be made, without providing the City with prior written
notice. If the change, transfer ar sublease changes Control over the use of the Property,
the operations of Developer, or the actions or activities of Developer, then the prior
written consent of the City must be obtained before the change, transfer or sublease,
which consent may be withheld for any reason.

Transferability to New Location. In the event Developer moves operations from the
Property to another location within the City, Developer agrees that the City may require
that the rights and obligations set forth in this Agreement transfer to the new location.
Developer and City agree to work cooperatively and collaboratively on any amendments
to this Agreement that may be necessary in view of the transfer of Developer's operations
to the new location.

Runs with the Land. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, and for so long as
this Agreement remains in effect, all of the provisions, rights, terms, covenants, and
obligations contained in this Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties and their
respective heirs, successors and assignees, representatives, sub-lessees, and all other
persons acquiring the Developer's interest in the Property, whether by operation of law
or in any manner whatsoever; provided that no successor or assignee of Developer may
obtain the benefits hereunder unless the City has consented to assignment of those rights
as set forth in Section 14.1. All of the provisians of this Agreement shall be enforceable as
equitable servitudes and shall constitute covenants running with the land pursuant to
applicable laws, including, but not limited to, Section 1466 of the Civil Code of the State
of California. Each covenant to do, or refrain from doing, some act on the Property
hereunder, or with respect to any leasehold interest in the Property: (a) is for the benefit
of such properties and is a burden upon such properties; (b) runs with such properties;
and (c) is binding upon each Party and each successive owner during its ownership of such
leasehold interest in the Property or any portion thereof, and shall be a benefit to and a
burden upon each Party and its property hereunder and each other person succeeding to
an interest in such properties.



16.

Miscellaneous.

16.1.

16.2.

16.3,

Estoppel Certificate. Either Party may at any time request the other Party to certify in
writing that: (1) this Agreement is in full force and effect; (2) this Agreement has not been
amended except as identified by the other Party; and (2] to the best knowledge of the
other Party, the requesting Party is not in default, or if in default, the other Party shall
describe the nature and any amount of any such default. The other Party shall use its best
efforts to execute and return the estoppel certificate to the requesting Party within thirty
{30} days of the request. The City Manager shall have authority to execute such
certificates on behalf of the City,

Recordation. This Agreement shalt not be operative until recorded with the Sacramento
County Recorder's office. Develaper shall record this Agreement against the Property at
its expense with the County Recorder's office within ten {10} days of the Effective Date
and shall cause any amendment to this Agreement or any instrument affecting the term
of this Agreement to be recorded within ten (10} days from date on which the same
become effective. Any amendment to this Agreement or any instrument affecting the
term of this Agreement which affect less than all of the Property shall contain a legal
description of the portion thereof that is the subject of such amendment or instrument.
Alternatively, Develaper and City may execute the instrument entitfed “Memorandum of
Development Agreement” attached hereto as Exhibit E, which shall be recorded against
the Property, in Yieu of recording the entire Agreement.

Notices. All notices required by this Agreement or the Development Agreement Law shall
be in writing and personally delivered or sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, return
receipt requested.

Notice required to be given to the City shall be addressed as follows:

CITY OF ISLETON

101 2" st

Isleton, CA 95641

Attn:  Charles Bergson, City Manager
{916) 777-7770

with copies to:

KRONICK, MOSKOVITZ, TIEDEMANN & GIRARD
400 Capitol Mall, 27th Floor

Sacramento, CA 95814

Attn:  Andreas Booher, City Attorney

{916) 321-4500

Notice required to be given to the Developer shall be addressed as follows:

WTO Essentials, Inc.
Attn; Charles Smith
7889 Lichen Drive #104



16.4.

16.5.

16.6.

16.7.

16.8.

16.9.

16.10.

16.11.

Citrus Heights, CA 95621
{916) 390-2982

Either Party may change the address stated herein by giving notice in writing to the other
Party, and thereafter notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address. All
natices shall be deemed received on the earlier of the date of personal delivery or the
date shown on the return receipt.

References to Municipal Code. This Agreement contains references to articles and
sections of the City’s Municipal Code. If, after the Effective Date, the City amends or
renumbers its Municipal Code, then the references in this Agreement shall be understood
to apply to the amended or renumbered Municipal Code.

Construction of Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement and the Exhibits hereto
shall be construed as a whole according to their common meaning and not strictly for or
against any party and consistent with the provisions hereof, in order to achleve the
objectives and purpose of the parties hereunder. The captions preceding the text of each
Article, Section, and subsection hereof are included only for convenience of reference and
shall be disregarded in the construction and interpretation of this Agreement. Wherever
required by the context, the singular shall include the plural and vice versa, and the
masculine gender shall include the feminine or neuter genders and vice versa.

Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into for the sole benefit of the
Parties and any Successors. No other party shall have any cause of action or the standing
to assert any rights under this Agreement.

Attorneys’ Fees and Costs in Legal Actions by Parties to the Agreement. Should any legal

action be brought by either Party for breach of this Agreement or ta enforce any
provisions herein, each Party shall bear its own costs (including attorneys’ fees) and
neither Party shall be entitled to recover such costs from the other Party.

Liability of City Cfficials. No City official or employee shall be personally liable under this
Agreement.

Delegation. Any reference to any City body, official or employee in this Agreement shall
include the designee of that body, official or employee, except where delegation is
prohibited by law.

Severability. Should any provision of this Agreement be found invalid or unenforceable
by a court of law, the decision shall affect only the provision interpreted, and all remaining
provisions shall remain enforceable.

Integration. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the
Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any previous oral or
written agreement. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a subsequent
written instrument executed by all of the Parties.



1612,

16.13.

16.14.

16.15.

16.16.

16.17.

Counterparts. This Agreament may be signed in one (1) or more counterparts, and will be
effective when the Parties have affixed their signatures to counterparts, at which time
the counterparts together shall be deemed one {1} original document; provided,
however, that all executed counterparts are provided to the City Clerk.

Interpretation. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement has been negotiated by
both Parties and their legal counsel and agree that this Agreement shzll be interpreted as
if drafted by both Parties.

Inconsistency. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this
Agreement and the Project Approvals or Exhibits, this Agreement shall prevail.

Incorporation. The Recitals, Exhibits, and all defined terms in this Agreement are part of
this Agreement.

Applicable Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of California without regard to principles of conflicts
of law. In the event of litigation arising under this Agreement, venue shall reside
exclusively in the Superior Court of the County of Sacramento or, in the event of federal
litigation, the Eastern District of California.

Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

[Signatures on Next Poge}



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto are executing this Agreement on the dates set forth
below, to be effective as of the Effective Date.

“CITy" "DEVELOPER"

CITY OF ISLETON, WTO Essentials, Inc.
Municipal corporation

By: By:

Name: (Eric Pene] Nama:

Its: Mayor Its:

Dated: [date] Dated: [date|

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Yvonne Zepeda, City Clerk Andreas Booher, City Attorney

List of Exhibits:

Exhibit A: Project Description

Exhibit B: Legal Description of the Property

Exhibit C: Site Plan Showing Location of the Facility on the Property
Exhibit D: Form of Assignment and Assumption Agreement

Exhibit E: Memorandum of Development Agreement



Exhibit A

Project Description

WTO Essentials, Inc. ("Developer”) proposes to develop and operate a legal cannabis
manufacturing and distribution facility within 4,200 portion, Unit B, of an existing 6,800 square foot
commercial building at 402 Jackson Blvd, in Isleton, California (APN 157-0073-031 pursuant to a City-
issued Conditional Use Permit 01-22,

Exhshit A



Exhibit B

Legal Description of the Property

Real property in the City of Isleten, County of Sacramento, State of California, described as
follows:

Lots 1 and 2 Block 17, Lots 6,7,8,9, and 10, 8lock 16, City of Isleton, Containing 35,630 square
feet {M/L). AP# 157-0073-031.

Exhibil D



Si

Exhibit C

ite Plan Showing Location of the Facllity and the Prope

§ [ == ] 014 3005 - 1230034

FRILNDLY FARMS
(LTS

- O ST
wim. L |

i 1} T
i




RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED MAILTO:

[Add Assignee Address]

Attn:

{SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED
FOR RECORDER'S USE})

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT
WTO0 Essentials, Inc. Development Agreement)

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT {the “Agreement”} is entered inta this
day of , 20_, by and between WTO Essentials, Inc. {the "Developer’), and
,a {the “Assignee”).

RECITALS

A. The City of Isleton and Developer entered inta that certain Development Agreement
recorded in the Official Records of Sacramento County, California, on 20 as
Instrument No. 20_ - (the “Development Agreement”). Pursuant to the Development
Agreement, Developer agreed to develop [property description], which real property is more particularly
described in the Development Agreement and legally described In Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein (the “[Industrial/Commercial] Property”), subject to certain conditions and

obligations as set forth in the Development Agreement.

B. Developer intends to convey its interest in the Subject Property to Assignee along with
Develaper's rights, title, interest, burdens and obligations under the Development Agreement,

C. Developer desires to assign and Assignee desires to assume all of Developer’s rights, title,
interest, burdens and obligations under the Development Agreement.

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION

NOW, THEREFORE, Developer and Assignee hereby agree as follows:

1 Developer hereby assigns to Assignee all of the rights, title, interest, burdens and obligations of
Developer under the Development Agreement.

2 Assignee hereby assumes all of the rights, title, interest, burdens and obligations of Developer
under the Development Agreement, and agrees to abserve and fully perform all of the duties and
obligations of Developer under the Development Agreement. The parties intend hereby that,



upon the execution of this Agreement, Assignee shall become the "Successor” {as defined in the
Development Agreement) to Developer under the Development Agreement solely with respect
to the Subject Property.

3. All of the covenants, terms and conditions set forth herein shall be binding upon and shall inure
to the benafit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors and assigns.

4, The Notice Address described in Section 15.3 of the Development Agreement for Assignee, as the
Successar solely with respect to the Subject Property shall be:

5 As provided in Section 14.1, this Assignment shall not be effective unless and until written consent
of the City has been obtained.

B. This Agreement may be executed in two (2} or more counterparis, each of which shall be deemed
an griginal, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The parties
authorize each other to detach and combine, or cause to be detached and combined, original
signature pages and consolidate them into a single identical original for recordation of this
Agreement in the Official Records of Sacramento County, California.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first
above written.

“CITY" "DEVELOPER" "ASSIGNEE"

WTO Essentials, Inc.

By: By:

Name: Charles Smith Name;

Its: Its:

Dated: [date] Dated: [date]
Exhibits:

A - Legal Description of the Property



RECORDATION OF THIS CERTIFICATE IS TIIE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE REQUESTING PARTY.

A notary priblic or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individnal who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and noi the iruthfilness, accuracy. or validity of that document

Acknowlediment
State of California ]
County of Sacnmento
On , before me, , Notary
Public, personally appeared . who proved to me on the

basis of satisfactory evidence 1o be the person(s) whese name(s) isfare subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in hissher/their authorized capacity(ies}, and 1hat by
his/her/their signature on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acled,
executed the instrument.

I centify under PENALTY OF PERIURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

Witness my hand and official seal.

« Notary Public

A notary public or other afficer completing this certificate verifies only the idensity of the indwidual who signed the
dactiment to which this certificate is anached, and not the truthfidness, accuracy. or validin: of that document

Acknowledyment

State of California H
County of Sacramento H

On , before me, , Notary
Public, personally appeared who proved to me on the
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the personis) whose name(s) is/are subscribed 10 the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by
his/her/their signature on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upen behalf of which the personis) acted,
executed the instrument.

1 centify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of Califomnia that the foregoing pargraph is
true and correet.

Witness my hand and official seal,

» Notary Public




Exhibit A to Assignment and Assumption Agreement

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

Real preperty in the City of Isleton, County of Sacramento, State of California, described as
follows:

Lots 1 and 2 Block 17, Lots 6,7,8,9, and 10, Block 16, City of Isleton, Containing 35,630 square
feet (M/L). APH 157-0073-031.

Exhibit A to Assignment and Assumption Agreement



Exhibit A to Assignment and Assumption Agreement (cantinued)

Site Plan Showing Location of the Facility and the Property

¥4 1 - 1INDNd

| 7| it
FRONDLY FARKIS

Y I O
Rk ==

RLANUTALTLNNMG, DT A
[riTiten

L=y




Exhibit E

Memorandum of Development Agreement

Exhibis E



Recording Requested by and
When Recorded Return to:
City of Isleton

101 2™ st,

Isleton, CA 95641

No recording fee required pursuant to
Government Code Section 27383

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE

MEMORANDUM OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
[daveloper's name]

THIS MEMORANDUM OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT {"Memorandum”} is made this ___ day of
, 2022, by and between the CITY OF ISLETON, a municipal corporation {“City"), WTO Essentials,

Inc. {"Developer”), and [owner's name] (*Owner”), collectively referred to as the “Parties.” [Developer is [ Commented [A1]:
the lessee under the terms of that certain unrecorded lease dated 2022, by and between . m: # Daveloper owns building whars business is to be
Developer and Owner. OR Developer is the owner of the of the real property described below.] - e T

City and Developer are Parties to that certain “Development Agreement” approved by Ordinance
2022-004 (the “Development Agreement”), the terms and conditions of which are hereby incorporated
by this reference as if set forth in full herein. The Development Agreement applies to the development
and operation of a "Facility” {as defined in the Development Agreement) that is located on certain real
property situated in the County of Sacramento, State of California, and legally described as foliows (the

"Property”}):
[See Exhibit A)
“QITY" "DEVELOPER"
CITY OF ISLETON, WTO Essentials, Inc.

a municipal cerporation

By: By:

Name: [Eric Peng] Name: __Charles Smith
Its: Mayor Its:

Dated: [date} Dated: [date]
"OWNER"

By:

Name:

Its;

Dated: [date]

[Exhibit E



RECORDATION OF THIS CERTIFICATE 15 THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE REQUESTING PARTY.

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the ideniity of the individual who signed the
doctiment to which this certificare is anached, and not the truhfilness, aceuracy, or validity of that deciment

Acknowledgment

Siate of California )
County of Sacramento )

On before me, . Notary
Public, personally appeared , who proved to me on the
basis of salisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by
his/her/their signature on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person{s) acted,
executed the instrument.

I centify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing pamgraph is
true and correct,

Witness my hand and official seal,

, Notary Public

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the trethfulness. accuracy, or validity of that decument.

Acknowledpment
State of California }
County of Sacramento  }
On , before me, , Notary
Public, personally appeared , who proved to me on the

basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person{s) whose name({s) iz'are subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledyed to me that heishe/they executed the same in histherftheir authorized capacity{ics), and that by
his/her/their signature on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted,
exccuted the instrument.

1 centify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
truc and correct.

Wilness my hand and official seal.

, Notary Public




Exhibit A to Memorandum of Agreement

Legal Description

Real property in the City of isleton, County of Sacramento, State of California, described as
follows:

Lots 1 and 2 Block 17, Lots 6,7,8,9, and 10, Block 16, City of Isleton, Containing 35,630 square
feet (M/L). APK 157-0073-031.

16913294 (1571017



Exhibit A to Memarandum of Agreement {continued)

%

SLAPAHACTUSHIGL, CME TR ILITION |
0 AT e
i ke sy

FRAL KDY FaRMS

S——
b ST R

"

T

b
il

PROECT - SIEPLAN] w1







Attachment 1

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT TO BE ADDED HERE

11



Attachment D
Planning Commission Staff Report Package

City of Isleton DATE: April 13, 2022
Planning Commission ITEM#:
Staff Report CATEGORY: New Business

CANNABIS CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION CUP 01-22 AND
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT DA 2022-01, 402 JACKSON BLVD. UNIT 2, WTO
ESSENTIALS, INC, APPLICANT

CONTINUED REVIEW
This item was continued from the April 5, 2022, Planning Commission meeting due to lack of
providing the Commission sufficient information to review the applications.

BACKGROUND

WTO Essentials, INC LLC (Charles Smith, owner/contact), has submitted an application for
conditional use to occupy a 4,200 square foot section of an existing 6,800 square foot commercial
building located at 402 Jackson Boulevard to operate a cannabis manufacturing and distribution
business. The property is owned by Delta Boyz Enterprises, LLC, who has signed a letter of
consent to lease the property for commercial cannabis building to the applicant. The remaining
2,600 square foot portion of the building (Building Unit 1) is being used by Delta Agricultural
Holdings, LLC, as another cannabis manufacturing and distribution business (previously approved
by the City in 2019 under Conditional Use Permit CUP 10-18 and Development Agreement DA
2018-08).

In addition to using Unit 2 of the building, WTO, the applicant, proposes installation of two
manufacturing control units located outside the building. The manufacturing facility proposes to
operate from 4:00 a.m. through 9:00 p.m., seven days a week. The facility will eventually expand
operations to 24 hours a day. Both WTO and Delta plan to use the common areas, including
driveways, parking, fencing, trash enclosure, lighting, and landscaping, As referenced in the
Business Plan, WTO, would be the primary manager of on-site operations (refer to Attachment 2).

A use permit application has been filed with the City to allow commercial cannabis (manufacturing
and distribution) in accordance with Section 2307 of the City of Isleton Municipal Code. In
addition, a development agreement has been proposed in conjunction with the use permit. Both
the use permit and development agreement are subject to review by the Planning Commission for
recommendation to the City Council for final adoption to permit the proposed commercial
cannabis operations.

PROJECT SITE SETTING

The property is located at 402 Jackson Boulevard, which is in the western portion of Isleton, just
south of Fourth Avenue. The lot size is 0.82 acre and contains an existing industrial/commercial

12



building, totaling 6,800 square feet. The building was built in 1935 and has been used for
warehousing and industrial uses.

The property is located within two zoning districts: the majority of the property that contains the
building and parking is within the PDI — Planned Industrial Zoning District. A lower triangular
piece of the property, containing area for six parking spaces is within the RM3- Multi-family
Residential Zoning District. Please refer to Attachment 6, General Plan Consistency Report which
includes a zoning map in relation to the project site. The property is surrounded by residentially
zoned areas to the north and west, and industrial/commercial areas to the south and east (refer to
Attachment 3, Vicinity Map and Site Photos).

CANNABIS REGULATIONS

Ordinance 2018-02, Section 2306 states cannabis operations can be established within the C-
Commercial and PDI-Planned Industrial Districts in the City, and provides several conditions to
which cannabis operations must comply, including:

An executed Development Agreement (refer to Attachment 5); and

An approved public safety and security plan (refer to Attachment 2); and

An approved ventilation and odor control plan (refer to Attachment 2); and

No signage advertising the proposed use are to be posted at the Property; and

No access to anyone under 21 years of age (18 years in certain state-mandated cases).

ok =

Section 2305 further requires all cannabis operations to be sited at least 600 feet from any school,
child care center, or youth center. The project is located at over 600 feet from these activities (refer
to Attachment 7).

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The project qualifies as categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) Guidelines under Section 15301 for Existing Facilities. Similar to other commercial
cannabis projects which are located within the downtown, this project is not expected to result in
any significant adverse environmental impacts, such as traffic, air quality, or biology, since the
project is a re-occupancy of an existing building and the proposed use is not expected to increase
impacts as compared to current and previous industrial and commercial of the building and
grounds, Prior to approving the project, the Commission will need to concur with this
determination of environmental exemption.

LAND USE COMPATIBIITY AND ZONING CODE COMPLIANCE
In accordance with Section 1407 of the Zoning Code, the Planning Commission must make the
following findings to approve this conditional use permit:

A. That there are circumstances or conditions applicable to the land, structure or use which
makes the granting of a use permit necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a
substantial property right.

B. That the proposed location of the conditional use is in accordance with the objectives of

the zoning ordinance and the purposes of the district in which the site is located.
C. That the proposed use will comply with each of the applicable provisions of the Zoning
Code.

i3



This conditional use permit involves cannabis manufacturing processes (production of cartridges
and concentrates) and distribution of product to licensed cannabis dispensaries. The current
operation, on a smaller scale over the last few years has not resulted in any complaints from the
neighborhood, such as odor or noise. The proposed operation plan does address this, including no
outdoor operations, such as vehicle loading between 10 pm and 7 am, consistent with the City’s
noise regulations and odor control. A detailed lighting plan with photo-metric diagram, shows the
addition of some exterior lighting to be installed within the parking lot and behind the building.
Lighting has been designed to avoid any significant light glare onto adjacent properties. This plan
also includes maintaining a maximum employee occupancy of 20 to comply with the City’s off-
street parking regulations of one space per employee (refer to Attachment 2).

DESIGN REVIEW

This application proposes some improvements to the common areas, such as landscaping, lighting,
fence screening, that are expected to enhance the site’s appearance. Proposed changes appear to
comply with the City’s related design requirements.

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Development agreements are contracts negotiated between project proponents and public agencies
that govern the land uses that may be allowed in a particular project. In accordance with City
Ordinance 2018-02, Section 2306-A, a Development Agreement has been submitted for the
proposed commercial cannabis operations (refer to Attachment 4). Terms of this agreement were
developed between the City Manager and the applicant. Highlights of the development agreement
include:

A. Maintaining appropriate security on the site.

B. Maintaining financial records and payment to the City from gross receipts.
C. Insurance, indemnification, and operational requirements.

D. Transferability of business.

Although a development agreement is subject to final adoption by the City Council as a legislative
act that shall be approved by ordinance. (Gov. Code § 65867.5(a). The development agreement
shall not be approved unless the City Council makes a finding that the provisions of the agreement
are consistent with the general plan. (/d.) The Planning Commission is requested to review the
agreement to determine whether it is consistent with the objectives policies, and general land use
plans for the City, and forward its recommendation to the City Council.

The Development Agreement consisting of Attachment 4 is in draft form and still required further
review and amendments by the City Attorney.

As previously considered in this report, the proposed commercial cannabis operations appear to
be consistent with the General Plan and in compliance with the Zoning Code, so the Planning
Commission may find that the subject development agreement should be adopted by the City
Council (subject to final legal review).

14



PUBLIC COMMENTS

The City received an email from Terri Hupfer on March 29, 2022, noting concerns with the
proposed project (see Attachment 7). Concerns including pedestiran access and children safety,
traffic impacts, noise, smell and light pollution, signage, and taxes. As provided in the project
business plan/project description, most of these concerns have been addressed. Staff finds traffic
impacts would be neglible as compared to previous occupancies of the building with the limitation
of 20 employees on the site and normal operations of the commercial building.

FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS

Attachment 1 of this staff report consists of Planning Commission Resolution PC 01-22 which
includes a number of findings and conditions necessary for the Commission’s recommendation
of approval to the City Council. These conditions are summarized as follows:

1 and 2 related to project description and indemnity.

3-5 and 9 relate to the Development Agreement.

6 requires cannabis licensing from the State.

7 requires obtaining permits from City and others prior to occupancy.

8 allows for temporary building occupancy but requires all improvements from the
project plans, such as parking, landscaping and lighating, be completed within 6 months.
9-13 related to periodic reviews and entitlement acknowlegement.

moO®wps

™

RECOMMENDATION

The Planning Commission should hold further continued public review of this project by this
public hearing, consider the applicant’s, staffs and public comments and approve Planning
Commission Resolution PC01-22 (based on findings and subject to conditions) and recommend
this item to the City Council. Or the Commission may continue this item with further direction to
staff. Please note that any continuance of the project must be agreeable to the applicant. Should
the Commission choose to recommend denial of the project, the item should be continued with
direction to staff to prepare findings for this action.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Business Plan (Amendment No. 1 Approved by the Planning Commission on April 13,
2022

2. Public Comments

3. Traffic and Lighting Impacts Details

15



ATTACHMENT 2
WTO ESSENTIALS, INC. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION CUP 01-22
BUSINESS AND IMPROVEMENT PLANS
AMENDMENT NO. 1
Approved by Planning Commission on April 13, 2022

BACKGROUND

WTO Essentials, Inc is organized as a California Corporation in the State of California. The
articles of incorporation were filed with the Secretary of State. Our ownership team includes
cannabis entrepreneurs with expertise in cannabis extraction and agricuiture.

WTO Essentials produces the Friendly Farms brand.

Friendly Farms manufactures preeminent quality cannabis cartridges and concentrates. The
award winning brand plans to operate a state of the art manufacturing facility at 402 Jackson
Blvd, Isleton, CA 95641. WTO will operate out of Building Unit 2, consisting of a 4,200 square
foot section of the building. Manufacturing will be conducted within two separate extraction
units next to Building Unit 2 and within the 4,200 square foot portion of the building.
Distribution will be conducted within a separate distribution space within a designated 1,150 sq
ft area of Building Unit 2. Manufacturing and distribution operations will be completed
separated from operations of Delta Agriculture, LLC, who currently operates out of Building
Unit 1 (see attached site plan and floor plan). An interior wall will be installed between the
building units as shown on the floor plan.

EXISTING OPERATION

Delta Agriculture, LLC, received previous conditional use permit and development agreement
approval from the City in 2019, and has since been operating within a part of the existing
building and part of the existing site. Manufacturing will continue to be conducted from one
extraction unit, located next to Building Unit 1 and within a 2,600 square foot portion of the
building. Distribution operations will occur within Building Unit 1 and in a separate cargo
container located next to Unit 1. Distribution and manufacturing operations of Delta will be
conducted completely separate from proposed operations of WTO Essentials under the original
Conditional Use Permit and Development Agreement.

SHARED MANAGEMENT

Between the two owner operators a maximum of 20 employees will utilize the 6,800 square foot
building. Multiple shifts will be conducted by both Delta Agriculture, LLC and WTO Essentials,
Inc. which will reduce the amount of parking needed and to comply with the City’s off-strect
parking regulations with a maximum 20 employees on site at any one time. Both companies will
operate as separate businesses under the same development agreement for this property. Charles
Smith, the owner of WTO Essentials, Will be the party responsible for managing and addressing
operational conditions on the site, including waste management, noise and odor control,
maintenance of the exterior building and outdoor common spaces, such as fencing, landscaping,
and lighting.

16



PROPERTY OWNER RELATIONSHIP

The project site is located at 402 Jackson Blvd, Isleton, CA and is currently owned by Delta
Boyz Retail Ventures, LLC, Delta Agricultural Holdings, LLC has a lease for using the property
for commercial cannabis operations by Delta Boyz Retail Ventures, LLC. Delta Boyz Retail
Ventures, LLC, is currently operating a cannabis manufacturing operation under City approved
Conditional Use Permit CUP 10-18 and Development Agreement DA 2019. Delta Agricultural
Holdings, LLC has a signed a letter of consent to lease the building to the applicant, WTO
Essentials, Inc, for commercial cannabis operations. The City will need to constder each
business as having a separate location (premises) being Delta Agriculture at 402 Jackson Blvd,
Unit 1, and WTO Essentials, Inc, at 402 Jackson Blvd, Unit 2. Prior to establishing operations,
WTO Essentials, Inc, will need to secure a conditional use permit and development agreement
from the City and commercial cannabis licensing from the State.

HOURS OF OPERATION (WTO)
The manufacturing facility proposes to operate from 4:00 a.m. through 9:00 p.m., seven days a
week. The facility will eventually expand operations to 24 hours a day.

NOISE CONTROL
In accordance to the City’s Noise regulations, outdoor activity, including any loading or
unloading of vehicles, will be restricted to 7 am to 10 pm.

EXTERIOR LIGHTING DESIGN AND MAINTENANCE

In accordance with the project improvements plans new freestanding lighting will be installed
within the parking lot and around the building. This lighting shall be designed to cut off excess
light glare to levels not exceeding those shown on the photo-metric diagram. If the operator or
City receives complaints from the neighborhood from excess lighting glare, lighting shall be
repaired, reoriented, and/or replaced to reduce off-site light bleed to an acceptable level as
determined by the City Manager.

DESCRIPTION OF ON-SITE MACHINERY (WTO)

e QOdor control System, UV Ultra Violet Ozone 8 Units UVONAIR CD -1200 X 20 Units,
18-to 48" Inch collection HVAC upper wall fans, pull out air flow inside vent exhaust
fans

o HVAC Systems, 12 GMP Mini split AC/Heat units

e Security Systems Cameras, Surveillance compliant 120-day backup system with 24-hour
battery backup and 72 Camera’s, walkie talkies, WIFI system, monitors

e Generator 120/208V 3 Phase NG (Natural Gas 45KW Generac/Zoro/Stand by Generator

e 2 Fork lifts- cat v18-188

e Extraction Equipment, 2 Extraction Booths — C1D1 labs custom booth; 2 Extractors-
C1D1 Labs custom closed loop {certified); LP Recovery Pump - Master Vapor Pump -
MVP; Purging Oven - Across International -Vacuum Oven 7.5 Cu Ft; 40Purging Ovens —
10 Across International - Vacuum Oven 1.9 Cu Ft; Oven Vacuum/Pump- Atlas Copco -
GVD 28; 4 Air Compressor- Central Pneumatic - 125 psi; 4 Freezers — Mr. Winter
20x20; Water Heater, 2 Icon hash washers

17



EXTRACTION PROCESS
Butane closed loop extraction
Mechanical Separation (hash production with ice and water)

CANNABIS PRODUCTS PRODUCED
¢ Concentrates
Vape Cartridges
Infused/ non infused pre-rolls
Cannabis edibles
Packaged flower
Lotions, ointments
DESCRIPTION OF STORED CHEMICALS

Quantity Stored on

Reagent Site
Acetone 99% Technical Grade

UN:1090 10 gal

[soPrOH 99% UN:1219 50 gal
Nitrogen (Gas) UN:1066 1000 Cu Ft

Nitrogen (Liquid) UN:1977 0 lbs

Butane/Propane (70/30) UN:1965 1200 lbs
CO2 (Solid) UN:1845 10000 lbs
ODOR CONTROL

The Manufacturing facility will ensure that it does not emit a detectable odor. Specifically, odor
control at the manufacturing facility will be handled by mechanical air cleaning within the
building. The FILTR revolution 115 and Object Disinfection System will feature a state-of-the-
art powered air scrubber that will remove the odors associated with cannabis manufacturing.
Utilizing a combination of charcoal filters and ultraviolet (UV) lighting, the scrubber will filter
air that is then exhausted, at a rate of approximately 45 pascals of air, through the normal HVAC
system to the outside.

This system has been proven to effectively filter objectionable odors from a wide variety of
facilities, including hospitals, smoking environments, and garbage rooms. It features roof-top
units that are designed to maximize energy efficiencies through smart technology and a
powerful, easy to use unit controller.

Each unit treats approximately 1,500 square feet of space; therefore, our proposed structure will
require a minimum of 3 units for manufacturing. This system will control odors that may be
emitted during the manufacturing of cannabis extracts.

SECURITY PLAN
Intrusion Detection System

18



All points will be tested at the local level.

All points will be inspected for damage.

Connection to the Central Station will be verified.

A report will be created covering all services per quarter.

Access Control System
e All access points will be tested.
e The access control server will be inspected.
e Software update if available will be applied.
e Batteries will be verified in proper working order.

A report will be created providing covering all services per quarter.

Electronic Video Surveillance
e All cameras will be cleaned.
All cameras’ views will be verified and adjusted if needed.
Recording servers and drive integrity will be inspected.
Software updates if available will be applied.
ADT communication connections to the Police department will be veritied.

ACCESS CONTROL SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

The proposed access control system will be a non-proprietary, LTS door access controller. LTS
components are used for many access control uses within many cannabis companies. In the event
the access control software company’s service falls inadequate, the entire system can be reset
and have all user access revoked. This will create a secure system to depend on for cannabis
activity containment.

Movement within each area of the facility will be tightly controlled. All main access doors and
doors to the manufacturing areas will require card readers with keypads. Card reader doors shall
be monitored by a DPDT balanced magnetic switches. These

contacts will allow the door to be monitored by both the access coatrol system and the intrusion
system from a single balanced magnetic switch. Single doors will require (1) balanced magnetic
switch. The doors will also be equipped with a request to exit by integrated hardware. All
locking hardware leading into the building and secure areas shall be commercial grade. (The
locksets will not require povwer to unfock). In the event of a power loss or failure of the system,
the door will remain secure through deadbolt locks. Free egress will always be allowed. All
perimeter doors shall be monitored and will alarm at the access control workstation to provide an
immediate notification of a breach by text message or audible alarm.

CREDENTIALS AND ACCESS LEVELS

Only permitted employees will be allowed into respective areas of the facility in which their
access levels are assigned. All card reader equipped doors will require the employee or
respective personnel to present the proper credential and enter their unique pin code to gain
access. If an employee was to lose a card, it shall be reported immediately to the Security
Manager. The card shall be deactivated from the system and the employee will be provided a
new credential with a néw unique pin code. The main purpose of dual authentication, is to

19



prevent an individual from gaining access to areas if a credential is lost or stolen. All access
tevels shall be created unique, named logically, and shall not share common access areas with
restricted access areas. Proximity cards shall not be used as technology has surpassed the
credential and can easily be copied.

ACCESS CONTROL BADGING SYSTEM

Security personnel issuing badges shall be equipped with a badge printer. Each employee will
have their picture taken behind a yellow back drop. Each badge will require a unique template
created for the premises. Credentials shall not be handed out without the proper badge template
and portrait of the employee.

INTRUSION DETECTION SYSTEM
The selected security systems integrator will install, maintain, and use a professionally monitored
intrusion detection system to meet the following requirements:

® The system shall report to a UL listed central monitoring station at the Signal
transmission will be via dedicated telephone line with cellular backup module.

® The control panel shall be an enterprise level burglar alarm control panel;

® At a minimum, the system shall provide coverage of all facility entrances and exits,
rooms with exterior windows, rooms with exterior walls, roof hatches, skylights, and
storage room(s) the contain safe(s).

® The system shall have an estimated (3) duress buttons installed for personnel in common
areas.

® The duress button shall be sifent not to aggravate the individual causing the duress
situation.

20



BUNDXMG STORES: OME (1)
BURLDING AREA: I 440 5F

CELTA AVE,

PROJECT - SITE PLAN|™

PROJECT IMPROVEMENT PLANS

21

{MANUFACTURING, DHSTRIBUTION)

FRIENDLY FARMS




Fit

b

Ll
4

fh

i
Y

PROJECT - FLOOR PLAN [~ ‘mymm | 1

z
=
s
Z
2
:
g

FRIENDLY FARMS

NEW PROITCT FOR:

22



..........

At i
[ o

. e | |12 ENCLOSURE ROOF FRAMING PLAN | s | 4 [[E=555

AL " { <L ;
¥
’ Faanar il o i | | A, 1
e [ e : m_. SRR © ] ) i
FiE : s =mpmz_ ) L bt sl (e i H
e | HETe—— Y1
— mmrear L nr.l_ e foi iy
YO |, = : L P & H i ——uEns
| ; - T 8 Fia 1AL
ENCLOSURE FOUNDATION PLAN [~ i | 15 | "tvamamsoumae [=55 99 TRASH ENCLOSURE PLAN [ mumms | 3 F
2
TnrEmEee | =1 g n
=t 5 g
o= s Bk a 2 T8 3.
Y i gup 2
O . & 1 & Wm mm N
et (i oo 78 i g 25 83
HEESR S | tug xm
e . e o £z Y
jﬁw%..!azaﬂslﬂ_“a! [1a ] i BT =wEiERRs —
Ny e Py |n-.|4l ===
e e 1 S \.,* e B

ST W "

JRRr pps
bt s
[TV

ety For Y

- E
. ma 1 ity
\ oyt LA — .. ___ —w _.-
Sta T p——
tieatts il " =R SRS
=ineaente SaRNITESTAR o1y
TRASH ENCLEABLE ROOF | =+ 13 GATPOSTOCTAR. [ ™7™ g TRALH IR [=
ATTACKMENT DEINL ELEVATION

23




KEYNOTES

SHADE TREE COUNT

e m—r — g
LANDSCAPE AREA QTY.
B Al ——

DELTA AVE

£

g

5

£ 2
il
1858
w
mmm mmr

n A2.11
=1 S

PROJECT - LANDSCAPE PLAN |~

24



UGHT LEVEL STATISTICS
P P L

- . o

RELTAAYVE

KEYNCTES

IMANUFACTUR!NG, DESTRIBUTIOH)
402 MLASOm BOLRL YA
B FTOM, CA S5 41

D¢ SEHEMATI, 8 50500 FOR:
FRIENDLY FARMS

N
HE
L

A

PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN] ™ mymsi [ 1

25



d*series

Specifications
Luminaire

Width: 13247 weighe  12)bs
Dapth: 10*

Height:  &38"

i

¥ catatog

D-Series Size1 |+
LED Wall Luminaire P reors

oicht. ) ik
— Buy Amuwtican

Introduction
The D-Series Wall luminaire is a stylish, fully
Back Box (BBW, E20WC) integraled LED solution for building-mount
Width, 1324 BBW Sibs  applications. It features a sleek, modern design
T Waight: e . ) : ;
4 E20WE o and is carefully engineerad to provide long-lasting,
Depth: Weight: ...  energy-efficient lighting with a variety of optical
Helght: 638" and control options for customized performance,

With an expected service life of over 20 years of

nighttime use and up to 74% in energy savings

over comparable 250W metal halide luminaires,

the D-Series Wall is a reliable, low-maintenance

;:m}*l'[;;v':;)mr lighting solution that produces sites that are
exceptionally illuminated.

Ordering Information

pSIWILED

EXAMPLE: DSXW1 LED 20C 1000 40K T3M MVOLT DDBTXD

m AL LI ST = e m

DSIWILED | toC © D B Em

e s
mgy | 3C

0c pps | 0P Tum
s W T TR
oo

L Y (] [} B YET TS NYOLT | Shippedincuded ﬂhpedlmulle‘

oW 420K ™ pelloin 120’ ik Sums Flevedzirgnd Lurtea frpe?
LA T 1B pedde: | 208! opein IJMC- $ATC ™ Ja s puled oug e st e
KNI et T Cpeldeke | M40 byt uv:nd:uamr: IRIeAss t S IR R ML
MEF | g eMieto | B Soinee PR B ~spnan b Lt < ey v
o | it | '[";"1:.: | PRH B - ot b ghsom, S Wt Y
Moty 180 wroorday | PIRIFGY Ml dariense w15 mea s hogh,
=yl ' unbeea R el b Y

I PRHIFCSY  Motn/omentse s, 1% 30 mm:;re;n
Ut e et 14

BOWC  Emegeryham:yEr o Indudei iy
cenpul el TA T e gt

Shippedinstalled Shipped yeparately DORND [k beorne DSSID rhice DWHGID  FreLer whe

¥ Oelelre(23 51 3 3977 1@ BSW  [ixastert s DBUD  Eak DDBTXD  atieces'cume DSSTHD B i sy ot
O Dudense@ v W Ve gl CHAXD  Lanra dmnm DREBXD  euunad Bk

B lnesdesrde® DOL  Infraidrol=g DWHID e PHATXD  Tutind ribasd akrin

R Semaersgepale e ®

Accessories Mo
Qrcdypand aeed shvroe dmpert sty
CUMAD oo e dirkd o et
Ihengine)
DAWSWY Bl detrroet s
INCWIGH ekl quad vy

[T T RPN

20C 5000w net sralable with PR, PIRH, PIRVFCIV or FIEH I FC3V.

MYOLT devvae apmraton on any |t valadus brom 120-27TV (50060 ).

Singla hae (57} raquores 120, 277 10 47 valtage option Double fuse (CF) requues 200, 240 or $50 votsge epfion.

Ondy auadable with 20C. 700mA o 1000mA. Not svalable with PR o PRH.

Back bos sheps installect on fixture. Camet be fivkd it alled. Carnet be ardemed 5 20 accersoey.

Fhotacortred {PE) mquirss 120, 208, 240, 777 or M7 vokage opton. Net available et rretied st light saeaon (P18 or PIRH)]

Reterance Motion Semaor table on page .

Sarrer a0 old ELOW. Cald wasther {-20C} rated. Not o by weth cond ut: entry L MhllﬁmmmmthMliﬂo-lhleﬂ

avalubde with 147 or 460 voltaga cptions Emwmmh:mdnb«ih:hm gy Mo ES fles P Page 8 e B 2
@ Hot avadabls with SPD.
11 Mt pradable with E20WG.
11 Ao erallible as & saparate sicsisnsy; 4 Atoesscrias Homamsn
12 Kot sead ol weth E200C.

LITHONIA Cines Likoniit Way ¢ Conpors, Goonga 30012 « Fhono: 1 800 /05 SERV {7378
LIGMTING. € 2002 202 pary Bancz Lghil~g, ~a AT bt piraned
T =ik

26



Performance Data

Lumen Ambient Temperature (LAT} Multiphers
LUsa these factors 1o detarmine efatws kumen cutput for evetige ambient tesnperatres
from 0-M0C (32.104°F)

Ambaeni Lumen Muttipliee

er art 52

I3 [ I

WT T 100

FIas irid 1.00

e =T 150

3 04T 058
Projected LED Lumen Maintenance
mm?ﬁ?—m budp:nﬁwwhudl.mmgwdf o

el projected per ESKA T-21.11)

Tanhl-lll-!-?.lnﬂh luman, mairiarance {actor that comesponds t the Jesved nurber
of opetating hours below. For othar lamen mastenance vshars, contact factory.

1mee |

T | |
|

Electrical Load

15a W

- 3%} 10w
m Iiw
o0 ow
fi )I.w‘ A
£ Hw on 019 ol AL

i g iTw (10} [} i [ 4] s [
Tom TAW 05 o# a5 [ R[] 01y aar

Malion Senset Defauls Settings

| mumomm |
| omosm |

P "
Todmrn Sattrel

Photometric Diagrams Ta tea complets photometric ports or downkoad as files for this product, visit Lithonis Lighting's - Serles Wl $oe 1 homepuga.

kaloctcndis plais for the DO LED 200 1060 40 Dintaivces are in unis ol incuntig height (151
b TR DR DD @ 31 0 vy
4 4
| B
]
W ose '
S RTT t '

-
&

- - -

Drstribatian ov iy compaslion ko 250N metal haide.

AW LED 200 A ) Y
TAFII0A P 15 Rireng bt

Options and Accessories

-P-e

Ti (lefi} HS - Howse-side shiekds

FEATURES & SPECIFICATIONS

INTEMDED USE
Thet anegy snings, kang e and aaey i Stall v o de [ Seces Wall Stre 1 nwke o The mnant
whrdcar bt Lot ey mwsun ] chorrwary dned pasthoecay [Burrinanon ke neardy sny tacibe
CDM‘I‘RUCI’ION

1 ki N

f ]
M q M n

wiienpal st ek s oqaenies ermal usgpieed

g Merdular chesipn sllows. h-nuhw-lhnann TeIIT)
dwummhdmwmhnnlhmmmnm‘ b

et forg lde: Mnmhmlwmmmlmmdmnhwm
[RhIEH

Extarriw j10 0w prctmciind by @ m ifupssnd Stm-r Dur*i- 16K dharranat ;rmh(cnuM
it prisick uqn.vu ‘ Avgitly ¢ alya

"mh‘“" ot » el Lhal con withalond extresne: chimata
dw-_)n-s withaut cradmg of prrwbinng S adatve I Teagimed sred non teesnred Bnalws
oFhics
l‘rochlm-mnldld, ¥ ;myla‘c' rovidks mashtipha ph Bawrd

wilored
Light eovpesess are swaskabobe i XXLTK (70 rrun, CRY,
mxmmm o 5000 K {70 . TRY) comibbepst atiom.

ELECTMCAL

Tight angnels} comial of 10 gty | M mounied 1o 1 metalcoee cnanl bosrd fa meumiie
Tt cleazpation and promota keng B @ 88/ 10000 e 4t 25°C Class 1 shactonic crivers
Turvey 8 oy Bactoar YTR, IHUE <AT%, aned & movenym 25KV sape tating Wi ordenng the
SPD cyrtion, b soprato surga prutoction device i insLalioc] within ha kemenawe which mocts 5

B5W - Hird-deterent spikes

¥G -Yandal guard

DOL- Diffased droplems

INFTALLATION
Inchuck d e k chy W am; 3° round o squem outlel bax
foe tunh ancl ey installsbion hlliruicllnn woatzex ] spaskat witeway wod alluches i the

§ backetvia

LISTINGS
CEA entithad 11! S anud Canachsn stanlarcis, Tatexd ke AP eirdeenan sinbhoil

Lights Comartium® (DLCH qualthed product. Hot sl vertdons nllhlmmduu rmrb-
LLc qu-lllln-l Flaato check the UL Quakibed Prochucts Lint at
candirm which versions 3o quebBod

BUY AMERICAN

This prexcduct i sssermbsbed i tha USA and meats the Buy Americs{nd govesnesnt
Peccxsernen| texpircrients wrmics FAR, FARS and DOT. Mouse: 1ol o

s coa/iny o serichn bur sdoibenst inkorhaton.

WARRANTY

Fhver-yaar himitosd warranty This i tho ondy warranty prevkdod and na othor sttt in dis
wpraboaton sheel crole any winanly of sty kil &1 pther papuess snd yrpled wartanbes
wree cisclanninc. Coerplals warianiy tevire ) dat

st e LT g ot A T ancd L
Mmkﬂdp«hmrnnwd!hnanmhulmdum.mlmdwnm
Al vahuos are design o isia values, J uredes 1 hora ot 75 G,
Sparcrhcations subpect to changw widhout notice.

wuimraen Category C Low Gan ANSSFIT CA2.81 D)
LITHONIA Cne LithonizWay * Conyurs, Googia JUM2 » Phene: | B00 M SERV (1218} » NS I
LIBHNTING., @3 2 Aruiry Branads Lighaing, Inc AW ghets venermc] Kew O
—-—

CUMMERGAL CUEDOOR

27



Yvanne Zepeda

From: Terri Hupfer <hupfertermri@gmail.coms

Senk Tuesday, March 29, 2022 5:43 PM

Jo: yvonne.zepeda@cityofisleton.com

Subject: Re:Public hearing 4/5/22 re: Conditional use permit for 402 Jackson Bivd

"WWe, Isleton residents, and close neighbors of this business are writing (o express the following concerns:

L. I¥e are very worried about increased traffic to our streets. The current fence at the Properly extends io the
street and there is not even a sidewalk. Many of us, our neighbors, their children and pets walk in this
neighborhood, There would be a grent deal more troffic here, especially since our speed bumps have not been
replaced on Delta Ave.

2. Would sales be to the public or only wholesale? This would affect Iraffic volume as well,

3. What sort of provisions have been made Jfor noise, smell and Increased light pollution from the focility?

4. Will there be incrensed signage to divert commercial trafjic away from our residential area?

J. We have been told that the taxes paid by cannabis businesses benefit the City, but we have yet to see results
of said taxes. We feel that in addition to taxes there should be an expeciation of upgrading the property, as we
have done with our own homes.

6. We have also heard thai a large complex has been approved at the former site of the Meadows, This will also
add 1o noise and traffic. We do not object to the City courting new businesses, but want to insure that they add
rather than take away from aur town.

Sincerely,
Terri Hupfer
Nolan Kelly
Andi Martiner
Jesus Marer
Dan Mclean
Paul Tonris
Jay Arter

28



Memo
April 12, 2022

To: City of Isleton Planning Commission
From: Chuck Bergson, City Manager
Subject: Environmental Review for WTO Use Permit for Commercial Cannabis

At the April 4, 2022, Planning Commission meeting, Commissioner Jones noted some concerns
for the project’s environmental determination for this project. Commissioner Jones followed up
with our Planning Consultant, to further consider more specific concems. Commissioner Jones
more specifically noted the following concerns from the project:

1. The potential for traffic impacts from occupying the vacant portion of the building with
a commercial cannabis operation and particularly the expanded schedule of 24 hours,
seven days a week; and

2. Lighting impacts from exterior lighting particularly light glare onto adjoining residents.

We. Price conducted further research on these impacts and concluded that although the project
will result in some increased traffic and lighting impacts, these impacts would not be significant.

Traffic Impact Analysis: We reached out to licensed traffic engineers, W-Trans, who conducted
an analysis of the project using the 11'" edition Institute of Traffic Engineer’s Rate Schedule for
“Manufacturing”. W-Trans indicated that due to the small scale of the project, traffic
generation rates should be about 50 new vehicle trips per day. Based on the draft traffic
analysis conducted by Gandini, Traffic Consultants, in December 2021, for the Draft 2040
General Plan Circulation element, existing traffic levels on Jackson Blvd. are about 1,000 vehicle
trips daily operating at A Level of Service. At General Plan build-out with the project,
operations remain at least at a B Level of Service (see attached tables from traffic study). With
a 0.04 percent increase in overall traffic volumes, the project would result in negligible traffic
impacts.

Lighting Impacts: We noted concerns to the applicant regarding concerns of the use of
freestanding lighting fixtures at the back of the building (criginally shown in Attachment 2).
These 18-foot-tall fixtures would have potentially resulted in light glare into the back yards of
many adjoining residential properties. In response the lighting plan was revised. A new lighting
design has been submitted removing those freestanding light standards with wall mounted
lighting. As shown on Attachment 2, Amendment No. 1, the results are reduced illumination
levels along the back to further minimize light glare onto adjoining residents.

Attachments: 1. W-Trans Email and Traffic Tables from Ganddini Traffic Impact Study
2. Lighting Details
3. Attachment 2, Amendment No. 1-Business Plan

29



Email from W-Trans

April 11, 2922

1 did a quick analysis for you using the 11" edition rates for “Manufacturing”. The problem with
using standard rates based on floor area for such a small project is that the trip count doesn’t
align with expectations for employees. I would suggest using rates with the total employment
count as the independent variable (the third row below); this seems more reasonable to me. 20
employees would be expected to result in 50 daily trips. I've also attached an expert from the
Manual if you want to dig into the rates a little more.

Lang Trip
Rumbar | L Uss Land lse.

Trip
Towt | VitpRate | Mumber | i | ow | ou | ow Mumber n n
perter Mombe | HofTpn | Beotosstion [RASA | Tibe | werine | ortem |0 | g | rape | 5 | ok | ctriet |05 |oiTin | M6 | ey | qripey |94 | ot | o
At o
a L1 Aa Mamdactuing | tbantn e ars x a8 L] » o%s 2 H [ 1] ] 1 L) 3 21 [ F:] 1 -] o8 1
3 —— — . —— - -
b Ll ) | 140 l-u-u.xu | UmagvBatartn I ars I Fr} nu_!_ [ nT oz | a M _n_m_l 1| an ! ) l 1] InnT L_I_uj (1Y) T 3
T — . o T T - =T g
L T"’“""‘l 1 o UrharySuinrhan 2 o 022 ¢ . n 1 ug‘J_ s ! | om I 1 ] oy t 0 1 :n'wl- ot | 7 Jev|em | a4 |

You might also want to consider a totally custom trip generation assessment considering
employees and deliveries/shipments. This might be the most accurate option.

30



Table 3

Existing Intersection Levels of Service

Teaffic AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Study Imtersection Jurisdiction! Controf? | Detay® | LOSY | Dday? | L0587
1. A St {NS) at River Rd/SR-160(EW} ksleton/Caltrans 55 1320 B 1376 B
2. C 51(N5) at River Rd/SR-160 (EW) Isleton/Caltrans 55 1203 B 1386 B
3, 2nd 5 (NS] at River Rd/SR-160 (EW) Isleton/Caltrans 55 1425 B 1506 Cc
4. H St NS at River Rd/SR-160 (EWY Isleton/Caltrans £S5 1023 B 1223 B
5. Tyler ksland Bridge Rd (NS) at River Rd/SR-160 (EW} Isleton/Caltrans Css 1144 B 1282 B
6. Tvier kland Bridge Rd [NSI at 4th St (EW) fsleton 55 B.54 A B.59 A

Motes:

(1) 7S = Traffic Signal, €55 = Cross Street Stop: AWS = All-Way Stop

{2] Ddayis shownin secondsfvehicle, For intersections with traffic signal, overall average intersection delay and LOS are shown
For mtersections with cross street stop control, LOS is based on average delay of the worst approach,

(3] LOS = Level of Service

10

31

Phase 3 City of lsleton General Ptan Update
Traffic iImpact Analysis

19440



Table 5
General Plan Bulldout 2040 Intersection Levels of Service

Traffic AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Study Intersection Jurisdiction! Control® Delay* | L0S® | Delay® | LOS?
1. A St (NS at River Rd/SR-180 (EW) steton/ Caltrans S5 1590 Cc 2088 C
2. C5t(NS) at River Rd/SR-160 (EW) Isteton/ Caltrans 55 1633 [ 2143 (=
3. 2nd St (5] at. River Ret/SR-160 (EW] Isleton/Caltrans S5 2659 D 2616 3]
4, H St (NS) at River Rd/SR-160 (EW) Isleton/Caltrans 55 1182 B 16.60 [
5. Tyler Island Bridge Rd (NS) at River Rd/SR-140 (EW] Isleton/Caltrans €55 1431 B 17.67 [
6. Tyler Istand Bridge Rl (NS} at &th StEW) Isleton 55 8.64 A 5.69 A

Notes:
{1) €SS = Cross Strest Stop
(2} Delayis shown in seconds/vahicle For intersections with traffic signal, overall average intersection delay and LOS are shown.
For ntersections with cross street stop contral, LOS is based on average delay of the worst approach.
(3] LOS= Level of Service

. Phase 3 City of Isleton General Pian Update
» Traffic Impact Aralysis

19460

32



Table 10
General Plan Bulldout 2040 With Project Conditions Roadway Segment Level of Service

AU Wath
Roadway Segment Project Roadway Roadway ‘é;";’;ﬁi,’, h
D Name Link Traffic! (Classification® Capacity’] Patio | Senvice
1 |River Rd/SR-160 West of ASL 11221 |Rural, 24" pavement, &' paved shoulder 20000 | 0.56 D
2 |lackson Slough Rd West of Jacksors Blvd 1898 |Rural, <24' pavement, <4' paved shoulder 12800 | 0.4 B
3 |H Streat River fd/SR-160 tg éth 5t 483 Rural, <24’ pavemnent, <4' paved shoulder 12800 | 004 A
4 | Tyler kland Bridge Rd  |River Rd/SR-140 to &6th 5t 1,198  |Rural, <24' pavenent, <4’ paved shoulder 12 800 009 B

Notes
(1) Roadway Link Average Daily Traffic Traffic (see Table 1).

(2§ Source: Cour

jnes (September 10, 2020).

17

33

Phase 3 City of Isleton General Plan Update
Tratfic impact Analysis

19460



Table 7
Existing Conditions Roadway Segment Level of Service

Roadway Segnent i Existing Roadway Roadway Vc:‘::;:; L:fd
D | Name Link Traffic® Classification® Capacity’l _Ratio | Senvice
1 [JRiver Rd/SR-140 West of ASt 6,668  |Rural, 24' pavement, § paved shoulder 20000 033 [of
2 |ackson Slough Rd West of Jadkson Bivd 1033  |Rural, <24’ pavement, <é' paved shoulder 12800 | 008 B
3 |H Street River Rd/SR-160 10 &th 5¢ 174 Rural, «24' pavement, <é' paved shoulder 12800 | 001 A
4 |Tyler Island Brdge Rd  |River Rd/SR-160to &th 51 507 JRural, <24' pavement, <6’ paved shoulder 12800 | 004 A

Notes,
1) Roadway Link Average Daily Tratfic Traifiz (see Table 1)
{2 Source Countw of Sagraments Traniportalion Anelvds Guidelines (September 10, 2020]

- ) Phase ?City of Isleton General Plan Undate
Tratfic Impact Analysis
4 19440

34



Table 10

General Plan Buildout 2040 With Project Conditlons Roadway Segment Level of Service

Roadway Segmant ‘ﬂzﬁ Roadway Roadway Zf;:"df}' L:fel
2] Name Link Tratfic? Qassification® Capacity®t_Rato | Senvce
1 |River Rd/SR-160 Westof ASt 11221 |Rural, 24" pavement, &' paved shoulder 20000 § 056 D
2 |lackson Slough Rd West of Jadkson Blvd 1598  |Rural, <24' pavement, <4' paved shoufder 12800 ) 0.16 B
3 [H Street. |River Rd/SR-16010 6th St 483 |R|.ral. <24' pavernent, <é' paved shoulder 128001 064 A
4 [Tyler tsland Bridge Rl Réver Rd/SR<160 10 &th St 1198 |fwral, <24' pavement, <4’ paved shouider | 12800 | 009 B

(1) Roadway Link Average Draily Tratfic Traffic (see Table 1).
(21 Source: County of Sacramenio Transportation Anatysis Guidelines (September 10, 20204,

17

35

Phase 3 City of lsleton General Plan Update
Traffic Impact Analysis

19440



DELTA AVE,

UGHT LEVEL STATISTICS

e Mrha WAL MmO Sl Swies STee

LN . 1 Al e

A

PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN |~ mmsi [ 1

KEYNOTES
Bea e bt b g e ks s 05
e i g
3 L DT TS T T )

{MANUFACTURING, DISTRIBUTION}

A JALESON BOULLYARD
B FTON, CA 95841

NFW SCHFMATIC DFSIGN FOA
FRIENDLY FARMS

36



D-Series Size 1
LED Wall Luminaire

G e =

Buy Ametican

d*series

Specifications
Luminaire Back Box (BBW, E20WC)
Width: 134" Waight:  12lbs  wigen 13347 SO S
10° 4" E20WC 101bs
Depth: Depth: Weight: Pt
Helght: 6%8° Heights 638"
[ p—

]
1

Frr 24 K= plda-ontry
ectwilat (EBW &byl

w

Catafag
Mot el
|7Nn:=~.

[~

Introduction

The D-Series Wall luminaire is a stylish, fully
integraled LED solution for building-mount
applications. It features a sleek, modem design
and is carefully engineered to provide long:-lasting,
energy-efliciznt lighting with a variety of optical
and control options for customized performance,

With an expected service life of over 20 years of
nighttime use and up 1o 74% in energy savings
over comparable 250W metal halide luminaires,
the D-Series Wall is a reliable, low-maintenance
lighting solution that produces sites that are
exceptionally illuminated.

Ordering Information EXAMPLE: DSXW1 LED 20C 1000 40K T3M MVOLT DDBTXD

Sigprdinduded | Shippedinstalled

AW LED
I
Larrend (olae temperatiare | Cuitrbatien Weltage | Wamling Ladrad (g tisny
MWl | 10 b 50 3OmA f LS Y L 15 el MwoL?
g;‘,ﬁ | tond oK e | M el | 00
WC 01 T 7ouma L L SR el 08!
[ WG 1IN0 AR MRBRC L ™ pelleda | M0'
mges g‘g; N ik | @0
M Rraadlow | 32V
Mt 4Bt

[kt Sroee | K Frokeectro o, W nbypet
AU BMG € 1Ty sers puied outs  FaL e (11
et e w2 et o, el wpaa oy
BEW  Srler- PR 150 0B Lient ke, <5 kg e
"u"-“;-; BRH  lrsowimtioet gt sone: 15 W
srczrder | PRIFOY  Mlhnfardont e, 318 i) g i,
el ke st eraties 21 1k Y
PIRHIFQY M,m:fwmwsubc mmqr:i}l
el el ealied ¥
EWT Emegery iy batand ndudts
anpit e e,y 04 d:zamntl “

Shippedinstalled Shipped separately ! DOBXD Dl brorse S0 Sarlare DWIGID e wdie

5 Shgedee 320,30 0 4iV;20 BW  Go-demrersdes | PRUD  Exl DD ot et v DSSTRD  exmd syicstane
O Da¥else(dR Go4VI W Yedeguxd DNAXD ey dbmnm MBI etk

& Hmesdesde™ DL Diftrestdbenlns DWHXD  iste DMATXD  leturad =0 3l sumin.m

W emesappreor? |

et o NOTES
A&::'W'ﬂ“ 20C 1000 u nct avaiabie wich PR, FIRH, FIRIFCIY of PEHIFCIV.

MVOLT drwet oparsies o sy biw woltnge krten 1 2277V (S0/60 Hi)
Ll m.,““‘“” vy wwadabole with 20C, T00WA on 1000mA. Hot ivaslable-with PIR or PIRH
DIMBRY DM o s

Sergha Fusa (S} reuires 120 277 or ST vwohage option. Double fuse [F) mquues 208, 260 or 400 voltage aption.

Photacontrol (PE) meemss 120, 208, 240, 277 or 347 veltage optesh. ot swadabls with mastion/s bt lsght serson (P of PIRH]

spphcation: Mot svedeble with BEW mounting apsan Mot sxalahle with hasing Not

..n&&-hh)lhrll!nbg-q:d- Emmrpancy tomponents lcated hmhuhuniq Emuwgancy mode IES s located on produes pege & sl It e

CAIWIGY Yok guard sty Rahwrwrws Motion Samanr table on page 3.
Sema a1 old ELCW, Cold weather {-200) rated. Mot compatble with condut
Not svalable with SPD.
10 Not avadaible with E20WC.
11 Alsts dwrablable & & ipatae AT riad |

12 Not weaduble with EXN/C.

1
2
1
4
§  Bach i ships ingtadecd on fxture. Cannet be Beld installad. Cannct ba omdemd 81 4n scconsory.
]
7
]
9

‘ LITHDNLA ez Lithortia Way + Compurs, Gooiga 30012 o Phuno: 1 D00 70 SERV [/3/8) = wrelidars
LIGNTING. © 7917 222 Aasy Bande 4 ghil g, =c. &0 sight reterved
)MH e o R R

37



Performance Data

Lumen Ambient Temperature (LAT} Multipiers
Ue thase Lactars Lo detarmineg relatwe barmn output for svadige ambient temgenituss
hom 0-&0C {12-104°F)

o i 10
[Lx M 101
Fras 5 100
I frag ]
I 3 100
T ot 058
Projected LED Lumen Maintenance

Dt sef'emmn cus the axt: hdpﬂhmmmthﬂhb’ﬂ“llﬂ)ﬂ!ﬂﬂ
Mommﬂl'c-nhhnh—dun'lolmlnnd 0 bauting Qemed par ESKA LM-
B0-08 arel prejactad par ISSNA THE211)

Electrical Load

TR T R T
e ST VST

Q07 008 006

an &M  om - -

a4 (11} " il

071 4.9 0.6 -

o1 arz o

o ar oM

LF- 2N ¥ W Al an

oM Q35 0o 0d) Ay

Pcisl |

Tawammlhmmminwnmd-uhdww : i_

of gparating hours hhm&rbduhmmumulqmmxuq Upet 4NN b2
e T T T T | FiRs PRH Wi | WfioMIOupe | EutiedaSC | Sam | D S
I B o i > S D | rrmcvormiiray | svormibuss | W norndume | Etiedg 11 | i | s irm
P : - : 1 = | Kot
R S SN .08 09 *Fot nae when motise veraos Hwsed a1 ek todawn cantrsd

Photemetric Diagrams Ta sea complete ph

skoad .iga fles for this product, visit Lithonia Lighting's [ Serles Wall S.76 1 homepage.

iz epores or

enkotiwtie mhots bot the DS LT NXC 1OIG 40K. Prtusss oo b ynin o yranihg bevicght S,

Drttrdrution ove] sy ormgiarison ko 75059 matad halide

LEGEND c 4 F o N Y L LEGEMD
v P . osxW!
B os - 2 i ‘ 3 ask
o 2 N AR | m
B o 1 £ ol £ - {_f— et J}_- : asic
o=t = - . -+ AT St
= t [ ™WrIaaT1
% 4" |1 i b
?l' K] T 113 a4 1 I a Dfrwe + 099
=, b, i -y
21 H ) Lo o LD Sow 4 U
- I i t =T =0 iR TWE2 250 Fube 15 M3

Options and Accessories
S

T

TIM{teN} HS - House-side shiekds

B5W - Bind-deterrent spikes

DOL- Biffused drajlers

¥G-Vandat guand

FEATURES & SPECIFCATIONS

INTENDED USE
The susergy coningn, dove) fife aad sty Lo Matnll i ©F 1him [ o bt Wall Sieer 1 mrsakes & His st
chuica fur Bl reunted doneey sor pachuy umdnaten s naardy sy faokty

CONSTRUCTION

Tos et 1 st ahurisn wn e hos nnkyged beul sk st oyt dcemel iimgent
Waounjs conchuthves aeed e mrctiv ey, Mok cinsagn adiows ko e of insarienace Tie | (D
drvet b mewntee] o tha char hﬁmxﬁkam:mvnlﬁ‘:mmh&m:mmmm
ated kotn g b Hetnireg k

FlliH

v (a3t b Mw [anatectoad by & fre bl Soper Uualde 1GEC thammasns powdsr enet finish
Wk pron et Lpton iostancu Lo cutowon med woottnring A bty coitrofkod st
Procem caawes a isarnan 3 truls thickiess tor . fish thet can withslund eairerne dimate
dhiarpr withotl eras kit or prerhing Awallable I testirmd ard no. et Bl

CRTCs

homlarm*hdpxmh\mmyhlnmmhh muliiplo pholmetnic datnliutors @ilores)
Vit eveprecs ore wvarkibslo i JE0 K (70 mun, O,
M‘l.l)l((?ﬂtnn ml)u- S.'Illl"ﬂ‘ﬁ run, CRI) conbiguinaticons

ELECTRICAL

light sgpereds) consist o 10 egh-elficacy | TTE mpiinimil .o bl tras Losd 1o mesnim
st dhatgration and pirvrenta kong bie § R 100,000 hre at 25°CY, Clam 1 slectmndc chivs.

w3 pu et facioe =50%. THD <2U%, and & msinum 25KV srgeisting Whan ondeing the
FO a spain wEge peelocion dovicn i setilled withn Bo leminaie whidsiteels o
i Careopsy o §aes ANSUTT CA2 4103

INSTALLATION

Inctiadedd unizerid mounting beackel allx k- srtumedy warry 4* round or sguare outlet box,

kn qu-ub nm}mq nstallibon '\-n'ulmln-.n hittinc] ipsche wuswvay wpd albachon (0 e
hetvin

LISTINGS
CHA ovrtibitd W U 5. mord Cartaclan stanchards Ratenl bor <XV nisismsem snblent.

Dersieml kghts & * (DL cpuabiect product. ot sl verskons. of this pesd st moy be
LA cualibend. Phaatar chock ther DLE Ewalio] Proukacts List at = 1kl o ks ey A7 o
i wehiud; versions am eiboyd.

BUY AMERICAN

This proviuctw dobeec] 1i: b (15A anid Han Py
prtatibmhehl beepaeemnents wsder FAR, Dl'ARSmdDO'F l‘iea:m-:lmla o R bk
somalanndrsallay wmer et bt kBNl miwination.

WARRANTY

Fiva-yoar hmitod warranty i s des only wastanty provood and no othor stiements in this
mprabation el oveks sny warely ul-qnd B glhet enreis shed wryrhosd wariontes.
atlhtlui«mud 1‘ e wotar uy Imtire

W " "' Ll L g i B

Nt Actual pevformancs inay Bifar 2+ 3 rvalt of cod wier crusrormont anad opplication
All values aro desige or typical values, 1agucd under bty cembtions ot 25 G,
Specthealion uhiect to chanips without noce,

LITAONIA Cin Lithorsa Way + Conpers, Govipia 012 & Phong: | 506 M SERV (F73/0) # srewbafisis oo (31 I o]
UBWNB_ @M AT Acilry Meands | Jphiting, Inc. Al doglits inoromd Hew, IELTT
—
COMMERCTAL DU TDHOUR

38



Performance Data

Lumen Amblent Temperahn (LAT) Multiphiers

U thase faczor Lo datwrring mistae harm owoed For svarage smiblari terperstans
trom 0-4*C [(32-104°T)
Aml 1 Luanen M ipdier

(x4 IV 102

10 yri 1.01

e ert 10

T bind 1.00

L BT 100

AT 1847 [
Projected LED Lumen Malntenance
Cirts sd qrnicmn LED 20C 1000

e ha OSXWH
leformina 5°C amblot mmuommuuomwuwsmm
el projecied par {ESNA TR 1

Electrical Load

1oo¢

Xav MoV TNV JATY 48N

s gk iy g T gk s et
AP A LA A |

i uw | o1 007 oos e - -
. ww |ow an om oo - -
| o [ o3 am em wnm . .
[ 1o | swow | oar on o o
50 JAW 023 =1 [:NH [(R1]
= s | 2w [oas ol e o
7o | 4rw {04 0B en awm om  an
w0 | 74w |00 oe ods 030 ad)  oir

fisad Detaull Sebbug

Ta caladare LLF, use f ds to the dapret ourmbar Fmy up || Wrop dewn
dm!wnhh:?ud-hum-mmlm Tane i
Py e e PR er MK L EL]
wo | joooes =1
o e [y g ['mmhnmrm l SO | tie Som
: '!umilfa.- e 41 chrok \

Photometric Diagrams To 564 complete phatomatic rports or downkaad et files for this product, visit Lithonia Lightings D- Series Wall 28 | hormepage.

ohuotcanda plots ko the DDA LID 206 1000 &3 Dislanes #o in ws of incsmiasg haioghe {1

LEGIND 4 08 F 1 ¢ 4 2 3 2 4 ¥ 3 LI B Y |

B ok
B os«
I o

-

P kb s e = meow

R S e

Dvatribui Deais thntl sy eoarrpaitieon o 250 rewts] habide.

[T T ST B BT e ¥ o3
| H
1 = o0,
- 3 esk
£
) . 05fc
E W Sderth
8 Li0e
AH mRsan
=T T T {i& =4
5 e My
H DD LED Jo AR T
e THE2 35 Pl 15 Wl tng

Options and Accessories

-4 %

TIM e} HS - House-side shields

FEATURES & SPECIFICATIONS
INTENDED USE
ﬂmmn_”-ntmhglin-u!n-ymb-:.-l-hdmnlllnnﬂnhwdﬁnIn-l-nmnum
chiear for | ¥ ared patheiay i1 ot reaardy sty faciltg
mvcncu

" -t o demarns b '.‘,‘ d b & mmqmlandnmm]ﬂm

Wucunh cpuich nthve wut r.uu..d.-,na o mIM

Mhmﬂuh&nbwmnmhmwmhhmmmqw

arud bty i Heausng pbecrly s [ -7
PN

Extafics juiths M prurn:u!lrgam mimntl Sq-f l)ufdll 1K thetmraat prwveker ooat finich
vt e hn sagaticar ) A bightly artiolbad mublti-slage

Procoa crsures 4 trininum 3 erils shickiem for a brdsli that can withsland catirsne chole
charw e without cracking of parehng, Avalalsle i Teansec sl non texned Sosfws.

oPTcS

Frocialon:mokbed prcprietary acofic ko mutiphe ph Soard tailored
baaly W busdchen) Light enpuien sre sralabsle in XX K (70 . CRIL

mxmmmumxmmmmlgm

ELECTRICAL
tight sgnets) conaid of 10 Iwghatlececy | Ta mounied 10« melal o cocuil bosnd 1o masmise

1mat chobpation snd prormots leng Bhe § B2/ 100000 hre a3 25°C). Class 1 slectronic
have o prveer Bctor SYIE, THD <220%, and o mvamem 25KV sungae rabing Whaan ordaving the
SPD upstion, o sepaale surgo proiocton dovicn i iestaller] within tha lurminaue whicd mcote o
ronettann Uategory C | cv fom ANSIETT CAZ 41D

LITHONIA

' LIBNTING,
——

COMMERCIAL DU TUOUR

Cine Lithoria Way # Conyare, Gowipa 30012 # Phone: | BUG b SERY (1170} »
© NI A7 Acviry firands Lighng, (e AJ s e,

39

DDL- Diffased droplem

INSTALLATION
Inchuder] unevord mountng beacket attaches socuncly o a; 4 mauned o squsm cutlcl bax
fen tpuuh and nawy insiallabon | it e @ shotie] spachet srasesay snad stlaches 0 the

qbeacket via dnton 1 scroak
LISTINGS
CSA onttiiend 0 U5 i) Canachir staniards. Ratind for 30T nenieman ainbaail
Jphte G g hited product. Mot all verdons of this prodact myy be

(Dt
IUE cualibed. Phssto check lh:l.lu.uualnled Prowchcts Lkt it s Sk p ot o) YL b0
0 vhicts weislons wra o

BUY AMERICAN

Thin pracduct is paasonlshed w1 tha USA andd nesets. thr Buy Americsing goveenmsnt
procusetr teruiterneits rcer FAT, DFARS und DOT. Moase ket 10 vepe scuitybasnds
comviesitailuy mrecican fof additions) inforation.

WARRAKTY

Fhoo-yeeot livutnd wattanty This i the oaly weitanty proviced and no othar statements in this
wporakaton sheel coatn any warsity ol sy kiad & other ogwess sod popked wartgnies
are diactained. Conngilale wartany torms located al;

ety e STV S O LA STAAT A i i Bmert

Miate Actual parformance may Jffer a1 2 muutt of end uier erwisanmeont and spplication
All vohutrs ara desiy of typical values, imasssed under Liboratory comSbom ot 25 C,
Speecrbcationn subject tn change wihout notcs

nsemirm
Rov. 30722



Attachment D
Planning Commission Resolution

RESOLUTION PC 01-22

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ISLETON
RECOMMENDING ADOPTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT CUP 01-22 AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT DA 2022-01

The Planning Commission of the City of Isletan hercby finds ss follows:

WHEREAS, in June of 2018, the City Council adopted Ordinances 2018-02, 03, and 08
which provide standards to regulate the use of land for commercial cannabis activities cannabis
within the City of Isleton; and

WHEREAS, on January 3, 2022, Charles Smith and Darren Gatto, owners of WTQ
Essentials, Inc. (“Applicant”) submitted a planning application to the City of Isleton for
Conditione] Use Permit CUP 01-22, and proposed Development Agreement DA 2022-01, for the
manufacturing and distribution of cannabis products at 402 Jackson Boulevard, Isleton, CA, owned
by Delta Boyz Enterprises, LLC, APN# 157-0073-031 ("Project™); and

WHEREAS, the Project application was submitted in accordance with the Municipal Code
for cannabis manufacturing at 402 Jackson Boulevard, in the PDI - Planned Industrial and R-M-
3 Multi-Family Residential Zoning Districts, APN# 157-0073-03 1; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2307 of Ordinance 2018-08 the Project location,
size, and other development standards of the project are consistent with state law and Chapter 23
of the Municipa! Code; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2307 of Ordinance 2018-08, a development
agreement regarding the Project will be fully executed by the Applicant; and

WHEREAS, the conditions set forth in Ordinance 2018-08, Section 2306(B)-(D) have
been satisfied; and

WHEREAS, the Project application includes the required information to demonstrate that
the Project is consistent with State Law and City ordinances: and

WHEREAS, the City's General Plan designates the project site as Industrial and
residentizl, and as conditioned, the proposed use would be consistent with the General Plan; and

WHEREAS, Conditional Use Permit 10-18 and Development Agreement DA 2018-08 for
cannabis manufacturing by Delta Agricultural Holdings, LLC was granted by the City Council
within a portion of the same premises at 402 Jackson Blvd, so the project proposes cannabis
manufacturing and distribution operation by the applicant will share the same facility; and

WHEREAS, due to sharing the same premises between Delta Agricultural Holdings, LLC,
and the applicant, Development Agreement DA 2022-01 will replace the previcusly approved



Development Agreement DA 2018-08, and apply to both Delta Agricultural Holdings, LLC and
the applicant; and

WHEREAS, Conditional Use Permit 10-18, for Delta Agricultural Holdings, provides for
operation and use of a 2,600 square fool portion of the building while the applicant proposes
operation and use of a 4,200 square foot portion of the building with both entities sharing common
space on the property, such as parking, trash containment, fencing, etc. and that Conditional Use
Permit 10-18 for Delta Agricultural Holdings, LLC, remains valid and does not require amendiment
as a result of the project; and

WHEREAS, the applicant, through this project and the terms of Development Agreement
DA 2022-01, is assigned manager of ongoing maintenance and operations for the premises at 402
Jackson Blvd; and

WHEREAS, as conditioned, subject to obtaining conditional use permit, the Project
complies with the Cily's Zoning Code; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 1407 of the Zoning Code, the Project's proposed
land use as conditioned in the attached Staff Report, is consistent with the following;

A. That there are circumstances or conditions applicable to the land, structure or use which
makes the granting of a use permit necessary for the preservalion and enjoyment of a
substantial property right,

B. That the proposed location of the conditional use is in accordance with the objectives
of the zoning ordinance and the purposes of the district in which the site is located.

C. That the proposed use will comply with each of the applicable provisions of the
ordinance,

and

WHEREAS, adequate public noticing was made for the Project in accordance with the
Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, a development agreement has been prepared and will be executed if final
approval of the conditional use permit and development agreement is granted by the City Council;
and

WHEREAS, the applicant and project satisfies all public safety information requirements
in accordance with Ordinances 2306 and 2307, subject to specific conditions of approval.

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
review pursuant to §15301, and §15303 of the CEQA Guidelines, as the project would be located
on an existing developed property with some exterior improvements proposed to the grounds, such
as parking and lendscaping that will not result in any significant impacts; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has found that the proposed Development
Agreement furthers the public health, safety and general welfare of the City; and

41



WHEREAS, on April 5, 2022, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on
this Conditional Use Permit and a Development Agreement and continued the public hearing to a
Special Meeting of the Planning Commission on April 13, 2022; and

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2022, the Planning Commission conducted a continued public
hearing on this Conditional Use Permit and a Development Agreement,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Islcton Planning Commission that:

Section 1. The Planning Commission adopts the above Recitals as its findings with respect to
the Project; and

Section 2.  The Planning Commission recommends the City Council approve Conditional Use
Permit CUP 01-22 for cannabis manufacturing and distribution with Delia Agricultural Holdings,
LLC {per Conditional Use Permit CUP 10-1 8) on the same premises at 402 Jackson Boulevard, in
the PDI - Planned Industrial and R-M-3 Multi-Family Residential Zoning Districts, APN# 157-
0073-031, subject 1o the following Conditions of Approval;

nditions of Approval for Conditional Use Permit P01-22

1. This application for Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 was submitted, in accordance with
the Municipal Code, for a cannabis manufacturing and distribution facility, shared with Delta
Agricultural Holdings, LLC (under the same conditions of approval granted under Conditional Use
Permit CUP 10-1B) at 402 Jackson Boulevard, in the PDI-Planned Industrial District and the R-
M-3 Multi-Family Residential Zoning District, APN 157-0073-031.

2, The applicant/developer/operator shall agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the
City or its agents, officers and employees from and against any and all claims, actions, demands
or proceeding (including dumage, attorney fees, and court cost awards) against the City or its
agents, officers, or employees to attach, set aside, void, or annul an approval of the City, advisory
agency, appeal board, or legislative body arising from the applicant/developer/operator's
operations. In providing any defense under this Paragraph, the applicant, business operator,
property owner, developer shall use counsel reasonably acceptable to the City. The City shall
promptly notify the applicant, business Operator, property owner, developer of any claim, action,
demands or proceeding and the City shall cooperate fully in the defense. The City may require that
the developer/operator to post a bond, in an amount determined to be sufficient, to satisfy the above
indemnification and defense obligation. Developer/operator understands and acknowtedges that
City is under no obligation to defend any claim, action, demand or proceeding challenging the
City’s actions with respect to the permit or entitlement.

3. The applicant/developer/operator shall be responsible to pay all sales, use, business and
other applicable taxes, and all license, registration, and other fees and permits required under
federal, state and Jocal law and pursuant to the Development Agreement for the project.

4. The applicant/developer/operator shall cooperate with the City with respect to any
reasonable request to audit the business’ books and records for the purpose of verifying compliance
with the Municipal Code and this Use Permit and related Development Agreement, including but
not limited to a verification of the amount of taxes required o be paid during any period.

3

42



5. This Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 shall not be operational unless or until a
Development Agreement is fully executed by the City and the Development Agreement remains
valid.

6. Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 shall expire and be of no further force and effect if the
developer/operator does not obtain a valid cannabis business regulatory pemit for this location
within 12 months from issuance of this use (refer to City Ordinance 2018-07, Section 2307).

7. Secure any required permits from the City Building Department, Fire Department, Police
Department, Sacramento County Air Quality Management District, and/or Sacramento County
Health Department (as applicable) prior to building occupancy or operation.

8 All improvements to the building and project site, per Exhibit A (attached hereto) shall be
completed to the satisfaction of the City within six months or by November 6, 2022 and prior to
issuance of a permanent occupancy permit.

9. Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 shall be reviewed by the City after 5-years at which
point a determination of extension will be made (refer to City Ordinance 201 8-08, Section 2307).

10.  Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 shall be subjected to an annual planning review to
ensure that the business practices have stayed within the bounds of the Conditional Use Permit or
other Permitted Uses use (refer to City Ordinance 2018-07, Section 2397).

1.  Conditiona! Use Permit CUP 01-22 shall be subject to termination, notwithstanding any
other provision in the City's Municipal Code, if (refer to City Ordinance 2018-07, Section 2307):

a, The owner of the commercial cannabis facility transfers the commercial cannabis
facility 10 another individual not named in the conditional use permit application as
an owner or person in charge unless prior approval is suthorized by the City
Menager or his/her designee;

b. The commercial cannabis facility ceases o operate at the premises described in the
conditional use permit application; or

c. The commercial cannabis facility ceases to operate for sixty (60) consecutive
calendar days.

12. Any amendments to this use permit application, or changes in to the business plan, will
require the applicant to submit an amended use permit application for approval by the City.

13. All conditions of Conditional Use Permit CUP 01-22 are necessary to protect the general
health, safety and welfare of the public. If any condition of this entitiement is held to be invalid by
2 court, then the whole entitlement shall be invalid. The City Council specifically declares that it
would not have approved this entitlement unless all of the conditions herein are held as valid.

43



Section 3. The Planning Commission recommends the City Council approve Development
Agreement DA 202201,

Sectiond4.  The Planning Commission finds that the Project is exempt from Califomnia
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review pursuant to §1530t, and §15303 of the CEQA
Guidelines, as the project would be located on an existing developed property with minor tenant
improvements proposed; and

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Isleton this 13th day of
April, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES: Commissioner’s Mandy Elder, Michelle Burke, Chris Jones and Chalr Jack
Chima.
NOES: None,

ABSTAIN: Noane,
ABSENT: None.

Ctons

CHAIR, Jack Chima ATTEST:

Yvonne Zepeda



EXHIBIT A
PROJECT IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR WTO INC

PROUECT - SHEPLAN |~ mam | 3

45



Attachment E
Email from Charles Smith, Applicant for 402 Jackson Blvd received on April 19, 2022

April 18, 2022
Honorable Mayor Pena and Members of the City of Isleton City Council:

This written response addresses concerns of the community that were brought up during the Planning
Commission’s April 13, 2022, review of my project at 402 Jackson Blvd.

1. There was a concern about lighting being too bright as the property is located on the border of a
neighborhood. Our architects have addressed this by bringing the lighting down off of poles and
having it mounted on the building, We will also work to place proper hoods in order to deflect
lighting from neighboring properties.

2. There was a concern about the noise level. Currently our operation is not noisy at all. There are
times when we get deliveries and it can get noisy during those times or when we are using the
forklift. We will ensure that we follow the city guidelines regarding noise and quiet time.

3. There was a concern about employee parking. We have more than enough parking spaces to
accommodate all employees during any shift within the property boundaries. Employees should
not be parking on the street and will be directed to park within the property. Visitors will be
instructed to park in across the street against the farmland if they are unable to park within the
property.

4. There was a concern voiced about traffic on Delta. We will instruct all employees to use alternate
routes when coming to and from work.

In addition to the conditions of approval in the subject conditional use permit, we feel that these
additional measures adequately cover these other concerns noted during the Planning Commission

meeting.

I look forward to working with you and the City in completing these planning entitlements and moving
forward with this business.

Please contact me should you have any questions.
Sincerely,
Chaz Smith

President
WTO Essentials

46



City of Isleton R

City Council ITEM#: 8.A

Staff Report CATEGORY: New Business
ADDRESS CHANGE REQUESTS MAIN STREET; DIRECTION AND APPROVAL

SUMMARY

Sacramento County Assessor’s records show 37 Main Street address is listed on Parcels 157-032-
018 and 157-032-034. 40 Main Street address is listed as 157-0034-002 and 157-0034-003.

The City was notified by the owner of his property, parcel 157-0034-003 is listed as 40 Main Street
and the property next door parcel 157-0034-002 is also listed as 40 Main Street with the County
Assessor’s Office. Upon review staff discovered two properties listed as 40 Main Street and two
properties listed as 37 Main Street.

DISCUSSION

Staff is requesting City Council give direction and approve proposed change of addresses and set
a public hearing on the matter:

Parcel No. Address Listed on | Change Address to
Parcelquest

157-0032-018-0000 | 37 Main Street No Change

157-0032-034-0000 | 37 Main Street 37 %2 Main Street

157-0034-002-0000 | 40 Main Street No Change

157-0034-003-000C | 40 Main Street 40 '2 Main Street

Please see attached parcel quest report and map.
FISCAL IMPACT

Nominal amount of staff time.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff is requesting that City Counci] approve the proposed address changes and set a public
hearing.

ATTACHMENTS

s:\city manager_agenda reports\stafT reports 2022\cc 05-10-2022\cc_sr_8.n_ two address change request Lo sac. cty assessot’s.docx




1. Parcel Quest Report for 37 Main Street and 40 Main Street

Submitted by: Diana O’Brien, Administrative

Reviewed by: Charles Bergson, City Ma ‘4
Submitted and prepared by: Yvonne Zepeda;,

s:\city manager_agenda reporis'staff reponts 2022'cc 05-1 0-2022\cc_sr_B.a_ two address change request to sac. cty assessor's.docx




Q PARCELOUEST

__—Deita Education,
Cu[’ruraRSGme‘ty Asi

e
__'”'Ll.:ll

\
\
oy

© 2015 ParcelQuest www.parcelquest.com (888) 217-8999

M = e St

Lt %y |
L Jd
-\ L
f:"/")\/

Map data ©2022 Google



Q PARCELOUEST

LsTO
DETAIL

(< N < B < I <

1

Co

SAC

SAC

SAC

SAC

APN A

157-0032-018-0000

157-0032-034-0000

157-0034-002-0000

157-0034-003-0000

Owner

S Street Address

37 MAIN 5T

37 MAIN ST

40 MAIN 5T

40 MAIN ST

S City State Zip

[SLETON CA 95641-7037

ISLETON CA 95641-7037

ISLETON CA 95641-7037

ISLETON CA 95641-7037



City Of ISleton DATE: May 10, 2022

City Council ITEM#: 8B

Staff Report CATEGORY: New Business

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CITY OF ISLETON
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITH THE
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE CITY OF
ISLETON’S MAIN STREET REDESIGN AND REVITALIZATION PLAN; APPROVE

SUMMARY

The City Council of the City of Isleton is eligible to receive Federal and/or State funding for certain
transportation planning related plans, through the California Department of Transportation for the
Main Street Redesign and Revitalization Plan. The City was awarded $212,788 from the FY 2022-
23 Sustainable Communities Competitive Grant submitted by CivicWell (formerly the Local
Government Commission) with the assistance of Sacramento Area Councils of Government.

DISCUSSION

A Restricted Grant Agreement is needed to be executed with the California Department of
Transportation before such funds can be reimbursed through the Transportation Planning Grant
Program.

Staff is requesting City Council approve Resolution 16-22 Resolution of the City Council of the
City of Isleton Authorizing the City Manager to execute Agreements with the California
Department of Transportation for the City of Isleton’s Main Street Redesign and Revitalization
Plan.

FISCAL IMPACT

The grant award is $212,788. The City will utilize staff time for the local match of $27,569. Total
cost of project $240,357.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff is requesting City Council approve Resolution 16-22 Resolution of the City Council of the
City of Isleton Authorizing the City Manager to execute Agreements with the California

Department of Transportation for the City of Isleton’s Main Street Redesign and Revitalization
Plan.

ATTACHMENTS

1

s\city manager_ogenda reponsistaff reports 2022\cc 05-10-2022\cc_sr_8 b_resolution 16-22 caltrans grant - city manager authorization.docx




Submitted by: Diana O’Brien, Administrative Assistant
Reviewed by: Charles Bergson, City Manager
Submitted and prepared by: Yvonne Zepeda, City Clerk

2
s'icity manager_agenda reponts\stafT reports 2022\ce 05-10-2022\cc_sr_8.b_resolution 16-22 caltrans grant - city manager authorization.docx




RESOLUTION NO. 16-22

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ISLETON AUTHORIZING
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITH THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE CITY OF ISLETON’S MAIN
STREET REDESIGN AND REVITALIZATION PLAN

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Isleton is eligible to receive Federal and/or State
funding for certain transportation planning related plans, through the California Department of
Transportation;

WHEREAS, a Restricted Grant Agreement is needed to be executed with the California
Department of Transportation before such funds can be reimbursed through the Transportation
Planning Grant Program;

WHEREAS, the City of Isleton wishes to delegate authorization to execute these agreements and
any amendments thereto;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Isleton
authorizes the City Manager, or designee, to execute all Restricted Grant Agreements and any
amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Isleton held
on this 10th day of May 2022.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

MAYOR, Eric Pene
ATTEST:

DEPUTY CITY CLERK, Yvonne Zepeda

s:\resolutions\resolutions 2022\cc resolution no. 16-22 resolution of the city council of the city of isleton authorizing city manager agreements
with caltrans .docx






Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant Program
Grant Specific Conditions
Conditions of Award Meeting

Sustainchle Transporiation Planning Grant Program

Grani Award 2022-23 . Grant

Grani Fund
Fiscal Year Category RMRA

Sustainable Communities Competitive S

Project Tite | Isleton Maiin Street Redesign and Revitalization Plan

Grontee/Agency | City of Isleton

Executive Director | Charles Bergson, City Manager

Graniee/Agency

Contact Diana O'Brien, Admin Assistant

| Sub-Recipient(s) | Local Govemment Commission

Calirans District

Contacl(s) Chris Houlemard

Caltrans District
Contact(s} E-mail

chris.houlemard@dot.ca.gov

Local Match Local Motich Tota! Total
{Cash) (In-Kind} Local Match local Malch Project Cost

$212,788 $27.569 _ $27.56% 11.47% $240,357

Gront Awaord

Conditions of Award Due to Caltrans Gran! Expiration Bate Final Invaice Due

06/03/22 _ 02/28/25 04/29/25

* The final contfroctually agreed upen Local Motch and Fund Source are located on the Grant Applicotion Cover Sheet and
Project Cost and Schedule. Any change in Local Match that increases/decreases the Total Project Cost must be approved by
Caltrans and may require a Formal Amendment. Each invoice must include the contractual/ogreed upon local match % - any
deviation to this amount requires an approved Tapered Local Match Amendment prior to invoice submittal, Any change to the
Lecal Match Fund Source requires prior Calirans approval and an Administrative Amendment.

Conditions for Grant Acceptance

Grant work cannot begin uniil the General and Specific Conditions of Grant
Acceptance have been satisfied and your Agency has received a Notice to Proceed
letter from Caltrans. These conditions must be submitted to your Caltrans District Grant
Manager no later than the date listed in the table above. Failure to satisfy these
conditions will result in the forfeiture of grant funds.

Page 1 0of 3



Specific Conditions

If Specific Conditions have been identified for this grant, they will be listed below.
Please also ensure you review the General Conditions of Approval and make all

necessary revisions to the Grant Application Cover Sheet, Scope of Work ([SOW),
and/or the Cost and Schedule.

Specilic Conclitions

1. Scope of Work Introduction: Add more details on how this project connects with other planning
efforts in the region.

2. Consider linkages to transit or creation of new transit connections; consider how to get appropriate
uses in the community o enable people to aveid leaving town for their needs; and consider how o

add jobs not based on tourism that would create local employment access while not increasing VMT
from outside visitors.

Page 2 of 3



Page 3 of 3







s19ded

S93.J] 19343 -

saJeds Ajjuswe no-q|ng -

supjJed Jo uollelulIIORY -
:UMOYS SsaJnles

—1 | n
| H- ;T _ |
- r e -«
= { ot
a |
1)
-+

; o ] i 7
LD [y | _.. . |
! | ‘ g | .
| — e e — | .|.| s =3 -
- - u ¥ whis $= sk ad v fw " W

H u AN w_fl 3\ ‘._f...... CGRL LA WL LR W

— |

AT

USIS9Q 199J1S UIB|A] PIpPUSWIWOISY

193415 3






City of Isleton e DT

City Council ITEM#: 8.C
Staff RCpOl’t CATEGORY: New Business

A RESOLUTION 18-22 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ISLETON INITIATING
ASSESSMENT PROCEEDINGS, INDICATING ITS INTENTION TO LEVY AND COLLECT
ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS, AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR THE CITY OF
ISLETON VILLAGE ON THE DELTA LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT
DISTRICT NO. 2007-1, FISCAL YEAR 2022-23

BACKGROUND

Village on the Delta Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD) was created in 2007 as a
means to provide the maintenance for the landscaping and lighting for the Viilage on the Delta
development. The assessments began in 2017. Assessments and costs are reviewed annually. Council is
requested to initiate assessment proceedings, to declare its intent to levy the District Assessments, and set
the public hearing for the Village on the Delta Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 2007-1
for Fiscal Year 2022-23. Public hearing date is proposed for Tuesday, June 14, 2022,

DISCUSSION

Council is being requested to take the action to update the Landscaping and Lighting District assessments
for this District for the Fiscal Year 2022-23. This recommended action are: to initiate proceedings, to
indicate Council’s intention to levy and collect annual assessments, and set a public hearing date -
Tuesday, June 14, 2022. Proposed revenues amount to approximately $24,340 annually. Last year’s
revenues were $23,315.

The proposed annual rates are:

1. Single-Family Residential (“West 14”) = $414.05
Single-Family Residential (“East 4”) = $73.21

2. Live/Work Units $1,242.15

3. Empty Lots/Public $19.42

FISCAL IMPACT

This Assessment will generate the funds necessary to landscape and light the Village on the Delta
development by properly assessing the properties and allocating the appropriate funds. The level of
revenue to be generated for the upcoming fiscal year is approximately $24,340 an approximate 4.4%
increase. The US Department of Labor 2022 Consumer Price Index for the past twelve months, Western
Region is 8.7%.

The Council will be asked to establish the rate increase at the June 14, 2022 public hearing and meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 18-22 to: a) initiate assessment
proceedings, b) indicate the City’s intention to levy and collect annual assessment, and c) set a public
hearing date for the City of Isleton Village on the Delta Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District
No. 2007-1. Public hearing date is proposed for Tuesday, June 14, 2022.




ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution 18-22 Of The City Council Of The City Of Isleton Initiating Assessment
Proceedings, Indicating Its Intention To Levy And Collect Annual Assessments, And Setting A
Public Hearing Date For The City Of Isleton Village On The Delta Landscaping And Lighting
Assessment District No. 2007-1, Fiscal Year 2022-23

2. LLAD 2007-1, FY 2022-23 Work List

3. Consumer Price Index, West Region-March 2022, US Bureau of Labor Statistics

Prepared and Reviewed by Charles Bergson, City M4
Submitted by Yvonne Zepeda, Deputy City Clerk




CITY of ISLETON

S:\LLAD\LLAD-cost estimate-FY2023.xlsx

LLAD 2007-1 |FY 2022-23
LLAD _[EXPENSES 05.06.22 D R A F 7'
Costs Annual [FY22 FyY23
VACANT & EMPTY LOTS
Labor $500 5600
Equip 5400 5450
Fuel/supplies 5200 5300
Drainage Basin 5200 5200
Street sweeping 5200 $200
Storm Drain cing 5150 $150
Weed - brush {Clark) 513,000 | 513,500
|
LANDSCAPE Homes |ACTIVE LOTS Split
s/mon total West 14 East4 |
Labor pub maintc 18 lots 53,500 [ $3,700 53,700 | 42,960 5740
Water $1,500 | $1,500 $1,500| $1,200 $300
Elect lights|15x$8x12 $1,440 | 51,440 $1,440 | 51,152 5288
Fuel $225 $300 $300 5240 $60
subtotal Homes 56,940 | $5,552 | 51,388 |
Direct subtl $22,340 Lots
maint, mech 5600 $600 Active-existing hame
cap reserve 5500 5500 Vacant- impraved lot
Eng & Admin 5400 5400 Empty-unimproved lot
contingency 5500 5500
indirect subt 52,000 | 52,000
{ $23,315 | $24,340 4.4%
LLAD |REVENUES/ASSESSFY 2021-22 FY23 ANNUAL
annual Direct costs|indirect ind-distrb |ind-distrb total-FY22  |FY22 asmnt/lot JREVENUE
lot no.
0 S - $0.00
18 17%| s 34951
West 14 14 $5,552 S 244.66 $5,796.66 398.33| $414.05 | $ 5,796.66
East 4 4 $1,388 S 104.85 $1,492.85 359.46| $373.21 |$  1,492.85
Vacant 69| $15,400.00 67%|$ 1,33981 | $16,739.81 | 5231.74 | $242.61 |$ 16,739.81
Empty 9 50.00 9%| S  174.76 517476 | 519.42 | $19.42 |3 174.76
Public 7 $0.00 7%| S 135.92 | S 135.92 19.42| $19.42 |5 135.92
Total $24,340 $24,340
103 $15,400 | § 2,000.00 S 2,000.00

LLAD-cost estimate-FY2023 . xIsx



TR0



NEWS R

BUREAU OF
C A R

u. §. o E P

For Release: Tuesday, April 12, 2022 22-625-5AN

WESTERN INFORMATION OFFICE: San Francisco, Calif.
Technical information:  (415) 625-2270 BLSinfoSF@bls.gov  www.bls.goviregions/wast
Media contact: (415) 625-2270

Consumer Price Index, West Region — March 2022

Area prices were up 1.3 percent over the past month, up 8.7 percent from a year ago

Prices in the West Region, as measured by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U),
advanced 1.3 percent in March, the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics reported today. (See table A.) The March
increase was influenced by higher prices for gasoline. (Data in this report are not seasonally adjusted.
Accordingly, month-to-month changes may reflect seasonal influences.)

Over the last 12 months, the CPI-U rose 8.7 percent. {See chart 1 and table A.) This was the largest over-the-
year increase in the CPI-U for the West Region since February 1982. Food prices advanced 8.9 percent.
Energy prices jumped 33.4 percent, largely the result of an increase in the price of gasoline. The index for all
items less food and energy increased 6.8 percent over the year. (See table 1.)

Chart 1. Over-the-year percent change in CPI-U, Westregion, March 2019-March
2022

All tems
All tems less food and energy

Percent change

9.0
8.0
7.0
60
5.0
40
30
20
1.0

00 —H——+—+—++ + { ;
Mar  Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar
2019 2020 2021 2022

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

-+
-
—




an”



RESOLUTION NO. 18-22

A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ISLETON
INITIATING ASSESSMENT PROCEEDINGS INDICATING ITS INTENTION TO LEVY AND
COLLECT ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR THE VILLAGE ON THE DELTA LANDSCAPING
AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 2007-1 (LLAD), FISCAL YEAR 2022-23, AND
SET THE TIME AND DATE OF THE PUBLIC HEARING

(Pursuant to the Landscaping & Lighting Act of 1972)

WHEREAS, the City Council intends to levy and collect assessments within the City of Isleton Village on
the Delta Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 2007-1 during the Fiscal Year 2022-23 and
land to be assessed is located in the City of Isleton, Sacramento County; and

WHEREAS, the 2017 Engineer’s Report has been filed outlining the proposed budgets, the description of
the proposed improvements and/or changes, the boundaries of the assessment district, any zones therein
and the proposed assessments upon assessable lots and parcels within the assessment district as required by
the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972; and

WHEREAS, the components and the operation and maintenance to be made to the improvements for the
upcoming fiscal year 2022-23 in LLAD-2007-1 are generally described as follows: landscaping in the
public rights-of-way and public landscape easements between the property and State Route 160, adjacent
to the Village on the Delta, landscaping in the public rights-of-way and public easements between the
property and Sixth Street, a share of public park maintenance costs for parks serving the development
including two basin parks along Sixth Street, maintenance of public street lights along and within the
boundaries of the Village on the Delta, and maintenance of the storm water lift station and associated
elements; and

WHEREAS, all interested persons are referred to the Engineer’s Report for a full and detailed description
of the improvement , the proposed operation and maintenance costs, the boundaries of the LLAD and the
proposed assessments upon assessable lots and parcels of land within the LLAD; and

WHEREAS, for Fiscal Year 2022-23, the annual assessment per residential equivalent dwelling unit is
$414.05, and the annual assessment per live/work unit is $1,242.15; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Isleton hereby notices the
intention to levy and collect the annual assessments with the City of Isleton Village on the Delta
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 2007-1 during the Fiscal Year 2022-23; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in order to take inflation into account, the City Council approves the
allowance for an annual increase to estimated assessments in accordance with the annual Consumer Price
Index as applied to the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose county Area for All Urban Consumers as
developed by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics for a similar period of time;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a public hearing will be held by the City Council on Tuesday, June
14, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard in the City Council Chambers, City
Hall, City of Isleton, 101 Second Street, Isleton, California 95641. At the public hearing, the City Council

Resolution 18-22



will consider the changes to the assessment amounts and authorization to levy and collect assessment for
Fiscal Year 2022-23; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Isleton City Clerk is authorized and directed to give the Notice
of Hearing as required by the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 for said public hearing; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution is adopted pursuant to Section 22610 and 22620 et
al of the California Streets and Highway Code.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 10" day of May 2022, by the following vote:
AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

MAYOR, Eric Pene

ATTEST:

DEPUTY CITY CLERK, Yvonne Zepeda

Resolution 18-22



City Of ISleton DATE: May 10, 2022

City Council ITEM#: 8.D
Staff Report CATEGORY: New Business

SHIPPING CONTAINERS, PROPOSED ORDINANCE; DISCUSSION AND
DIRECTION

SUMMARY
It has come to the City’s attention that there are many shipping containers located on commercial
and residential properties and the City has no guidelines for their use.

The City has no regulations pertaining to the use of shipping or storage containers and their use
in various planning zones throughout the City. The City is also located in a high risk flood area
and storage containers in such areas are potentially dangerous. It is recommended that the City
adopt zoning to allow, or not to allow, the use of storage containers and insure that containers
comply with the Isleton Municipal Code Section 5.52 Flood Damage Prevention.

DISCUSSION

Staff is requesting City Council direction for the use of shipping containers in Isleton.
Specifically for the storage containers that exist in residential areas, if they are allowed, they
need to be anchored to the ground to resist floatation. If not allowed, the City needs to direct
their removal. Generally, storage containers are allowed in commercial and industrial zoned
areas and also are to be anchored to the ground. The City Flood regulations have specific limits
for use and anchoring specifications for shipping containers. The recently adopted Shipping
Container ordinance from the city of Rio Vista is attached. As directed, Staff will prepare the
appropriate legislation and prepare it for Council consideration.

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact associated with this report.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff is requesting City Council to give direction to adopt proposed ordinance and adopt zoning
regulations regarding shipping containers.

ATTACHMENTS

1. City of Rio Vista Shipping Container and portable storage containers
ordinance. Adding Article 24 Regulating Shipping Containers And Portable
Storage Containers

Prepared by: Diana O’Brien, Administrative Assistant
Reviewed by: Charles Bergsgfi, City Manager Submitted by: Yvonne Zepeda, Dep. City Clerk







ORDINANCE NO. 001-2022

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO VISTA TO
AMEND TITLE 17 OF THE RIO VISTA MUNICIPAL CODE ADDING
CHAPTER 17.84 AND AMENDING SECTION 17.60.030 REGULATING
SHIPPING CONTAINERS AND PORTABLE STORAGE CONTAINERS

WHEREAS, shipping containers and portable storage containers are a risk to the public
health, safety, and welfare as well as the aesthetic appearance of the City for reasons
including, but not limited to, they restrict sight lines, restrict emergency response pathways
due to their bulk and immobility, are havens for vermin, rodents, and pests, are targets for
graffiti and tagging, encourage hoarding, increase fire risks due to poor ventilation, and are
bulky and industrialdooking accessory structures incompatible with nearly all surrounding
uses; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to update and amend the Rio Vista Municipal Code related
to shipping containers and portable storage containers in order to protect the public health,
safety, and welfare as well as the aesthetic appearance of the City and preserve property
values; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Ordinance is exempt from review under the California
environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code section 21000 et seq. ("CEQA"), pursuant
to CEQA Guidelines section 15308 (Actions by Regulatory Agencies for the Protection of the
Environment) where the shipping and storage container standards are promulgated in order to
assure the maintenance, restoration, enhancement and protection of the environment
specifically as it relates to visual blight and public heaith and safety by regulating the
placement and maintenance of shipping containers in locations incompatible with surrounding
uses.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO VISTA HEREBY
ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Purpose and Authority. The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish minimum
development standards for governing the placement and maintenance of shipping containers
and portable storage containers within the City to protect the public health, safety and welfare
as well as the aesthetic appearance of the city and preserve property values.

Section 2. Enactment. Chapter 17.84 of the Rio Vista Municipal Code is hereby added to
the Rio Vista Municipal Code as foliows:

TITLE 17 Zoning
CHAPTER 17.84 PORTABLE STORAGE CONTAINERS AND SHIPPING CONTAINERS

17.84.010 Purpose and scope.
17.84.020 Definitions.
17.84.030  Allowed uses of shipping containers and portable storage containers.
17.84.040 Development standards — portable storage containers.
17.84.050 Development standards — shipping containers.
17.84.060 Temporary use of shipping containers.
17.84.070  Non-storage uses — shipping containers.
17.84.080 Non-conforming uses — portable storage and shipping
containers.

Page 2 of 8



17.84.010  Purpose and scope.

The purpose of this chapter is to establish minimum development standards for the
placement and maintenance of shipping containers and portable storage containers within the
city in order to maintain the aesthetic appearance of the city, preserve property values, and
protect the public health, safety and welfare. These standards are in addition to federal, state,
and local laws and regulations. Wherever there is a conflict between this chapter and other
laws or regulations, the more restrictive standard shall apply.

17.84.020 Definitions.
For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply.

A. “Portable storage container” means a container no larger than 8 feet by 8.5 feet
by 16 feet and transported to a designated location for temporary storage purposes. Examples
include, but are not limited to, Portable On Demand Storage ("PODS") and U-Haul U-Box
containers.

B. “Shipping container” means an industrial, portable vessel not greater than forty
(40) feet in length intended for the large-scale shipping or transportation of goods or
commodities, generally designed to be mounted on a rail car, truck, or ship.

17.84.030  Allowed uses of shipping containers and portable storage containers.

The use of portable storage containers and shipping containers shall comply with the
regulations applicable to the zoning district in which they are used. Failure to abide by these
regulations shall be subject to fine pursuant to chapter 1.16 and nuisance abatement pursuant
to chapter 8.16.

A. Residential Districts.

1. Shipping containers shall not be allowed in any residential zoning
district, including all R districts or where there is an applicable PUD overlay
district with a residential use, except in conjunction with active construction as
allowed under Section 17.84.060.

2. Portable storage containers shall be permitted in any residential
zoning district with an approved temporary use permit from the city and subject
to the standards set forth in Section 17.84.040.

B. Commercial Districts.

1. Shipping containers shall be permitted as an accessory use in any
commercial zoning district, including C-1, C-2, C-2A, C-3-1, and C-H districts,
with an approved administrative site and architectural review permit from the
city, and subject to the standards set forth in Section 17.84.050.

2. Portable storage containers shall be permitted in any commercial
zoning district, including C-1, C-2, C-2A, C-3-I, and C-H districts, with an
approved temporary use permit from the city, and subject to the standards set
forth in Section 17.84.040.

C. Industrial Districts.

1. Shipping containers shall be permitted as either an accessory use
or a Principal Use in any industrial zoning district, including I-P-I, B-P, M-G and
A-B districts, with an approved administrative site and architectural review
permit from the city, and subject to the standards set forth in Section 17.84.050.

Page 30of 8



2. Portable storage containers shall be permitted in any industrial
zoning district, including [-P-1, B-P, M-G and A-B districts, with an approved
temporary use permit from the city, and subject to the standards set forth in
Section 17.84.040.

D. Other Districts. Shipping containers and portable storage containers are
prohibited unless expressly allowed.

E. Vacant Properties. Shipping containers and portable storage containers shall
not be allowed on otherwise vacant parcels in any zoning district except when used in
conjunction with construction executed in compliance with an approved building permit from
the city, placed on the same parcel as the construction, and subject to standards set forth in
17.84.060.

F. Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, shipping containers and
portable storage containers used by the city for a municipal purpose shall not be subject to the
standards of this chapter. Such shipping containers and portable storage containers should
be located and appropriately screened to minimize visual impacts on the community.

Existing shipping containers that are placed on municipal properties with the express
permission of the underlying land owner{s) as of the effective date of this ordinance shall be
considered a legal non-conforming use and allowed; provided, however, owners of such a
container shall endeavor to screen the container from the public right-of-way with, for example,
decorative fencing or landscaping, painting a mural on the container, or relocating the
container to minimize its visual prominence.

17.84.040 Development standards — portable storage containers.

Use of portable storage containers shall be subject to the following limitations and
approval of a temporary use permit from the city.

A Frequency. No more than one (1) portable storage container shall be placed on
a single lot or parcel of land within a residential zone. No more than two (2) portabie storage
containers shall be placed on a single lot or parcel in any other zone.

B. Location. Portable storage containers shall be placed on private property, and
not within the public right-of-way. If the subject property does not have a driveway, a portable
storage container may be placed in the public right-of-way with an approved encroachment
permit from the city.

C. Duration. Portable storage containers placed on private property shall not
remain longer than sixty (60) consecutive calendar days. Portable storage containers placed
within the public right-of-way with an approved encroachment permit shall not remain longer
than fourteen (14) consecutive calendar days. Under no circumstances may a portable storage
container be allowed on the same lot or parcel for more than eighty (80) total days in a
calendar year.

D. Use. Portable storage containers shall only be used for the storage of goods,
materials, equipment, or property. Portable storage containers shall not be used to store or
transport hazardous materials or substances, including but not limited to the following: solid
waste, hazardous materials, explosives, or unlawful substances or materials. Non-storage use
of portable storage containers is not allowed.

Page 4 of 8



E. Permitee Responsibilities. The permitee shall be responsible for ensuring that
the portable storage container is removed in accordance with his or her temporary use permit
and in a safe manner and that no debris or materials remain on or around the portable storage
container site.

17.84.050 Development standards - shipping containers.
Use of shipping containers in the city shall be subject to the following limitations.
A. General Standards.

1. Use. Shipping containers shall only be used for the storage of
goods, materials, equipment, or property associated with the Principal Use of
the parcel on which the container is located. Shipping containers shall not be
used to store or transport hazardous materials or substances, including but not
limited to the following: solid waste, hazardous materials, explosives, or unlawful
substances or materials. Non-storage use of shipping containers may be
allowed if approved pursuant to Section 17.84.070.

2. Maximum Height. If not stacked, shipping containers shall not
exceed ten (10) feet in height. Stacked shipping containers shall not be more
than two (2) containers high, or a maximum of twenty (20} feet, and placed on a
surface that can withstand its weight.

3. Location. Shipping containers shall be placed on the parcel and
proximate to other structures on the parcel pursuant to city fire code regulations
and this code, including setbacks from property lines and other location
requirements for accessory structures. Deviations from setback or similar
requirements shall only be allowed if the applicant can establish that such use
will not be detrimental to the community welfare or safety of the property and
surrounding uses.

4, Signage. No advertising is allowed on or otherwise in conjunction
with a shipping container; provided, however, if the manufacturer's name is
printed on the container, it may remain.

5. Exterior Fagade. Shipping containers shall not display signage
beyond that required by law and shall be kept free of graffiti. Any graffiti shall be
removed within seven (7) calendar days of discovery.

B. Commercial Districts.

1. Frequency. A maximum of two (2) containers on a single lot or
parcel of land. Stacking is prohibited.

2. Buffer from Residential Districts. Shipping containers shali not be
located within two-hundred (200) feet of an existing residential district.

3. Screening. Shipping containers shall be fully screened, as
approved by the planning department. Screening may include, but is not limited
to, an opaque fence or fast-growing landscaping. Chain link fencing alone shall
not be an approved type of screening.

C. Industrial Districts.
1. Frequency.

a. Principal Use. Where the Principal Use of the parcel is a business
that sells, leases, or places shipping containers at locations and does not
provide on-site storage of goods or commodities as a service there is no
frequency limit, provided the shipping containers meet the standards set
forth in this chapter. Stacking is permitted with height not to exceed twenty
(20) feet.

Page50f8



b. Accessory Use.

1. A shipping container shall not be allowed on as an accessory
use on a single lot or parcel that is less than one (1) acre.

2. No more than ten {10) shipping containers shall be allowed as
an accessory use on a single lot or parcel that is at least one
(1) acre and less than seven (7) acres.

3. No more than fifteen (15) shipping containers shall be allowed
as an accessory use on a single lot or parcel that is seven (7)
acres or greater. Stacking is permitted with height not to
exceed twenty (20) feet.

c. A parcel may contain more shipping containers than permitted by
obtaining a conditional use permit approved by the planning commission,
who, when approving such permit, shall make the following findings:
1. The shipping containers shall not pose a threat to the public
health, safety, or welfare due to their placement, frequency, or
condition,
2. The shipping containers shall be placed in accordance with city
fire and building code standards.
3. The shipping containers are, and shall remain, in good repair
such that no container, due to its structural condition, contents,
immediate surroundings, or other condition, contributes to visual
blight or nuisance conditions.
4. The applicant has identified improvements to the shipping
containers that shall reduce any potential for visual blight or
nuisance conditions and shall implement and maintain those
improvements at all times. Such improvements may include any
enhancements deemed acceptable and appropriate by the city.

2. Setbacks. Stacked shipping containers shall be placed at least one
hundred (100} feet from any public right-of-way. Non-stacked shipping containers shall
be placed at least fifty (50) feet from any public right-of-way.

3. Buffer from Residential Districts. Shipping containers shall not be placed
within five hundred (500) feet of an existing residential district.

17.84.060 Temporary use of shipping containers.

Shipping containers shall be allowed in all zones on a temporary basis subject to
approval of a Temporary Use Permit when utilized during construction operations for the
parcel pursuant to an approved building permit from the city and when utilized solely for the
storage of supplies and equipment used for such construction operations. Removal of the
container shall occur either upon occupancy of the building or expiration of the construction
permit, whichever occurs first.

17.84.070 Non-storage uses — shipping containers.
Notwithstanding other provisions of this chapter, a shipping container may be used as
a Structure for a Principal Use, or Accessory Use to the Principal Use, so long as subject to

approval of all entitlements required of a Structure, subject to approval of all permits for the
use, including Site and Architectural Review, and placed on the parcel and proximate to other

Page 6 of 8



structures on the parcel pursuant to city fire and building code regulations and this code,
including setbacks from property lines and other location requirements.

17.84.080  Non-conforming uses ~ portable storage and shipping containers.

A. Unless otherwise provided by this chapter, all illegal, nonconforming uses of
shipping containers and portable storage containers within the city as of the date of the
adoption of this chapter are prohibited and may be subject to citation, fine, or abatement
pursuant to chapter 8.16, or other civil or criminal penalties.

B. A shipping container constructed or placed prior to the date of adoption of this
chapter shall be allowed to continue provided that the shipping container meets the following
conditions:

1. The shipping container is on a parcel in an Industrial Zone.

2. The shipping container, nor use of the container, is not modified,
increased, enlarged, or extended beyond that in existence on the date of
adoption of this chapter.

Section 17.60.030 of the Rio Vista Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:
17.60.030  Applicability—Administrative review.

Site and architectural review by community development department staff shall be
conducted for the following:

A. Signs not part of an application for a building or site otherwise reviewed by the planning
commission;

B. For any new single-family residence, second dwelling unit or any addition to an existing
single-family residence;

C. For any permitted nonresidential use proposed for a residential district;

D. In any district except for R-1, for the reconstruction or alteration of existing buildings
except for addition or maintenance of landscaping, when the alteration affects the
exterior appearance of the building, where such reconstruction and alteration is
exempted from planning commission review in Section 17.60.020:

E. Construction drawings and permit applications shall be reviewed for compliance with
approved plans, elevations and conditions of approval prior to issuance of building,
grading, encroachment or other construction permits;

F. Shipping container construction, or placement, and use pursuant to chapter 17.84; and

G. Any project which is found by staff to be architecturally incompatible with either the
existing structure or the surrounding neighborhood or district.

Section 3. Severability.

The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable if any provision, clause,
word, sentence or paragraph of sections, or the application thereof to any person,
establishment, or circumstances, shall be held invalid. Such invalidity shall not result in the
invalidity of the entire Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application. The Rio Vista City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this
Ordinance irrespective of the invalidity of any particular portion thereof.

Page 7 of 8



Section 4. Effective Date and Publication.

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. The City Clerk is hereby
directed to publish a summary of the Ordinance within fiteen (15) days after passage in a
newspaper of general circulation published in the City of Rio Vista.

I, JOSE JASSO, CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF RIO VISTA, HEREBY CERTIFY this
Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the Rio Vista City Council on
» 2022 and PASSED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rio
Vista at a regular meeting on , 2022.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Ronald Kott, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jose Jasso, MMC, City Clerk

Page 8 of 8






